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“This year we have delivered a solid performance
across the Group. Our Operational Excellence
Programme is progressing well with positive
results achieved. Major growth programmes
continue to progress, underpinning medium
term prospects,”

Mool Tlowers

Crcap Chied Dxecutive

see page 8
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2017 PERFORMANCE

REVENUE OPERATING PROFIT* ORDER BOOK
54/ m  £554m £4/8m
(+15%) (+14%) (-19%)

Significant growth in
Energetics segment

PROGRESS

Improvement reflects site
consolidations and focus on
operational performance

SAFETY

Targeted 2018 revenue
approximately /0% covered
by orders in hand

2018 QUTLOOK

Cperational momenturmn of
H2 2016 continued and
customer deliveries made
to plan

Remains our first priority, no
injuries resutting from
energetic incidents in year

Tangible and sustained
improvement in cperational
performance, combined with
our Programs of Record
underpin short and medium-
term confidence in our
business

* References to operaung profit and gamings per share throughout this strategic report are to underlyirg measures, see note 3 for a reconcliatior To statutory measures
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Overview

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

2017 PERFORMANCE

In 2017 the Group has focused on maintaining
and developing a safe and sustainable business
and by investing in our infrastructure, pecple
and technology, we are creating opportunities
to deliver future growth.

Designed to promote collaboration across the
Group and deliver tangible improvements in
safety, productivity, prefitability and working
capital, the Operational Excellence Programme
was established during the year and is already
delivering benefits. Safety maturity, engineering
maturity and LEAN roll out is ongoing, with these
warkstreams, combined with the enhancement
of cur procyrement function, expected to deliver
financial returns in 2018 and beyond.

Historically, Chemring operated in an
environment where the individual business units
largely operated in isolation from one another.
Perhaps the most rewarding aspect therefore,
has been the way in which the programme has
been embraced across the entire Group and a
culture of clase collaboration is being
estabiished. While still in its early stages, the
Programme is already delivering benefits with
best practice being shared and the Group
working towards a common purpose -
engineering critical salutions that protect and
safeguard in an uncertain werld.

Other initiatives designed to underpin future
efficiancy have also delivered solid progress.
Site consolidation activities have continued to
plan with the closure of the second
countermeasures manufacturing facility in
Philadelphia completed this year, as well as
minor site closures in Charlottesville and
Tallahassee. The ¢losure of the California facility
remains on track for completion in 2018.
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2017 has seen the Group build upon many of
the efforts of previous years and deliver a
strong and consistent performance across all
operational and functional areas.

Carl-Peter Forster
Chairman

The Group has maintained its position and
investment in the US Pragrams of Record, all of
which are progressing positively. Extensive trials
and development effort continue on the Husky
Mounted Detection System ("HMDS™)
counter-lED pragram, with fleet refurbishment
and expansion contracts anticipated in 2018.
Tendering activity for future stages of the Next
Generation Chemicai Detector ("NGCD™)
program is ongoing, with contract awards
anticipated in 2018. The |oint Biologicai Tactical
Detecrion System {"|BTDS™} program has
progressed through Critical Design Review and
now Moves into customer testing prior to
moving into production phases. Success on
these programs remains a key driver of the
Group's future growth.

Cherring's trading environment started to
show signs of recovery in 2017, particularly in
the dominant US market, with this recovery
coingiding with improved operanonal
performance and a strengthened balance sheet.
Despite continued geopolitical instability, this
has enabled the Group to deliver a solid set of
results in 2017 and it is well positioned to
capitalise on future opportunities.

Revenue increased 5% to £547.5m

{2016 £477.lm) and underlying anerating profic
increased 14% to £55.4m (2016: £48.5m) and it
was pleasing to see an improvement in the first
half / second half spiit, as operational
performance becatne more consistent, The
closing order book of £478.0m (2016: £592.9m)
provides good visibility of 2018 revenue,
particularly in the Countermeasures segment
which saw strong order intake in the second half
of the year.

Operating profit*

£55.4

(2016: £48.5m)

for mere information see page 19

STRATEGY

The Group's strategy is to be a market leader in
our chosen niche markets, with operationaily
excellent executian, delivering better than
average margins,

We are clearly at the start of the journey to
deliver this vision. In a number of our markets
we are either market leader, or ane of the
market leaders. [n others we have the
opportunity to take a significant share through
securing long-term Programs of Record. The
Operational Excellence Programme is focused
on production efficiencies, waste reduction,
more efficient working capital management and
delivering margin improvement through
continuous improvement in operational
performance and execution.

SAFETY

Safety underpins all that we do and, as always,
remains an absolute priority for the Group. As a
Board we continue to drive investment and
improvement in this area while fostering a
culture of safety awareness. While there is
never room for camplacency, it was pleasing to
note that there were no serious injuries
sustained by any employee during the year. The
one energetic incident of note could have been
maore serious were it not for the investment
made in recent years in automation and
removing employees from harm’s way.

EMPLOYEES

The Board has visited several sites throughout
the year, spending time at each with 2 number of
our employees. We are continually impressed
by the knowledge and expertise of our entire
workforee, and the commitment they show in
meeting the needs of our customers.




In particular, in 2017 our employees have risen
to the challenge of embracing the Operational
Excellence Programme and on behalf of the
Board | thank themn for their high level of
commitment and enthusiasm.

DIVIDENDS

The Beard is recommending a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 October 2017
of 2.0p (2016: 1.35) per ordinary share.

With the interim dividend of |.0p per share
(2016: nil}, this results in a total dividend of
3.0p (2016: [.3p) per ordinary share.

If approved, the final dividend will be paid on
20 April 2018 to shareholders on the register
on 6 April 2018.

In accordance with accounting standards, this
final dividend has not been recorded as a liabilicy
as at 31 October 2017,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Andrew Lewis joined the Group cn 9 January
2017 and was appointed to the Board as Group
Finance Director on 2 January 2017, Andrew
was previously the Group Finance Director of
Avon Rubber pJ.c.

The membership of the Group's Board has
substantially changed in recent years and this
fresh perspective and experience is an invaluable
asset as we positicn the Group 1o capitalise on
the opportunities for future growth.

CURRENT TRADING

AND QUTLOOK

Trading since the start of 2018 has been in line
with expectations across all businesses.

While we continue to work towards a more
balanced delivery of revenue and profit, the
expected profile of orders, revenue and margins
in 2018, combined with routine seasonality
within the business, means that the Group

again expects to reflect a significant second-haif
weighting to trading performance.

The order book as at 31 October 2017 was
£478.0m, of which £360.9m is currently
expected to be recognised as revenue in 2018.

The order book at 31 December 2087 was
£453.8m.

The Board’s expectations for the Group's 2018
performance remain unchanged, based on
current foreign exchange rates.

Carl-Peter Forster
Chairman
18 January 2018
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Strategic report

BUSINESS MODEL

Our core purpose is to engineer critical
solutions that protect and safeguard in an

uncertain world.

| .5mi|lion

flares produced in 2017

88%

of NATO combat aircraft use
our flares

30

countries using our Sensors to
detect and protect

60

devices on Mars Rover
Programme
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WHAT WE OFFER

QOur purpose underpins everything we do across all our business
segments — Countermeasures, Sensors and Energetics.

COUNTERMEASURES

Qur countermeasures protect aircraft and ships
from guided missile artack by decoying the
threat away from the platfarm they are
protecting. Our businesses combine a deep
understanding of platform signatures, missile
seekers and chemical formulations to develop
new decoys against new threats. Our factories
are designed to protect our workforce from the
potentially hazardous materials involved and 1o
produce the large volumes of flares required to
support military training and cperations.

« More than 50% share of global marker

= Sole supplier of F-35 and Typhoon flares

SENSORS
Cur sensors protect people, platforms and
information by detecting threats with a very high
degree of confidence. Our targets include
explosive, chemical, biclogical, radio and ¢yber
threats, which are afl becoming more compiex,
driving a constant need to engineer improved
technological solutions to meet customer needs.
» Building export success — over 200 HMDS
systems delivered and used by six countries;
150 Resolve Electronic Warfare systems
delivered and used by 12 countries
« Developing next generation counter-lED,
biclogical and chemical sensors for three
US Programs of Record

ENERGETICS
Qur energetic materials, components and
products harness the ability of energetic 9

materials to very rapidly release energy to
perform any of a number of functions; from
propelling an aircraft ejection seat to illuminating
a battefield at night. We are expert at the full
range of technical disciplines needed to safely
design, develop, test and manufacture our

products from our dedicated energetics sites. ’

Our components businesses operate batch

portfclio

different energetic components in

production to deliver a very wide variety of cartridge products delivered per week

products; our preducts businesses can scale up

to deliver very large volumes in batch or

continuous production.

+ Sole supplier of NASA Standard Initiator

« Components on every single Martin-Baker
ejection seat



WHERE WE OPERATE

We operate in four home markets in the UK, US, Australia and
Norway, and export cur products and services around the world.

OUR LOCATIONS

OUR BUSINESSES
Qur businesses operate in the LK, US, Australia
and Norway.

UK

-

Chemring Countermeasures UK
develops and manufactures air and naval
countermeasures

Chemring Technology Solutions
develops C-1ED and EW praducts

Roke provides contract engineering services
Chemring Energetics UK manufactures
energetic compaonents

Chemring Defence UK supplies military
pyrotechnics

USA

Chemring Countermeasures USA
operates from two sites producing Special
Material Decoys (Philadefphia) and
conventional flares {Tennessee)
Chemring Sensors & Electronic
Systems develops sensors to detect IED,
chemical and biological threarts
Chemring Energetic Devices
manufactures aircraft, missile and space
compenents

Chemring Ordnance manufactures
ammunition and military pyrotechnics

AUSTRALIA

* Chemring Australia manufactures
countermeasures and pyrotechnics
and supports other Group products
in the region

NORWAY
+» Chemring Nabel synthesises high-
quality explosive materials

OUR CUSTOMERS

Our customers are national defence and
security agencies, and defence prime
contractors. Qur home markets in the UK,
S, Austratia and Norway represent some
of the most demanding users in the world,
with well-funded militaries and international
credibility which helps achieve export sales.

= 71% of Group sales are to our businesses’

home markets

= ThelUS DaD is our largest custamer
at 36% of Group sales

« No other customer represents more
than 10% of Group sales

* UK MOD represents less than 5%
of revenues

84%

of Group sales outside the UK

/1%

of Group sales to home
markets

36%

of Group sates to US DoD

60

countries bought Chemring
products and services last
year

05

o IWVONNY 1d dNOYUD SNIHWIHD

LICESNTODDY UNY L0



Fd TRNINNY I71d 4NOYD DNIWIHD

~

LIS S_NNODZY ONY 1Y

Strategic report

BUSINESS MODEL coONTINUED
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Operational Excellence —
paying for itself

Qur Operational Excellence
Programme is targeted at several
aspects of the business, but
particularly focuses on eliminating
non-conformance in manufacturing
operatjons. This delivers significant
returns, and also benefits from a
multiplier effect, as improved
processes deliver higher quality, less
re-worlk, increased capacity, improved
cycle time, faster and more
predictable deliveries to customers,
reduced working capital and
improved cash flow. This virtuous
circle is delivering financial payback in
weeks or months, releasing cash for
further reinvestment.

HOW WE MAKE MONEY

We invest in advanced technelogy and manufacturing capability to meet
customers needs safely, reliably and on time. Efficient operations deliver
strong cash generation, reward shareholders and enable reinvestment in

the business.

INVESTMENT IN TECHNOLOGY
AND MANUFACTURING

Chemring is an engineering and manufacturing
group — our selutions, frequently deployed in
harm's way, require extensive development,
qualification and testing to ensure that they
work every time, Qur investments secure our
products in a competitive marketplace, and
ensure that our factories are safe and efficient.

WIN ORDERS

We operate in niches within the defence and
security market, and compete for the majority
of our business. Qur technology investment is
critical to deliver winning products throughout
the business, particularly in the Sensors segment
where evolution of threats and competitors’
technologies drive a need to constantly upgrade
and innovate. We win orders based on our
extensive customer relatienships, and
maintaining compelling value propositions in all
the solutions we offer,

REVENUE

The specialist nature of our products mean
that almost all our outputis built to order.
Qur manufacturing operations are scaled and
scoped to meet expected levels of customer
demand safely and reliably. Qur investments
in manufacturing are targeted to secure a safe
operating environment for our work-force,
deliver efficient operations and build a
momentum of continuous improvement
throughout the business. Ffficient operations
minimise operational cycle-time from order to
delivery, which in turn secures strong cash
conversion,

122%

of underiying operatng profit converted to
cash from underlying operations over the last
three years

CASH FLOW

We have a good record of cash conversion
delivering £ 168.9m of cash from underlying
operations over the last three years.

REINVESTMENT

QOur cash fiow from operations underpins our
ability to reinvest to deliver 1o our customers
leading-edge solutions from safe and efficient
aperations. Over the last three years, we have
invested £43 8m in technology development and
£32.0m in upgraded facilities,

SHAREHOLDER RETURNS i
The cash generated from operations allows

us to deliver fair shareholder returns whilst

continuing to secure the future prosperity

of the Group. Over the last three years we

have paid £14.3m to aur shareholders and our \
capital allocation policy should continue to

share the benefits of our improving prefitability

in the future.



HOW WE SET OURSELVES APART

Chemring is characterised by a wilingness to do hard things well, to
respond to customer needs, and to invest to sustam its future and protect

its workforce.

Key Differentiators

SAFETY

Our factories, particularly in Countermeasures
and Energetics, are handling dangerous
materials in potentially lethal quantities.
Through constant, critical self-assessment we
aim ta operate the safest factories in our
industry.

INVESTMENT

IN INFRASTRUCTURE

In addition to maintaining safe cperatians,

we intelligently sustain investmentin our
manufacturing operations to secure reliable
product delivery and quality. Where
appropriate, we have invested to consolidate
two or more operations onto a single upgraded
site, delivering improved product quality,
reduced overhead costs and enhanced safety.

RESPONSIYENESS

The ongoing conflicts of recent years have
created many new operational threats. As these
threats emerge, our custorners urgently require
solutions 1o protect people and save lives. From
developing a new detector to building a new
production line to deliver thousands of flares a
week, we respand guickly, intelligently and
vigorously.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
Intellectual property {“IP") is critical throughout
our business, whether itis embedded in a
patented software algorithm or the know-how
associated with manufacturing a critical
component of a satellite deployment
mechanism, We carefully nurture and protect
our IP through technology investment, patents
and detailled manufacturing precess
understanding, Many of our products are
manufactured only every two or three years, so
understanding, mantaining and documenting all
the critical features, parameters and processes
are key to ensuring consistent delivery.

CUSTOMER DELIVERY

We operate with some of the world's most
rechnically demanding customers, who
reascnably expect cur advanced technelogy
solutions on time and to the required guality.
Frequently, operational capability for a new
aircraft or ship can only be achieved with a
stock-pile of cur consumables to protect the
fleet in the event of a war, so our factories also
need to deliver large volumes of product. We
canstantly strive to meet all our customers’
expectations from placing an order to
delivering the last uniz of a producticn run,
and supporting products in the field, even in
war-zones where our users are aperating.

INTERNATIONAL FOOTPRINT
Qur facilities in the US, Europe and Australia
provide local access to our home market
customers who lead the definition of the
requirements for our next-generauon
products. Developing products to meet these
demanding requirements creates a range of
competitive products, which we can export
around the world. Combining technologies
fram different requirements can leap-frog
campetitors to create a sustained lead in our
markets — for example, we are transferring
UK developed capabilities in countermeasures
and IEC detection te the LS, providing the
world’s largest defence market with new
capabilities which it did not have before,

OUR PEOPLE

From building relationships to understanding
customers’ complex needs, to developing
advanced technologies and delivering
sclutions, our people are critical at every step.
We respect the extensive experience residing
in most of cur businesses, whilst nurturing
innovation, creativity and talent to develop the
Group for the future.

Safety is lead by the Group Chief
Executive with Group resources and
an Operational Excellence work-
stream dedicared to it

Track record of investment in
ramote operations — £26.9m
invested in capital equipment over
the last three years

£43.8m invested in R&D over the
last three years

179 patents in Countermeasures,
Sensors and Energetics

Only multi-naticnal
countermeasures supplier in the
world

Strong engineering capability with
over 500 graduate engineers in the
Group
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Strategic report

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REVIEW

Delivering performance and growth

HEALTH AND SAFETY

WWe continue to strive 1o be the world's best with
regards to safety, and constantly focus on enhancing
our aperations to remove hazards wherever
possible. Our targetss to ensure that every day on
every site every employee is operating in a safe
and healthy environment. As always, safety
remains the Group's first priority and the Group
continues to drive improvement in this area.

Lost time injury (“LT1") performance continues
to reflect world best practice, and although our
lost time injury rate of 0.59 was slighuy above
2016 levels, all incidents were minor in nature,
none resulted from energetic incidents, and
none required hospitalisation, We continue
our four pronged approach to safety; process
improvement, capital investment, enhanced
leadership engagement and cultural improvement;
with the cultural aspects of safety now becoming
increasingly critical.

During the year the Group had only one energetic
incident of note, an initiation within our primary
explosives manufacturing facility in Scotfand.

This facility is a fully auromated remote
operation, and subsequent to the initiation all
safety systems operated as designed and there
was no exposure of personnrel to hazard. The
facility was quickly brought back into operation,
with no operational or financial impact.

STRATEGY

Over 2017 the Group has seen a slight
impravement across the bulk of its end markets,
with the US market, in particular, emerging from
along period of decline. Indications are that
global growth in our markets will be sustained at
around 3% per annum, although in certain niches
growth is likely to be stronger. The exception to
this is the UK market, where exchange rate
pressures and major platform acquisitions are
constraining other expenditure, hawever it
should be noted that the MOD represents less

08

In 2017 the Group continued to build on its
improved performance of recent years, delivering
strong results that exceeded expectations from both
a financial and operational performance perspective.
Significant progress has been made on the
Operational Excellence Programme, with tangible
sustainable results already delivered and further
improvement in the pipeline.

Michael Flowers
Group Chief Executive

than 5% of Group revenues. The Middle Eastern
market remains strong, although low oil

prices have resulted in requirements for some
products reducing and new programmes and
procurements being delayed.

In 2017 the Board has refined the Group's

capital allocation policy to better reflect our
fundamental strategic requirements. Paramount
to capital decisions is the need to maintan a
strong and robust balance sheet with appropriate
levels of debe. Itis recognised that organic
investment, particularly on capitai projects,

has been constrained over recent years, and
investment in cur manufacturing base is a priority
that will increase in importance in future years.
The Group continues to actively pursue
acquisition opportunities, with our priority being
towards acquisitions in the Sensors segment,
particularly where we need further development
of our technological and market reach.

The Countermeasures segment strategy
continues o be one of strengthening our
world-leading position through continuously
improving our technological and operational base
whilst working closely with our customers in the
development of new sclutions te meet emerging
threats. We continue to develop our position on
the F-35 Joint Strike Fighter (“F-35") program,
with orders and deliveries for F-35 operational,
special macerial, and training flares increasing,
Investment in the segment will principally be
directed towards enhancement of current
faciliues and capabilities, with a significant

capital programme to transform our Tennessee
facility. We also see great opportunity through
partnering with our custamer hase on future
technological developments, with collaborative
agreements having been concluded with our UK
and Australian customers in 2017

Within Sensors, the focus continues tc be on
expansion of capability and praduct portfoho n

the major operating niches of tactical electronic
warfare (“EW?"), counter-lED and explosives
detection, chemical warfare detection and
biclogical warfare detection. The Sensors
segment is the Group's principal area for R&D
investment, given the growth opportunities,
particularly in US Programs of Record.

The US Programs of Record remain the Group's
area of greatest strategic focus, and investment
will continue over the coming years as these
programs reach critical points. In the coming
year we expect contracting decisions on the
Engineering and Manufacturing Development
("EMD™) phases of NGCD, Low and Full Rate
Production decisions on |BTDS, and contracting
for fleet refurbishment, expansion and
technological refresh of the HMDS program.
Success on key elements of the programs is
critical. The Group will establish a new project
and contracting organisation to respond to
emergent US Department of Defernse (*US
DoD"y and related area requirements in
complementary technology areas 1o those

of our major programs that are increasingly
being contracted for under Indefinite Delivery ¢
Indefinite Quantity ("IDIQ™) or Ocher
Transaction Authority (“OTA") framework
contracts. From the technologies developed
through these programs. the Group intends to
broaden its product base and market reach,
seeking greater opportunities in adjacent markets
such as the Department of Homeland Secunty.

The Group will, over the next 24 months,
develop our Next Generation Electronic
Warfare System to replace the current Resolve
system which has been in global service for

the past six years. This new capability is being
developed in concert with emerging customer
needs, particularly related to the convergence
of requirements from the traditional electronic
warfare and cyber threat areas. Capability

will also be broadened by parthering with



complermentary companies to further grow this
very successful business area.

Roke's historical end markets were subdued in
2047 due to continued budgetary pressure from
its largest government customer, yet despite this
the improving performance wrend from 2016
continued. Investment at Roke shall continue to
focus on its people, to ensure their training and
development matches emergent market needs,
and organisational development toc ensure we
can recruit and retain the right mix of staffin a
resource constrained market. Having
consolidated our position in traditional markets,
we shall now look to expand our offerings,
particularly in the cyber-security market, to
international and commercial customers.

The Energetics businesses continue to be
managed in order to maximise market position
in their operating niches, maintain product
qualification, and ensure safe and effective
operations. The Group is conscicusly moving
away from seeking to compete with low cost
competitors in commodity markets, focusing on
higher margin niches where there are significanc
barriers to entry. These areas include cur UK
and US devices businesses, our high quality
energetic materials supply from Norway, and
maore specialised ammunition and componentry
from our Florida facility. Investment focus will be
on maintaining organic capability to ensure we
remain safe, our products remain current, and
our operations run as efficiently as possible.

OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

2017 was a more balanced year, and although the
Group's earnings were still significantly second
half weighted, the balance improved from that
of prior years. This has enabled more effective
production planning which is starting to delfiver
more efficient manufacturing operations.

Improvement in gperational performance
continues 1o be driven by improvements in
consistency of production and improved
manufacturing yields across all sites.

This has been particularly evidentat our US
countermeasures businesses, with signs that
improved delivery performance is leading to
increased market share starting to emerge.

From a more consistent and appropriately scaled
manufacturing operation, the Group's focus
tecomes the driving out of cost and waste across
all lines, delivering improved gross and operating
margins. Qur Operational Excellence Programme
will drive this improvement,

Business restructuring and site consolidatien has
been a key element of the Group's focus over
recent years, @s we have sought to integrate
earlier acquisitions and more effectively align our
capacity and capabilities to marker demand.
During 2017 we concluded the closure of our
second countermeasures manufacturing plantin
Phidadelphia, with the closure of our California

facility progressing to schedule. At year end only
a small number of active contracts remain open
at California, with all likely to complete by mid
calendar year 20(8. Qualification of critical
products at Chicago has been successfully
completed; the new precision machining centre
15 at inttial operating capability; and in 2018 we
shall conclude the commissioning of the Chicago
primary explosive handling capabilicy. This will
effectively conclude this consolidaton effort.

These site consclidations resulted in a non-
underlying cost of £14.3m, the benefit of which
will be delivered in future years. A detailed
impairment review of the Group’s businesses has
also been completed, and, based upon current
conditions in the military and law enforcement
pyrotechnics market, an impairment charge

of £10.6m has been recognised against the
Chemring Defence UK business unit. Further
details of these and other non-underlying items
are in note 3 of the financial statements.

OPERATIONAL

EXCELLENCE PROGRAMME
Throughout the year the Operational Excellence
Programme has been the priority business
activity, aimed at enhancing, over a five year
programme, all aspects of the Group’s
operations. Key aims of the programme are to
embed a high safety performance level and
culture, iImprove operating margins and reduce
working capital.

Work effort is concentrated in eight Group wide
excellence reams cavering:

* Safety performance

» Manufacturing operations

« Supply chain management

» Sales and marketing

* New product deveiopment

* Business processes and systems

« Production planning systems

«  Commercial and contracting practice

Although much of the effortin 2017 has been
foundartianal, a number of tangible benefits have
already resuited. These include: margin
improvements being achieved in all segments
and across multiple lines and a Group operanng
margin 0.6% abowve initial expecrations; Lean
assessment tools developed and assessments
completed; safety marurity assessment toof
developed and assessments ongoing; and a
Group-wide CRM system rolled out.

The total programme cost in 2017 was £2m
(underlying), with a Group wide net benefit of
approximately £3m and a gross benefit of £5m.
In future years the programme is expected

1o cost approximately £2m per annum plus

additional capital costs as identified. All day-to-day

programme costs will continue to be classified
as underlying.

Specific work plans and objectives to be
actioned and delivered in 2018 have been
developed for the Group, for each segment and
business unit, and significant production lines.
Key amongst these include:

= Ongoing Lean implementation

+ ERP ernhancement and integration with CRM

+ Kilgore transformation programme

»  Norway systems development and capacity
enhancement

»  Development and rolf out of consistent
production planning process across
rmanufacturing sites

As a Group our 2018 and longer-term
objectives for the Operational Excellence
Programme are threefold:

= Safety. In 2018 we aim to have no injuries
from energetic incidents and no life altering
injuries. By 2022, we aim to have removed
all operators from potential lethal exposure,
or reduced this exposure to As Low As
Reasonably Practicable (ALARP), delivered
an LTI rate sustained at below 0.5, have no
injuries from energetic inidents, and have
no life altering injuries.

«  Operating margin. Group margin to
increase on a like for like basis, by 75bps in
2018 and by 300bps in 2022,

*  Working capital. In 2018 we look to
reduce working capital by £i0m. By 2022
we will seek to reduce total working capital
from 24% to below 19% of reverue.

CONCLUSION
In 2017 the Group has performed strongly and
delivered a solid set of results.

Progression on US Programs of Record and the
critical F-35 countermeasures program has been
very positive, and we look forward to these
programs being strong contributors in future
years. The foundations of the Operationai
Excellence Programme have been laid with
inital tangible outcomes achieved. The Group
locks to this programme, our progression on
the US Programs of Record. and a steadily
strengthening global market to deliver enhanced
opportunities and returns in future years.

Michael Flowers
Group Chief Executive
18 January 2018
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Strategic report

OUR STRATEGY

. OUR MARKETS

MARKET DRIVERS
Global defence spend is slowly recovering in
our markets.

This recovery is led by the US, which plans

to increase its base budget spend by over

5% from 2017 to 2018 and the Senate unusually
recommended a $26 hillion increase to 20187
criginal Presidential Budget Request, with
additional funding to several major programmes,
including an additional vwenty F-35 aircraft,

In Europe, defence spending remains subdued
but stable. Only six countries (US, UK, Greece,
Estonia, Poland and Romama) meet their NATO
commitments to spend 2% of GDP on defence,
and the US rhetoric continues to drive members
to meet this threshold, However the UK MOD
is struggling with major budget shortfalls, and we
have seen delays in order placement, although

it should be noted that the MOD represents

less than 5% of Group revenues. Spending on
cyber-security by our UK intelligence agency
customers is strong and demand for our services
is growing.

Austrafia, one of Chemring's other home
markets, expects 1o increase spending by about
6% in real terms over 2017-2018. It has declared a
ten-year plan to grow defence spending by over
80% to maintain an appropriate response to
China's increasingly capable forces in the region.

The Middle East defence market remains volatile
and unpredictable, with regional tensions running
high. but oil revenues still suppressed by relatively
low prices. Customers are continuing to fund
defence, but we are seeing delays in order
placement and payments as priorities are
continually shuffled.

OUR STRATEGY

KEY PRIORITIES

Our strategy reflects the
current dynamics of our
defence and security markets

SEGMENTS

COUNTERMEASURES

ENERGETICS

RISKS

HOLD THE GROUND ALREADY WON

Qur short-term priority has been to
deliver profit and cash, witha
particular focus on meeting planned
repayments of our private placement
{oan notes from exisung bank faclives
and cashresources. YWe have
delivered this, with the first
repayment of £5Im in November
2017 (post year-end) and final
repayment of £63m planned in
MNovember 2C19.

This has been achieved by scaling the
businesses to match the current
demand and driving regutar and
consistent delivery; our
Countermeasures and Energetics sites
tend to be large, with significant fixed
cost, and our Sensors businesses
require a critical mass of engineering
resource 1o remain competiuve.

Against this backdrop, maintaining
operationat throughput by eliminating
delays and nen-conformance has been
amajor effort, whether 1t 1s mixing
processes in Countermeasures,
<tomponent tolerancing in Energeucs
or minimising un-billzble time 1n cur
contract engineering business.

This has keen an early priority

for cur Group-wide Cperational
Excellence Programme, under

the “Manufacturing Operations”
workstream, and every business has
identified flagship improvement
projects to deliver measured gains in
the next financial year.

+ sce pages 22 tu 18

© see pages 28 to 13




TRANSFORM OUR CAPABILITIES

INVEST FOR GROWTH

Qur Operational Excellence Programme
("OEP") will systemancally upgrade

all our capzbilities across the Group
through collaboration, sharing best
practice and, where appropriate,
bringing in specific expertse. In addinon
1o our "Manufacturing Operations”
worksiream, we are coverng:

« Salety performance

= Supply chain management

+  Sales and marketing

»  New product development

* Business processes and systems

*  Praduction planning systems

+ Commercial and contracting
practice

All workstreams cover all businesses, but
certain segments will fecus more on
particular themes, outlined below.

Where we have identified systemic
weaknesses or pinch-points, we have
addressed these directly at a Group level.
For example, historic payment practices
have hampered our ability to manage our
supply chain strategically, so we have
deliberately invested in working capital to
improve this. In addition. we have
strengthened our commercial resources
and conducted Group-wide traiming to
reduce our centractual risk exposure.

Finally. we zre exploring how best to
structyre the Group to maximise
synerges within segments whilst
eliminating irrelevant activity between
segments. This is at an early stage,
requiring sensitive engagement with
internal and externat stakeholders, but it
is a key init/ative which we have resourced
cenrrally to pursue.

We will investin equipment, facilities and
product development to deliver growth.
As a result of our position in the LJS
countermeasures market, and strategic
Investments in sensors technology, we
are well placed on several major
programmes, mainly i the US.

These mulu-year, mulu-million doflar
“Growth Programmes" underpin the
growth of the Group to the mid-2020s,
and include:

- F-35 countermeasures

- JBTDS
- NGCD
< HMDS

In addition to these specific US Programs
aof Record, our UK Sensors businesses
face exciting opportunities in
next-generation electronic warfare,
cyber electro-magnetic activity and
consulting and R&D for LiK agencies.

These programmes are the main
prianties for investment to ensure that
Chemring secures and maintains its
position as sole source supplier of these
key military capabilities. The portfolic,
parucularly the Energetcs segment, will
deliver cash to fund this growth.
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! FOCUS ON
Revenue

COUNTERMEASURES -

£134.8m

Operating profit®

(+ 30%)

Crder book

(2016 £177.0m)

Operating margin®

(2016: 9.3%}

_LEADING

OPPORTUNITIES:




Chemring is well-established as the world leader

in the design, development and manufacture

of advanced expendable countermeasures and
countermeasure suites for protecting air, sea and
land platforms against the growing threat of puided
missiles. The Group has a broad product range
including conventional flares, advanced flares, special
material decoys, chaff and naval countermeasures.

STRATEGY

Chemring maintains its leading position in the market for conventicnal and
advanced countermeasures through continuous operational improvement
and targeted investment in technology.

New automated manufacturing facilities in the UK and Australia are
operationaf and Chemring has a strong focus on impraving the operationat
performance of all facilities. The Group also intends to maintain its
techneological lead in air countermeasures through targeted R&D
investment to meet evolving needs and to sustain its sole source positians
on the key US and NATQ next-generation platforms — F-22, F-35 and
Typhoon.

The Group’s Operational Excellence Programme will focus on improving
the management of safety, production efficiencies, waste reduction and
more efficient working capital management. The results of these
programmes are expected to be rezlised over the next three years.

MARKETS

The countermeasures market is showing further signs of recovery, with a
notable increase in solicitation, bid activity and orders, particularly in the
US. The broader global countermeasures market remains robust, with
improving levels of activity in the UX and Australia, supplemented by
export order opportunities.

PERFORMANCE

Countermeasures revenue decreased by 3% to £134.Bm (2016: £i38.3m)
and the segment reported an underlying operating profit of £16.7m (2014:
£12.8m), up 30%. Revenues were down slightly as the Philadelphia plant
was closed for modernisation during the first half. Improved consistency in
preduction and a more appropriate cost base in the second half of the
year in Philadelphia resulted in year on year operating margins improving
from 9.3% to 12.4%. Order intake was £144.4m, a 51% increase on the
prior year.

2017 has seen significant development of the F-35 program, with
producticn commencing on both Low Rate Initial Production (“LRIP™) 6 of
the F-35 operatianal flares and the initial contract for F-35 training flares.
The contract award for LREP 7 was received late in the year, and the
customer is finalising the Special Material Decoy {"SMD™) requirements
for the F-35. The programme to qualify Chemring Australia as a second
source supplier of F-35 flares was successfully completed in the year and
commercial negotiations te supply F-35 flares from Australia are ongoing.

The facility consolidation at Philadelphia from twa sites to one, originally
planned for the second quarter of 2017, was delayed due to urgent
requirements from our US customer. This adversely impacted margins in
the first half as we continued to run a sub-optimal cost base. Shortly after
the half year the second site was closed and the consolidation and
modernisation of the remaining site was completed in the second half. The
restructuring cost in 2017 was £1.6m, of which £1.1m was a cash cost, and
it has delivered £1.3m of annualised savings from the beginning of the
second hatf of 2017,

OFPORTUNITIES AND OUTLOOK

Adter years of declining markets, the outleok, particularly for the eritical US
market, is looking much stronger in both the conventicnal and 5MD flare
variants. The focus within Countermeasures continues to be on
strengthening our market leading position, in particular on the key F-35 and
Typheon platforms, and maintaining a dominant position in the crucial SMD
market.

A new SMD was launched to the market early in 2017, with initial orders
received shortly after its introduction, and ongoing orders anticipated.
Additionally, with the US forces installing BOL countermeasure dispensers
on selected platforms, the Group's position cn BOL infra-red and chaff
countermeasures eads us to expect significant opportunities in this product
range in future years.

Improved cellaboration and a more co-ordinated approach to both product
development and customer needs is expected to result in improved order
intake and customer service across the segment.

There is also a considerable opportunity through partnering with our
customer base on future technological developments, with collaborative
agreements having been concluded with our UK and Australian customers
in 2017. These are expected to deliver considerable benefits in 2018 and
beyond.

The closing order baok for Countermeasures increased by 1% to £178.6m
(2016: £177.0m). This increase primarily reflects the receipt of a number of
significant orders from the LS and UK customer, totaling £83m, that were
received in the second half of the year, offset slightly by reductions in the fong
term framework contract value with the Australian DoD, as Australian
requirements transition from F-18 to F-35 countermeasures.

With z solid order book in place, 2018 trading performance for
Countermeasures is expected to be positive, albeit with a significant bias
towards the second half.

WHERE WE OPERATE

Chemring Countermeasures USA

Consists of Alloy Surfaces, based in Philadelphia, and Kilgore Flares, based
in Tennessee. Alloy Surfaces is a leading developer of special material
decoys for the US Navy, Marine Carps, Army and Air Force, with

exports to the UK and Australia. Kitgore Flares operates a high volume
manufacturing facility making conventional and advanced flares, including
flares for the F-22 and F-35.

Chemring Countermeasures UK

Manufactures advanced expendable countermeasures for air and sea
platforms. Its aircraft products inciude conventional and advanced flares
and chaff. lts naval products include infra-red and radio frequency decoys
and the CENTURION trainable naval decoy launcher.

Chemring Australia
Develops and manufactures aircraft countermeasures, pyrotechnics,
and counter-IED and electronic warfare solutions.
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FOCUS ON

' SENSORS

Revenue

£94.5m

(- 2%)

Operatmg profrt

£14.3m

(+ 25%)

Ovrder booi<

£554m

(2016: £45.3m)

INNOVAT ISI%

(2016 11.8%)

NEXT GENERATION

OPPORTUNITIES:
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Chemring’s Sensors products include world-leading
systems for detecting improvised explosive devices
("IEDs""), chemical and biological agents,and core
technologies for detecting, intercepting and jamming
electronic communications. The Group is also a leading
contract research and development supplier, trusted by
government and industrial partners worldwide to solve
the most technically challenging security critical issues,
with a focus in the cyber-securtty field.

STRATEGY

The Group has invested to grow its Sensors business by developing and
exploiting technologies for its niche markets in IED defeat, chemical and
biological threat detection, and land-based electronic warfare. To do so,
the Group aims to explait its international footprint to continue to
develop advanced technologies and win key, identified Programs of
Record including the Husky Mounted Detection System ("HMDS™), the
Next Generation Chemical Detector (“NGCD™), the Joint Biological
Tactical Detection System (*]BTDS”) and several next-generation EW
programmes.

The Group's specialist contract research and development business cperates
in the growing cyber-security market, and investing in recruiting, developing
and retaining our pecple, together with expanding our geographical and
custormer coverage, is key to profitable growth in this area.

MARKETS

The sensors market remains our principal long-term growth area, with
demand for Roke’s security related consultancy services increasing and
development efforts in support of US Programs of Record in the
counter-1ED, chemical and biological detection markets progressing.
Production awards for sensors products continue to be subject 1o ongoing
research and development programmes and prowracted customer
decision-making processes.

PERFORMANCE

Sensors revenue decreased by 2% to £94.5m (2016: £96.9m) reflecting
the continued focus of the US business on the research and development
phases of the counter-IED, chemical and biclogical detection Programs of
Record. The segment reported an underlying operating profit of £14.3m
(2016: £11.4m), up 25%. Operating margins increased from 11.8% to
15.1%. Order intake was £9%9.7m, an 80% increase on the prior year.

In 2017, the US DoD's approach to counter-1ED through the HMDS
program changed to one of spiral development, with concurrent
development, trialling, and manufacturing being undertaken. During the
year orders were received for separate capability requirements, including
incorporation and trialling of wire detection, development of advanced
radar, and manufacturability studies. Subsequent to this, a restructured
Capability and Requirement Program plan was agreed by the US Army
and authorisation was granted 1o produce and field a fleet of 369 HMDS
between now and mid-2021. The new fleet will be comprised of both
refurbished and new HMDS and this activity will run alongside technolcgy
upgrade programs. Final budget and schedule derails are unknown at

this point.

Sales of RESOLVE electronic warfare systems continue to be strong, now
exceeding £50m since its launch, with orders received from four new
customers and six repeat custorners. RESOLVE is now used in 12 natens
globally. Fallowing on from an initial order from the US, a further
requirement has recently been salicited from this strategically important
marker, A significant RESOLVE development programme has commenced
aimed at ensuring RESOLVE maintains its position as the world’s leading
tactical electronic warfare system.

Roke's performance was impacted as budgetary pressures from its largest
government customers continued. Despite this the business continued its
improved performance wend.

The facility consolidation of Charlottesville into Charlotte and Dulles was
completed early in the year. The restructuring costs in 2017 were £5.4m, of
which £0.3m was a cash cost. The annualised saving of £0.2m has been
realised in 2017.

OPPORTUNITIES AND OUTLOOK

The focus for Sensors continues to be on expanding the Group's product,
service and capability offerings in the areas of tactical electronic warfare
and cyber-security, and securing positions on the US DoD Programs of
Record. In September 2017 a Request for Proposal ("RFP”) was received
for the EMD and production phase for the first of the three NGCD
variants. Government decision 's expected in mid-2018. The RFP was in
line with the Group’s expectations and the overall size of the program is
significant. Tenders for other phases of NGCD are expected in 2018.
Funded developrment of Chemring’s sole source position on the |[BTDS
program is continuing with government testing of product ongoing.
Critical Design Review, led by the Joint Program Executive Office for
Chemical and Biclogical Defense, occurred in November 2017. The review
concluded that the program was sufficiently advanced to progress to

the next stage of customer testing, which would cceur during 2018,

In addition a further $5m of funding was provided to cover ongoing
development activity.

Contracting activity on the HMDS program is expected to be significant in
2018, and shall cover existing fleet refurbishment, delivery of system
efements to increase overall fleet size to the Army Acquisition Objective,
delivery of further Wire Detection systems and ongoing technological
developments. Following an from initial small Foreign Military Sales
("FMS") orders received in 2017 for 3d-Radar based HMDS which were
delivered in the second half, further orders for these systems are
expected in 2018 and beyond.

Supporung the UK Government across National Security and Defence,
and non-governmental industries in high-value manufacturing and
infrastructure, Roke will continue to focus on their customers’ missions:
to enable them ta deliver competitive advantage, defend their people,
assets and secrets, and defeat their adversaries. With a focus on emerging
technologies in connectivity, cyber, automation and data analytics, Reke
will deliver its high quality pecple and capabilities via research, design,
engineering and advisory services. Concurrently, Roke is seeking to
expand its capabilities into commercial and international markets,

The order book for Sensors at 3|1 October 2017 was £55.4m
(2016: £49.3m).

2018 trading performance for Sensors is expected to show an
improvement on 2017, driven primarily by Roke and HMDS awards.

WHERE WE OPERATE

Chemring Sensors & Electronic Systems (““CSES™)
Based in Virginia and Naorth Carelina, CSES develops and manufactures
ground penetrating radar, [ED detection systems, and chemical and
biolocgical threat detection systems.

Chemring Technology Solutions

The Group’s centre of excellence in land EW, and also develops and
manufactures |ED detection and neutralisation systems, including
vehicle-mounted and hand-held sensors, disruptors and initiation systems.

Roke

A technology company that provides electronics research, development
and engineering services, and cyber-security soluticns for UK
Government agencies and prime contractors.
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FOCUS ON

ENERGETICS

Revenue

£318.2m

(+ 32%)

Operatlng proflt

£34 8m

10%)

Order boo|<

£244.0m

(2016: £366.6m)

Operatmg margin®

10.9%

(2016 13.1%)

RELIAB
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Chernring’s energetic sub-systems are safety critical
components of missiles, aircraft and space launch
systems. Operators and prime contractors depend
on Chemring’s very high reliability, single-use

devices to perform key functions, including satellite
deployment, aircrew egress and missite self-destruct.

Chemring manufactures a range of pyrotechnic
products which are used by military and security
forces around the world for screening, signalling

and illumination. In addition, the Group produces a
specialist range of high explosive products, including
minefield clearance systems, demolition stores and
40mm ammunition.

STRATEGY

The Group will secure the position of its energetic sub-systems
components on next-generation platforms for missile and space
programmes in the United States and Europe, through excellent delivery
performance on current programmes and strong customer and partner
interaction.

In military pyrotechnics, the Group will upgrade key products to ensure
that it can offer the full range of rockets, smoke grenades and flares
required by its military and security customers. The Group has been
successful in entering new markets, particularly in the Middle East and
Asia Pacific, and further development of customer relationships is planned
in these areas.

MARKETS

Within Energetics. we are seeing increased demand for our products,
driven in part by increased level of operations in certain areas of the world
and in part by restocking of reduced inventory levels, The high
specificarion energetic devices businesses are alsc growing as our
custemers recognise our niche technelogical capabilities in this area.

PERFORMANCE

Energetics revenue increased by 32% to £318.2m (2016: £241.9m) with
underlying operating profitincreasing by 10% to £34.8m (2016: £31.7m).
Operating margins decreased from 13.1% to 10.9%. Order intake was
£205.8m, a 7% decrease on the prior year.

The major contributors to improved performance in the segment were
the large Middle Eastern 40mm ammunition contracts which contributed
revenue of £64.2m (2016: £44.5m). Having successfully delivered the
bafance of the 40mm order received in 2015, the Group received an
additional 40mm contract, valued at £23.0m, from a different customer,
the majority of which was delivered during the second half of 2017.

Increased sales of procured non-standard ammunition ("NSA™) product
was anather key driver of growth in this segment. Due to the externally
sourced nature of the products involved, margins on non-standard
ammunition sales are typically lower than for manufactured product.
Supply of NSA products to the US Government contributed £97.6m
(2016: £62.2m) to revenue in the year.

Aside from these large contracts, segmental revenue grew by 16%
reflecting the valued niche technology and capability demonstrated in the
energetic devices field. At our devices and propellant facility in Scotland,
the award of three multi-year contracts for supply of Metron actuaters
and propellantinto the fire suppression, commercoal aerospace and
marine safety markets, combined with our leng-term supply agreements
with the UK MOD and Martin Baker will see annuzl revenues from
long-term contracts near £20m, or 60% of historical revenue levels.

Qur high explosive manufacturing business in Norway has achieved
record order intake levels with significant investment being undertaken to
enhance capacity, which will continue in 2018.

OPPORTUNITIES AND OUTLOOK

The closure of the California facility in 2018 is progressing according to plan.
This project is anticipated to have a total cost of approximately £6.4m by the
time of completion, of which £4.2m is expected to be a cash cost. The site
rationalisation is expected to deliver approximately £4m in annual savings
from 2019,

Significant new opportunities are developing for our US ordnance
business. These include further significant export requirements for 40mm
ammunition, and demestic and international requirements for APOBS
minefield breaching systems. Development and qualification activity on
57mm naval ammunition continues. NSA requirements are expected to
remain high in 2018, although we expect this low margin business fine to
reduce from 2019.

The significant growth in demand for product from our Norwegian high
explosives business is driving a programme to enhance overall capacity
through plant, process and systems upgrades. It is expected that total
plant throughput will double from historical {2018) levels by 2020.

The order book for Energetics at 31 October 2087 was £244.0m
(2016: £366.6m), and included £11.2m in respect of 40mm ammunition
and £83.7m in respect of NSA.

2018 trading performance for Energetics is expected to show a reduction
on 2017, driven primarily by lower volumes of 40mm ammunition.

WHERE WE OPERATE

Chemring Energetic Devices

A leading US supplier of pyrotechnic and efectro-mechanical systems for
missiles, space and safety applications. Products include satellite and space
launch vehicle separatien systems, initiators and low-shock satellite
separation systems, and a range of pyromechanisms for afrcrew egress.
Chemring Energetic Devices also supplies sub-systems for missiles.

Chemring Energetics

Incorporating Chemring Energetics UK in Scotland and Chemring Nobel
in Narway. A leading supplier of detonators, actuators, rocket motors,
high explosive charges, cancpy curtting cords and pyromechanisms for
gircrew egress, and demolition stores. Itis also a leading supplier of high
explosive charges, high explosives and energetic binders to the defence,
security, oil and gas industries.

Chemring Defence UK
Designs, develops and produces smeke and illumination pyrotechnics and
payloads for military, OEM and security customers.

Chemring Ordnance

Aleading US manufacturer of the Anti-Personnel Obstacle Breaching
System ("APQOBS"), 40mm ammuniticn and military pyratechnics, located
in Florida. It also operates a procurement service, supplying non-NATO
standard ammunition to the US Army and other customers.
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Strategic report

FINANCIAL REVIEW

In market conditions which continue to be
challenging, but which are showing signs of
medium-term improvement, Chemring's focus
on completing recent restructuring, operational
improvement and cost control has delivered a
business with greater resilience to the defence
market cycles.

Andrew Lewis
Group Finance Director

Profit after tax* Increased revenue, improved

operaticnal performance
£3 6 O m together with lower interest and
* tax contributed to a 34% increase
(2016: £26.9m) in profit after tax*.




The 2017 financial results demonstrate a
second year of improved delivery, maintaining
the momentum of the second half of 2016. This
current year delivery has been balanced with a
focus on improving operational performance,
setting the foundations for further progress in
subsequent years.

GROUP RESULTS

The underlying operating profit of £55.4m
(2016: £48.5m) resulted in an underfying
operating margin of 10.1% (2016: 10.2%). The
slightly lower margin primarily reflects a lower
margin sales mix, primarily as a result of
significantly higher non-standard ammunition
revenue in the Energetics segment.

Foreign exchange translation has had an impact
on year-cn-year comparison following the
significant devaluation of Sterling in June 2016.
On a constant currency basis, restating the
current period at the FY16 average exchange
rate, revenue would have been £528.0m and
underlying operating profit would have been
£55.0m.

After a net underlying finance expense of
£11.3m {2016: £14.5m), there was an
underlying profit before tax of £44.1m

(2046: £34.0m). The effective tax rate on the
underlying profit before tax from continuing
operations was 18.4% (2C16: 20.9%). The
underlying earnings per share was 12.9p
(2016: 10.3p).

Stawtory operating profit was £15.3m

(2016: £26.2m) and after statutory finance
expenses of £11.3m (2016: £18.2m), statutary
profithefore tax was £4.0m (2016: £8.0m),
giving statutory EPS of [.1p (2016: 2.5p).

The Group has recognised an impairment loss
of £10,6m in respect of the Chemring Defence
UK business. Thisis based on the current
market conditions in the military and law
enforcement pyrotechnics market.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Group has adopted IFRS I5 forits 2017
financial year and the Board believes that this
represents a move to a more prudent basis
of revenue recognition. The majority of the
Group's transactions are unaffected by IFRS 15,
however when IFRS |5 is applied to a small
number of customer contracts this leads to a
difference in the timing of recognising revenue.
As permitted by the standard, the Group has
adopted the modified transitional provisions
and as such the 2015 results remain as
previously reported. For further details see
note 33,

The ner effect of the adoption of IFRS 15 on
the Group results for 2017 was broadly
neutral. The impact of adoption in 20t7 has
been to increase revenue by £16.3m and
increase underlying operatng profit by £4.9m

arising from transactions recognised in prior
periods which would have subsequently been
recognised in the current period under IFRS 15.
Similarly a number of transactions, with a
broadly equivalent operating profic impace,

will be recognised in 2018 that could have
previausly been recognised in 2017. This timing
difference is expected to recur at each
reparting period end, albeit at a different
quantum.

FINANCE EXPENSES

Net underlying interest costs were £8.5m
(2016: £10.9m), amortisation of debt finance
costs was £2.4m (2016: £2.8m) and other
non-cash finance expenses associated with the
defined benefit pension scheme were £0.4m
(2016: £0.8m).

TAX

The continuing underlying effective tax rate,
where the tax charge and the profic before
taxation are adjusted for non-underlying items
and the amortisation of acquired intangibles,
is 18.4% (20161 20.9%).

The centinuing statutory tax charge totalled
£0.9m (2016: £1.5m) on a continuing statutory
profit before tax of £4.0m (2016: £8.0m}. The
continuing effective statutory tax rate for the
period is a charge of 22.5% (2016: 18.8%). The
increase in the continuing effective rate of rax
on the results of the Group is primarily due to
the geographic mix of profits, changes to the
amounts of deferred tax assets considered
recoverable in respect of both tax losses and
US interest limitations, prior year adjustments
and the recent reduction in UK corporation
tax rates.

The LS Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("TCJA") was
subszantively enacted on 22 December 2017.
The TC|A prevides for a reduction in the main
rate of federal corporate income tax from 35%
to 21% for accounting periods beginning on or
after | January 2018, As the legislation was not
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
its effect has not been included in these
financial statements. If the changes had been
taken into account in preparing the financial
statements the impact would have been to
reduce the value of the Deferred Tax Asset by
approximately £5m.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Underlying earnings per share were 12.9p
(2016: 10.3p) and diluted underlying earnings
per share were |2.6p (2016: 10.1p).

2017 Operating profit*
by segment

2016 Operating profit*
by segment

Earnings per share*

129p

(2016: 10.3p)

Dividend per share

3.0p

(2016: 1.3p)

Net Debt/EBITDA*

0.99x

(2016: 1.19%)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW continued

GROUP FINANCIAL POSITION

NET DEBT AND CASH FLOW

The Group's net debt at 31 October 2017 was £80.0m (2016: £87.6m),
representing a net debt : EBITDA ratic of 0.99% (2016: 1.19x). The financiai
condition of the Group has improved in a number of aspects during the
year. Debt repayments were made which reduces future interest costs,
working capital practices were improved, capitalised development casts
has reduced as amortisation now exceeds capitalisation and the LASI9
pension deficit has significantly reduced to £0.6m (2016: £17.3m deficic).
The Group hopes 10 achieve further improvements over the medium term.

Underlying operating activities generated cash of £47.1m (2016 £8].4m),
reflecting the investment made in working capital associated with fulfilling
contracts in the Energetics segment. The increase in inventory reflected the
inventory on hand to fulfil the final deliveries associated with the £23m
40mm contractin the Energetics segment. Trade receivables increased due
to a combination of the timing of deliveries to customers and increased
levels of business activity. This was particutarly apparentin the Energerics
segment where increased levels of 40mm and NSA deliveries occurred

in the final quarter. In addition, the Group has maintained the supplier
payment practices intreduced at half year, returning them to normal
industry standards. This has resulted in a one off investment in working
capital in the year of £30m. Improved relationships with suppliers is
expected to assist the Group in improving future operational performance,

On 21 Novernber 2016, the Group repaid £2%2.0m of outstanding loan notes
and on 13 November 2017 a further £51.4m of loan notes were repaid.
Both payments were made out of existing cash resources and debs facllities.
The remaining loan notes of £62,9m are repayable in November 2019,

WORKING CAPITAL

Warking capital was £131.5m (2016: £122.0m), an increase of £3.5m.
Warking capital as a percentage of revenue has rermained comparable at 24%
(2016: 26%).

Inventory increased in Energetics to support contract deliveries but fell in
Sensors as efforts to optimise inventory levels were successful.

Trade receivables increased by £9.3m and trade payables decreased by
£15.8m as a result of the high levels of activity in the final quarter of the year
and the normalisation of supplier payment practices referred to above.

Within trade and other receivables, trade receivables increased which
reflected the timing of shipping late in the year, and advance payments to
suppliers increased reflecting the higher volume of NSA business where
advance payments are required.

In trade and other payables the reduction in trade payables was offset by an
increase in advance receipts from customers, which was driven by the higher
level of NSA business and the advance receipt on the £23m 40mm contract,

DEBT FACILITIES

The Group's principal debt facilities comprised £114.3m of private placement
loan notes, of which £51.4m was repaid on 13 Novermber 2017, and a £100.0m
revolving credit facility. The revolving credit facility was established in July
2014, is with a syndicate of three banks and had a four-year initial term,

On 27 April 2017 this was extended by one year to July 2019. The Group had
£106.0m (2016: £108.0m) of undrawn borrowing facilities at the year end.
The Group is subject to two key financial covenants, which are tested
quarterly. These covenants relate to the leverage ratio between
underlying EBITDA and debt; and the interest cover ratio between
underlying EBITDA and finance costs. The calculation of these ratios
involves the translation of non-Sterling denominated debt using average,
rather than closing, rates of exchange. The revolving credit facility and the
loan notes have differing covenant compliance calculations. The Group
was in compliance with the covenanis throughout the year.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The deficit on the Group's defined benefit pensicn schemes was
£0.6m (2016: £17.3m), measured in accordance with IAS 19 (Revised)
Employee Benefits.

The deficit relates 1o the Chemring Group Staff Pension Scheme (the
“Scheme™), a UK defined benefit scheme whose assets are held in a separately
administered fund. The Scheme was closed to future accrual in April 2012,

A fult actuarial valuation for the Scheme as at 6 April 2015 has been prepared
and updated to 31 October 2017, using the projected unit credit method. This
valuation shawed a deficit of £0.6m (2016: £17.3m). The reduction reflects the
funding structure agreed with the trustees, under which contributions of £5.0m
were paid in 2017, together with the effect of changes in actuarial assumptions,
The Group has given a bank guarantee and letters of credit totalling £7.2m
(2016: £8.5m) to the Scheme in respect of future contributions, which are
progressively reducing as contributions are paid under the agreed funding
structure.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group continues to invest in the infrastructure of its facilities, with
particular focus on enhancing safety and enhancing operational performance.
In the year £12.4m was spent on property, plant and equipment.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

R&D expenditure was £52.4m (2016: £57.8m). Continued investment in R&D
is a key aspect of the Group’s strategy, and levels of internalty-funded R&D are
expected to be maintained as investment in product development continues,
particularly within Sensors. An analysis of R&D expenditure is set out below:

2017 2016

Em £m

Customer-funded R&D 41.) 434
Internally-funded R&D

- expensed to the income statement 7.4 77

- capitalised 39 6.7

Total R&D expenditure 52.4 57.8

Amortisation of development and patent costs was £7./m (2016: £6.9m),
with the increase reflecting a number of previously capitalised projects
coming on-stream, A further increase in amortisation of development and
patent costs is anticipated for 2018 as additional Sensors projects complete
their development phase.



ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The strategic report includes both statutory measures and Alternative Performance Measures ("APMs”). The principal APMs presented are the
underlying measures of earnings which exclude discontinued operations, exceptional items, gain or loss on the movement on the fair value of derivative
financial instruments, and the amortisation of acquired intangibles. The term underying is not defined under IFRS and may not be comparable with similarty
titled measures used by other companies.

The directors believe that these APMs irmprove the comparability of information between reporting periods. All profit and eamings per share figures in this
strategic report relate to underlying business performance (as defined above) unless otherwise stated.

A reconciliation of underlying measures to statutory measures is provided below:

017 2016

Underlying MNon-underlying Statutory Underlying Non-underlying Statutory
Group: m m tro fm £rn £m
EBITDA 8l.0 (24.1) 56.9 73.8 (7.5) 66.3
Operating profit 55.4 (40.1) 15.3 48.5 (22.3) 26.2
Profis before taxation 44.1 (40.1) 4.0 340 (26.0) 8.0
Tax charge (8.1) 7.2 (0.9) {71 5.6 (1.5)
Profit after tax 36.0 32.9) 3.1 26.9 (20.4) 6.5
Basic earnings per share (pence) 12.9 (11.8) 1.1 10.3 {7.8) 25
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 12.6 (10.5) 1.1 10.1 (7.7) 2.4
Segments:
Countermeasures EBITDA 29.8 (2.6) 27.2 252 {09 243
Countermeasures operating profit i6.7 (4.0) i2.7 12.8 (1.1} 1.7
Sensors EBITDA 20.2 (5.4) k4.8 8.0 (0.8) 17.2
Sensors operating profit 14.3 (12.4) Ly 1.4 79 3.5
Energetics EBITDA 41.2 (16.2) 25.0 378 (3.3) 345
Energetics operating profit 348 (23.8) H.0 31.7 (10.8) 209

Further details are provided in note 3.

The adjustments comprise:

+ amortisation of acquired intangibles of £15.0m (2016: £14.8m)

= exceptional items of £2.3m (2016: £0.3m) relating to acquisition and disposal related costs

= exceptional items of £14.3m (2016: £5.4m) relating to business restructuring and incident costs

= exceptional items of £0.4m {2016: £0.6m credit) relating to claim related costs

+ exceptional items of £10.6m (2016: £nil) relating to the impairment of a business, of which £0.8m relates to taxation and is included in the tax
credit of £7.2m below

« gain on the movement in the fair value of derivative financial instruments of £1.7m (2016: £1.0m loss)

« tax credit on adjustments of £7.2m {2016: £5.6m)

« discontinued operations net credits of £3.5m (2016: £4.6m)

Andrew Lewis
Group Finance Director
18 January 20i8
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group's strategy is underpinned by focusing on a number of key
performance indicators ("KPIs™). The KPIs that the Board and senior
management utilise to assess Group performance are set out below.

These KPIs enable progress to be monitored on the impiementation of the
Group's strategy, levels of investment, operational performance and business
development. They atso give an early insight into how well the principal risks and
uncertainties are being managed. Similar indicators are used to review
performance by each of the Group's businesses, albeit that the exact nature of
these varies between business units to reflect the differing nature of their

oOpg&rations.

QORDERS

The Group uses a number of KPIs refating to
orders. These comprise order intake, order
boak and the level of forecast revenue for the
current financial year covered by arders
on-hand.

The closing order boek at 31 October 2017 of
£478.0m represents a decraase of |9% on the
prior year, principally reflecting the delivery of
some significant contracts in Energetics, offset
by stronger orders in Countermeasures. As at
31 Ccrober 2017, of the orders on hand of
£478.0m, £360.9m were expected to be
fulfilled in the year ending 31 Qctcber 2018.

far mere information see pages 12 to |7

REVENUE

Revenue provides a measure of business activity
and grawth, enabling customer behaviour
trends to be identified and acted upon. in the
case of business units that have experienced
operational and production issues, revenue
levels indicate their ability to deliver throughput
and fylfil customer orders.

22

ORDER INTAKE

ORDER BOOK

Group Group
£450m £478m
(2016: £371m) (2016: £593m)
Countermeasures

Group

£54/m

(201 6: £477m)

Countermeasures
V7

Sensors

Energetics

Countermeasures

Sensors

Energetics




SEGMENTAL UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT

Segmental underlying operating profit is stated
before charges for unallocated corporate costs
and non-underlying items, as shown in note 2 of
the Group financial statements. Segmental
underlying operating profit provides a consistent
year-on-year measure of the trading performance
of the Group's operations. It dees notinclude
significant non-recurring or exceptional costs that
would distort a comparative assessment, nor does
itinclude unallocated corporate costs associated
with operating a public company. The continuing
segmental underlying operating profitincreased by
18% during the year, reflecting the change in
revenue and the operating leverage effects
associated with the high fixed-cost nature of
certain of the Group's activities.

for more information see pages 12 ta 17

Group

£65.8m

(2016: £55.9m)

UNDERLYING OPERATING MARGIN

Underlying operating margin is based on
underlying segmental operating profit and
provides an assessment of the profitability of
the business. A focus on operating margin
allows the impact of changes in revenue and cost
base tc be monitored, enabling comparisons to
be made of management performance and
trading effectiveness. The changes in margin of
each segment reflect the markert conditions,
volume changes and performance improvement
actions, as set out In this strategic report. The
changes in margin also reflect the impact of
movements in revenue, offset by the benefit of
cost-saving measures.

Group
12.0%
(2016: 11.7%)

WORKING CAPITAL AND INVENTORY

Working capital is defined as inventories, trade
and other receivables, and trade and other
payables. The primary focus for improvement
within working capital is inventory.

Optimum inventory leveis drive both effective
staff utilisation and cost efficiency. £xcess
inventory results in second order costs such as
increased storage and inventory management
costs, the write-off of ageing or obsolete
inventory, and disposal costs, which can be
sighificant for energetic materials.

for more informat on see page 79

WORKING CAPITAL
Group

Countermeasures

Countermeasures

INVENTORY

Group

£131.5m

(2016: £122.0m)

Countermeasures

£97.6m

(2016: £104.8m)

Countermeasures

23
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS continued

CONTINUING UNDERLYING EARNINGS FER SHARE

Underlying earnings per share is a key measure
for the Group, reflecting the combined trading
performance together with the impact of its
funding structure and taxation. The increase in
the year reflects the Group's improved trading
performance together with lower interest and
tax costs.

Continuing underlying earnings
per share

Change from
previous year

12.9p

(2016: 10.3p)

DEBT TO UNDERLYING EBITDA

The ratio of underlying EBITDA 1o the Group's
debt levels is a clear indicator of the leverage
borne by the Group. The ratio is a specified
financial covenant within the Group's principal
debt finance faciliies, comprising the revolving
credit facility and the loan note agreements, and
the ratios under each of the measurement bases
required in these facilities form KPIs for the
Group. The basis of caleulation under the two
debr finance facilities differs in some regards,
notably in the use of gross debt and adjusted debt
measures in the loan note agreements, compared
to net debtin the revolving credit facility. The
covenant definitions differ from the definition used
to calculate the 0.99x as described in the strategic
report due to average, rather than year end,
foreign exchange rates are used to calculate debr.
The Group's aim over the madium-term is to
maintain the ratio of net debt to underfying
EBITDA to an average level of less than |.50x.

INTEREST COVER

Interest cover provides a simple measure of the
ratio between underlying EBITDA and the
finance costs incurred in servicing the Group’s
debt. Itis an important indicator for the Group,
and is a specified financial covenant under the
revolving credit facility and loan note
agreements. As with the ratio of debt to
underlying EBITDA, there are certain
differences in the bases of calculation of interest
cover under the two facilities.

24

Revolving credit facility!

2.9p

25%

(2016: 45%)

Loan note agreements?

|.03x

(2016: 1.15x)

| Acwial ratio of net debt to underlying EBITDA
(maximum allowed ratio of 3.00%)

|.40x

(2016: 1.89x)

2 Actual ratio of total debt to underlying EBITDA
{maximum allowed ratic of 3.00x)

Revolving credit facility’

Loan note agreements*

9.59x

(2016: 6.82x)

3 Actual ratic of underlying EBIT DA to finance
costs {mirumum allowed rauo of 4.00x)

943x

(2016: 6.54x)

4 Actual rave of underlying EBITDA to finance
costs (minimum allowed raue of 3.50x)




UNDERLYING CONTINUING O

Operating cash flow provides a measure of the
cash generated by the Group's trading. [t
represents the cash thatis generated to fund
tapital expenditure, interest payments, tax and
dividends. Given the Group's relatively
short-cycle manufacturing operations and with
working capital being improved through greater
efficiency, operating cash conversion closely
follows aoperating profit, although the Group
recognises that the timing of certain contracts
and subsequent payment can have a timing effect
from period to period. The Group's underlying
continuing operating cash flow was £47.1m during
the year, reflecting the change in underlying
operating profit and increase in working capital
fallowing the decision to normalise supplier
payment practices during the year.

SAFETY

Many of Chemring’s manufacturing activities
involve the use of hazardous substances and
energetic materials, and safety metrics are a
fundamental part of the key performance
indicators used to manage the business. All
incidents and near misses are reportad and
investigated, in order to share findings and
corrective actions throughout the Group.
The Group's key lagging indicators are the
number of incidents that result in lost time,
and the number of energetic incidents that
cause injury. In additien, the Group has a
number of leading indicators, principally the
level of near misses. The active reporting of
near misses by employees is encouraged in
arder to highlight potential risk issues and
enable these to be considered and addressed
on a timely basis. Each of these is reviewed and
resolved, gradually reducing risk.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

PERATING CASH FLOW

Underlying continuing operating
cash flow

47.lm

(2016: £81.4m)

Leading indicators®

2,26

(2016: 2,265)

5 MNear misses reperted and actioned

Injuries from energetic incidents®

(2016: 1)

4 Injuries arising

Lost time incidents

Lost time incident rate

Operational performance is measured using a series of indicators that include efficiency, labour utilisation and customer order performance. These
performance indicators are considered at business unit level, as the varying nature of the Group's operations mean that it is not appropriate to
consolidate this data. Improving operational performance is key to securing strong customer relationships and maximising returns fram production
activities. Closely monitored measures include gross margin percentages by business, on-time delivery of customer orders, overall manufacturing

utifisation and product development spend.
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HOW WE MANAGE RISK

RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION STRUCTURE

RD

sk e

AUDIT COMMITTEE

af the of mrcraal

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Ay e CeTiae

BUSINESS UNIT MANAGEMENT

M - Syl | Il

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for determining the nature and extent of risks it
is willing to accept in delivering the Group's strategy and running the
Group’s operations, and ensuring that risks are effectively managed across
the Group.

The Board reviews the Group risk register on a regular basis, and
cansiders whether the Risk Management Committee has appropriately
identified the principal risks to which the Group is exposed.

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is responsibie for reviewing in detail the
effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal contral, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and its risk management systems.

THE RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee reviews the business unit risk registers
on a regular basis, The Risk Management Committee is responsible for
identifying the principal risks to which the Group is exposed, monitoring
key mitigation plans, and maintaimng the Group risk register. All members
af the Executive Committee are also members of the Risk Management
Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group's risk management framework draws fundamentally from the
“Three Lines of Defence Methodology”, with the “First Line” being
day-to-day management of risk and maintenance of effective control
procedures at individual business units. The "Second Line” comprises
various risk management and control functions established at the
corporate management level designed to enhance and mamtor the First
Line. These functions inctude a Risk Management Committee, health,
safety and environmental management function, financial controls, and a
compliance function responsible for anti-corruption and legal compliance.
The “Third Line” comprises the Group’s internal audit function utilising
KPMG, who report directly to the Audit Commuttee.
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The management of each of the business units is responsible for the
identification, management and reporting of local risks, in accordance with
the Group's risk management framework. The business units’
management are also responsible for the maintenance of business unit risk
registers and the implementation of mitigation plans.

Each business unit is required to maintain a risk register identifying the key
risks to achievement of their current year's budget and their five year plan,
and their maost significant health and safety risks. The risk registers also
include an analysis of the likelihood and impact of each risk - before and
after mitigation actions are taken to manage the risk, together with details
of the miugation plans and progress against them. Each risk is

altocated an owner, who has responsibility for managing the risk.

The business unit risk registers are updated locally on a quarterly basis,
and are reviewed in detail by the Group Chief Executive, the Group
Finance Director and other members of the Executive Commirttee ar
quarterly review meetings with each of the businesses.

The Risk Management Committee also reviews the business unit risk
registers on a regular basis and, utilising the input from the businesses, the
Risk Management Committee identifies those principal risks which are
material to the Group as a whole. The Risk Management Committee also
considers carporate-level risks. These risks are collated on the Group risk
register, together with details of the applicable mitigation plans and risk
owners.

The current Group risk register comprises various risks including health,
safety and environmental risks, market-refated risks, political risks,
operational risks, legal and compliance risks, repytational risks and
financial risks. Details of the principal risks are set out on pages 28 to 33.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

In addition to reviewing the Group risk register on a regular basis, the
Board is also required to carry out an annual review of the effectiveness of
the Group's systems of internal control and risk management systems in
compliance with provision C2.3 of the UK Corporate Governance Code
(the "Code"). In the year under review, the Board considered the
following key features of the Group's risk management systems and
control procedures which operated during the year:

+ the Board assesses the key risks associated with achievement of the
Group's business objectives as part of the annual strategic planning
process and on a continuing basis thereafter;

» the perfarmance of each business against budget and the prior year is
reviewed on a monthly basis at both the operational management level
and by the Board;

+ the Group Chief Executive, the Group Finance Director and other
members of the Executive Committee attend quarterly review
meetings with each of the businesses. In the case of the US businesses,
formal Board meetings are also hefd quarterly, and these are attended
by the Group Chief Executive, the Group Finance Director and
external independent non-executive directors appointed in the US.
The US non-executive directors are required to provide guidance and
monitor governance in the US businesses throughout the year. An
external independent non-executve directoris also appointed to the
Board of the Group's Norwegian subsidiary;

» each business is required to comply with the Group's accounting policy
manual, which sets out formal procedures for incurring certain types
of expenditure and making coniractual commitments. Compliance
with the accounting policy manual is audited by the internal auditors,
whao report regularly to the Audit Committee on their findings;



» the Board retains primary responsibility for acquisitions znd disposals,
and financing arrangements for the Group. Treasury management, iT
strategy, insurance and significant legal matters are dealt with centrally
from the Group head office, and the Board receives regular reports on
each of these items. Reviews of the Group's pensions, insurance and
physical risk management arrangements are carried out by external
advisers on a periodic basis;

» the Group Director of Safety, supported by business-specific health
and safety management committees, co-ordinates and controls the
activities of each business in relation to health, safety and
environmental matters, which are a key focus for the Board in view of
the nature of the Group's operations. The Group Chief Executive is
the Board member nominated with specific responsibility for health
and safety;

+ the Group maintains a Bribery Act compliance manual incorporating
its anti-cerruption pelicies and procedures; and

« the Board has established a broad internal audit function utilising the
services of KPMG. In addition to reviewing financial controls, the
internal auditors review a wide range of non-financial processes and
procedures, which provides additional assurance to the Board on the
adequacy of the Group’s internal controls. The internal auditors
report to the Audit Committee on a guarterly basis, and progress on
identified improvement actions is monitored and tracked,

The Board confirms that it has reviewed the effectuveness of the Group's
systems of internal controt and risk management which were in place
during the financial year ended 31 October 2017, and it confirms that:

+ there is an ongeing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
principal risks faced by the Company and the Group;

+ systems of internal control and risk management compliant with the
Code and the Turnbull Guidance were in place throughout the year
and have remained in place up to the date of approval of these financial
statements; and

« the Group's internal control and risk management systems are
regularly reviewed by the Board, and broadly comply with the
Guidance on Risk Management, Internal Control and Related Financial
and Business Reporting published by the Financial Reporting Council.

The Board acknowledges, hawever, that the internal control systems can
only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance against material
mismanagement or loss of the Group’s assets. The Board will therefore
continue to take steps to embed internat control and risk management
further into the operations of the Group, and to deal with any areas of
improvement which come to the attention of management and the Board.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

The principal risks and uncertainties which could have a material impact on the
Group’s performance and could cause actual results to differ materially from
expected and historical results have not changed significantly from those set out
in the Group's 2016 annual report and accounts and the 2017 interim report.

The principal risks to which the Group is exposed are set out below, together with details of
their potential impact; the likelihood of occurrence {on a scale of | to 3, with | being the most
likely); an indication of whether the trend in the risk exposure is increasing, decreasing or
broadly unchanged: and the mitigation actions taken to manage the rigk,

LINKS TO STRATEGY:

Hold the ground already won

Transform cur capabilities

Principal risks are identified by the Risk Management Committee based on the likelihaod of Invest for growth Nl Decrease
occurrence and the potential impact on the Group as a whaole.
HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS
Health and salety
RISK LIKELIHOCD OF POTENTIAL MITIGATION
DESCRIPTION OCCURRENCE IMPACTS ACTIONS TREND
* The Group's operaticns which + Incidents may occur which + The Board believes that responsibility for the delivery of
utilise energetic materials are could result in harm to world-class safety standards is an integral part of

subject to inherent health and

= Weak culture and individual
hehaviours may lead to bypassing
of rules and procedures, and
unsafe acts involving energetic

processes.

= Upset conditions can occur
during manufacturing operations
which may expose emplayees
to mcreased quantities of
hazardous materials.

fatalities.

¢ The handling and disposal of
energetics waste can resukt in
unplanned ignitions.

employees, the temporary
safety risks. shutdown of facllities or other
disruption to manufacturng

+ The Group may be exposed
to financial loss, regulatory
Operauons. action, and potential habikities

for workplace inuries and

aperational management accountability, The Board is
committed to ensuring that the Group's leadership operates
with health and safety as the top priority, and that the
strength of the Group's safety culture and the quality of us
protective systems deliver operations where all employees
and visitors feel and are absolutely safe.

= All businesses were subject 1¢ an audit of ther compliance
against the Group Safety Policy Manuat (the "GSPM™)
duning the year. The GSPM, which was introduced in 2016,
sets out the best practice standards expected of ail the
Group's businesses. Each business was awarded an initial
“compliance score”, and specific acuons were agreed ta
drive identfied improvements in compliance. The scores
for each business will be momitored on an angoing basis. A
health and safety warkstream is included in the Operational
Excellence Programme, focusing on culture development,
communication rmechanisms, competence managernent and
wellbemg,

¢+ The Group's Safety Leadership Programme continues to be

rolled-out across the Group, helping to improve culure and
behaviours.

The Group continues to invest in state-of-the-art process
safety systerns and equipment. The Group's safety and loss
prevention programmes require detailed pre-construction
reviews of process changes and new operations, and safety
audts of operations are undertaken on a regular basis.

All businesses are expected to pro-actively manage their
own risks but, in addition, the most significant site nsks at
each business and therr associated mitigation programmes
are reviewed by the Risk Management Committee.

All employees are encouraged to report potential hazards,
and to raise any health and safety concerns through the
appropnate channels.

.

Health and safety is included on the agenda at every Board
meeting, and is discussed at the manthly Group Executive
Committee meeting. Further details on the Group's
approach to health and safety are set out in the corporate
responsibiity review.
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS continued

Environmental laws and regulations

RISK
DESCRIPTION

LIKELIHOOD OF POTENTIAL
OCCCURRENCE IMPACTS

MITIGATION
ACTIONS

TREND

» The Group could incur
substantial costs, including
remediation costs, resource
restoration costs, fines and
penalties, or be exposed to
third-party property damage
or personal nury claims, as a
resukt of liabilities associated
with past pracuces or
violauons of environmental
laws or non-compliance with
environmental permits.

« The Group's operations and
ownership or use of real property
are subject to a number of federal,
state and Jocal environmental laws
and regulauons, induding those
relating to discharge of hazardous
rmaterials, remediation of
contaminated sites, and restoration
of damage to the environment.

= At certan sites that the Group
owns or operates, or formerly
owned or operated, there is
known or potential contamination
for which thare 15, or may be,
a requirement te remediate or
provide resource restoraton.

= All of the Group’s businesses are cerufied 1o the
envircnmental management systemn [SO {4001, which
requires the settng of environmental goals and cbjectives
focused on local aspects and impacts.

* The Group has menitoring programmes at certain sites,
for which appropnate financial provision has been made. In
certain circumstances. the Group procures environmental
liability insurance, subject to applicable insurance conditions.

MARKET RISKS

Possible defence budget cuts

RISK
CESCRIPTION

LIKELIHOOD OF POTENTEAL
OCCURRENCE [IMPACTS

MITIGATION
ACTIONS

TREND

* Defence spending depends
on 2 complex mix of poliucal
considerations, budgetary
constraints and the reguirements
of the armed forces to address
specific threats and perform
certain missians. Defence

= The Groug's financial
performance may be
adversely impacted by lower
defence spending by its major
customers, either generally
or in relaton to certain
programmes,

spending may therefore be subject =« Shortterm trading and cash
to significant fluctuations from COMSLrAINGs may impact on
year to year,

the Group's abllity to invest in
langer-term technalogies and
capabilities.

* Whilst we anticipate that averall
defence budgets in many of our
key markets will remain subdued
but stable in the short ta medium
term, there may be downward
pressure on defence budgets in
certain key programme areas.

+ In recognition of the issues which have affected the
Group's radiional NATO markets in recent years, business
developrnent activities have been focused more on non-
NATO markets, particularly in the Middle East. The Group
continues to leverage the benefits of its local presence in
the UAE.

= The Group continually assesses whether its planned organic
growth strategles and product developments align with
government priorities for future funding. Efforts are being
focused, in particular, on the US Programs of Record, and
in the UK security market and Australia, where significant
growth is anticipated over the next ten years.

+ Acuons continue to be taken to restructure and "right-
size” the businesses, and reduce overheads, to ensure the
businesses are sustainable and profitable, even in difficult
market conditions.
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Strategic report

PRINCIPAL RISKS continued

MARKET RISKS continued

Tirming and value of orders

RISK LIKELIHQOD OF POTENTIAL MITIGATION
DESCRIPTION OCCURRENCE MPACTS ACTIONS TREND
+ The Group's profits and cash flows - Anunmugated delay in « Maximising order mntake remains a key objective for =
are dependent, to a significant 2 the receipt of orders or the businesses. A Group-wide customer relatienship
extent, on the timing of award canceflation of existing management system has been established and implemented !
of defence contracts. In general, contracts could affect more fully over the last year, as one of the key projects
the majority of the Group's the Group's earnings and established under the sales and markenng workstream of
contracts are of a relayvety short achievernent of its budget in the Operational Excellence Programme. .
duration and, with the exception any given financial year. = The businesses continue to pursue long-term, muki-year
of framewo:< contracts \Mthl key + If the Group’s businesses are contracts with their major customers wherever possible.
custormers, do not cover multi- :
year requirements unable to continue trading - The Group has undertaken several restructuring projects
) ’ profitably d“_""g periods ‘?f in recent years, aimed at restaring the profitability of those
+ Delays in the placement of orders lower order intake, financial Group businesses which have suffered most from order
by certain NATO customers, as performance will detericrate delays,
a result of budgetary constraints, and assets may be impaired . o . ;
may continue in the short (o ite optimisation p}ans continug o be re fned 1o ensure that
mediurn terrm. the Group utilises its manufacturing fadilities as efficiently as
possible, within the constraints imposed by export controt
+ Whilst the Middle East has legislation and customer requirements.
become an important market for
the Group, it has become more
volatile as a result of increased
hestilities in the region and the
collapse in oil prices in recent
years.
Contract-related risks
RISK LIKELIHCOD OF POTENTIAL MITIGATICN
DESCRIPTION OCCURRENCE IMPACTS ACTIONS TREND
= The Group'’s government = The Group may suffer + The Group negotiates with customers to ensure the most =
contracts may be terminated at 3 financial loss f its contracts favourable contractual terms are agreed. Areas of significant
any time and may contain other are terminated by customers, judgment or enhanced risk require the review and approval
unfavourable provisions. or & terrmination arising out of of the executive directors.
= The Group may need to the Group's default may hgye * The Group has instigated a commercial and contract risk
cornemit resources in advance of an adverse effect on its ability management training programme during the year, with a
contracts becoming fully-effective, to re—compe"ie ';:r future view to improving future contracting practices.
contracts and orders,
£ ensure prompe fulﬁlme‘nlt of . * The Group endeavours to negotiate stage payments with
orders or to enable conditions * Unfavourable commercial its customers wherever possible, in order to minimise
precedent to be met Foma terms m?y adverseiy exposure to significant cash cutflows on cortracts which
impact the Group's working may be terminated at short notice.
capital pesiton, particularly if
the receipt of payments by the
Group is delayed.
Political risks
RISK LIKELIHOOD OF POTENTIAL MITIGATION
DESCRIPTION OCCURRENCE IMPACTS ACTIONS TREND
+ The Group is acuve In several + The Group's business in = The Group's businesses stnve to maintan refationships at all Py
countries that are suffering from certain countries may be levels within the poliucal structure of certain key countres,
politcal, social and economic adversely affected in a way in order to ensure that they are aware of and can react to
instability. that (s material to the Group's proposed changes, if and when they accur.
+ In addivon, there is a significant financial positon an‘d the + Wherever possible, the businesses implernent financing
nsk of palitical unrest and changes results of its operatons. arrangements, such as letrers of credit and advance
in the political structure in certain « Polincal changes could impact payments, for contracts with high-risk customers, which are
nen-NATO countries to which future defence expenditure intended to mitigate the impact of a deteriaration in the
the Group currently sells. strategy and the Group's customer’s financial position and in certain crcumstances,
ability to export products to they may also procure politcal risks insurance.
certain countries.
+ During periods of unrest, delays
n obtaining export licences can
result n delayed revenues.
OPERATIONAL RISKS
Management resource
RISK LIKELIHOOD OF PCTENTIAL MITIGATION
DESCRIPTION OCCURRENCE IMPACTS ACTIONS TREND




« The Group requires competent
management to lead it through
the next stage of its development.
In challenging markets, there is an
increased risk of loss of key personndl.

* As the shape of the Group's business
also changes, with an increased
focus in high-technology areas such
as cyber-secunty, there 1s a need to
ensure that the businesses build and
retain an appropnate skill base o
enable them te compete successfully
in new markets and product areas.

* If key personnel are not
incentivised appropniately to
remain within the Group, its
operations may suffer from
loss of management expertise
and knowledge.

« Failure ta recruit sufficient
suitably-qualified personnel
in key areas of the business
may result in the Group faling
to achieve its future growth
aspiratons.

* The Group has appeinted an Organisational Development
Director to focus on culture change as part of the =
Operational Excellence Programme, emplayee engagement
and the development of the Group’s personnel.

* Incentivisabon arrangements have been streamlined and
improved in certan areas of the business, to ensure that
employees are suicably incentivised to deliver key strategic
objectives.

= Succession plans are being developed further throughout
the business.

Manufacturing risks

RISK LIKELIHOOD OF POTENTIAL MITIGATICN

DESCRIPTION OCCURRENCE IMPACTS ACTHONS TREND

* The Group's manufacturing activities * Interruptions to producton and  + One of the key objectives of the Operational Excellerce ¢
may be exposed to business 2 sales could resultin financial Prograrmme is ta improve the Group's “night-first-time” and

continuity rsks, arising from plant
failures, supplier interruptions or
quality issues.

* Site consclidation plans may not be
effectively implemented.

* Planned new facility developments
may be delayed as a result of
operational issues.

loss, reputational damage and
loss of future business.

« Failure to complete planned
site consolidation activities
may result in long-term
inefficiencies, and increasing
misalignment of arganisavonal
skilis and market
requirements.

» A delay in completing new
manufactunng facilities, such as
those planned in Norway and
in Tennessee, could constrain
capacity and limit future
business growth.

on-tume delivery performance,

+ The Group continues to refine its requirements for
reporting of key performance indicators, in order 1o
provide better visibility on operatonal performance, and
to facilizate the identification of potential production and
quality 1ssues at an early stage.

= All of the Group's businesses are required to prepare
business contnuity plans.

+ The Group insures certain business interruption risks
where appropriate.

Detailed plans are developed for all restructuring and
consoldation projects. Additional dedicated resource is
being employed to oversee key investment projects, and
progress will be closely monitored by the Group Executive
Committee.

Technaology risks

RISK LIKELIHOOD OF POTENTIAL MITIGATION

DESCRIPTION CCCURRENCE IMPACTS ACTIONS TREND

+ The Group may fail to maintain its = Falure to obtain production » Close relatonships are maintained with customers on all ¢
pasition on key future programmes 2 contracts on major key future programmes, to ensure preduct and capability

due to issues with capability
development, technology transfer or
cost-effective manufacture.

+ The Group needs to continually
add new praducts 1o its current
range, through innovation and
continuing emphasis on research
and development. New product
development may be subject to
delays, or may fail to achieve the
requisite standards to satisfy volume
manufacturing requirements and the
production of products against high
reliability and safety criteria to meet
customer specifications.

* The Group also needs to ensure that
it continues to upgrade its existing
product range to compete with
emerging technologies.

development programmes,
particularly the US Programs
of Record, may significantly
impact the future performance
and value of individual
businesses,

* Failure to camplete planned
product development and
upgrades successfully may
have financral and reputaticnal
impacts, and may result in
obsolescence or loss of future
business.

develepment aligns with customer requiremnents,

* The Operational Excellence Programme includes a
workstream on new product development, which will
shape the Group's future technology investment approach,
i order to ensure that resources are applied appropriately
across the Group in support of the five year plan.

« ‘Working groups have been established to drive and
co-ordinate the Group's technology growth in certain
kay areas, such as countermeasures, detection and cyber
security.
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Strategic report

PRINCIPAL RISKS continued

LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE RISKS

Product liability and other customer claims

RISK LIKELUHOOD GF POTENTIAL
DESCRIPTION OCCURRENCE {MPACTS

MITIGATION
ACTIONS

TREND

« The Group may be subject 1o = Substanual clams could harm
product liabllity and other claims n the Group's business and its
from customers or third parties, financial positon.
in connection with (1) the non-
compliance of products or services
with the customer’s requirements,
due to fauks in design or
producton; (il) the delay or failed
supply of the products or the
services indicated in the contrac;
or {iii) possible malfuncnon or
misuse of products.

* In addivon, any accident,
product failure, incident or
liabilizy, even ff fully insured,
could negatively affect the
Group's reputation amoeng
customers and the public,
thereby making it more
difficult for the Group o
compete effecuvely.

* Asmany of the Group's products
are single use devices, it is often
impaossible to conduct functional
testing without destroying the
product. and this increases the risk
of passible product failure, either
in use or dunng customers’ owh
sample-based functional tests.

+ Marenial breaches in the
performance of contractual
obligations may also lead to
contract termination and the
calling of performance bonds.

= The busnesses maintain ngorous control of their production
processes, monitoring criticzl parameters an a batch or unit
basis. State-of-the-art techniques, including staustical process
control or Six Sigma, are applied and, where appropniate,
processes are automated 1o reduce the scope for human
error. Detailed assessments of incoming components
and matenals are conducted to ensure compliance with
speafications

Product liability claims from third parties for damage to
property or perscns are generally covered by the Group's
insurance policies, subject to applicable insurance condivons.

Compliance and corruption risks

RISK LIKELIHOOD OF POTENTIAL MITIGATION

DESCRIPTION OCCURRENCE IMPACTS ACTIONS TREND

= The Group operates in over » Non-compliance could result  « The Group has a central legal and compliance function =
fifty countries worldwide, ina 3 in administrative, civil ar which assists and monitors all Group businesses, supported

highly-regulated environment, and
is subject to the applicable laws
and regulations of each of these
jurisdictions. The Group must
ensure that all of its businesses,
its employees and third parties
prowvding services on rts behalf
comply with all relevant legal
obligations.

cnminal liabilities, and could
expose the Group to fines,
penalties, suspension or
debarment, and reputational
damage.

= Loss of key operzting permits
and approvals could resutt in
temporary or permanent site
closures, and ioss of business.

The nature of the Group'’s
operations could also expose o
government investigations rElatlng
ta import-export controls. money-
laundering. false accounting, ang
corruption or bribery.

= The Group requires a significang
purmber of permits, licences and
approvals to operate its business,
which may be subject to nan-
renewal or revocation.

by dedicated internal legal resource in the US.

The Group operates under a Global Cade of Business
Principles, which stipulates the standard of acceptable
business conduct required from all employees and third
parties acting on the Group’s behalf. The Group has also
adopted a Bribery Act Compliance Manual. incarporating all
of its anu-bribery policies and procedures.

A significant proportion of the Group’s management
continue ta receive traiming in relation to ethics and anti-
corTuption on a regular basis.

= The Group is currently co-operating with the Serious
Fraud Office in relavon te a self-report made by Chemring
Technology Selutians Limited, as referred to in note 36 of
the Group financial statements.
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REPUTATIONAL RISKS

Cyber-related risks

RISK
DESCRIPTION

LIKELIHOOG OF POTENTIAL
OCCURRENCE IMPACTS

MITIGATION
ACTIONS

TREND

= Cyber-secunty and related nsks
are key emerger: areas of critical
importance for all businesses,
particularly for those involved In
the defence and security sector,
Threats can emanate from a
wide variety of sources and
could target various systems for a
wide range of purposes. making
response particularly difficule.
The data and systems which
need to be protected include
customer-classified or sensitive
information, commercially-
sensitive information, employee-
refated data and safery-criuical
manufacturng systems.

critical systems falures, or nts
mtellectual property, or that
of its customers. may fall into
the hands of third parties.

+ In addition to business
interrupuen and financial
loss, the Group may suffer
reputational damage, and its
business of providing cyber-
security services Lo customers
may be irreparably damaged.

n = The Group may suffer from

A threar assessment has been completed, and an acuon plan
to counter the Group's :dentified major threats has been
implemented.

The Group adopts a number of cyber-security defence
measures, encompassing, as appropriate to the nature of
the threat and sensitmty of data or systems being protected,
hardware, software, system, process or people-based
solutions. Where appropriate, government or commercial
accreditation of networks and systems is obtained in
support of the overall cyber-security programme.

All of the Group's UK businesses have achieved the “Cyber
Essentials” accreditation as a minimum standard, and the US
businesses have either achieved, or are working towards,
compliance with the US DFARS standard.

A review of the Group’s IT and security systems is included
within the internal audit programme.

FINANCIAL RISKS

+ Detals of the financal risks to which the Group is potentially exposed and details of mitigating factors are set out in the finandal review and note 20 of the Group financial

statements.
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Strategic report

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY REVIEW

The Group acknowledges its obligation to ensure the responsible operation of its business
at all times, and is fully committed to sound and ethical business conduct in its interaction
with key stakeholders (sharehclders, employees, customers, business partners and
suppliers), governments and regulators, communities and society, and the environment,

THE GROUP’S APPROACH

The Board has overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining the
Group’s policies in this area, and the Greup Chief Executive is accountable to
the Board for ensuring that the Group's businesses adhere to these policies.

The Board recognises that the long-term success of the Group will be
enhanced by a positive interaction with all of its stakeholders. and has
determined that the Group's corporate responsibility initiatives should be
focused on the following key areas:

* health and safety;

*  employee support and developrnent;
« environmental protecticn; and

« ethical business conduct.

The Board intends that the Group's corporate respensibility approach will
be fully embedded within its business units, and the senior management
bonus plan incorporates specific objectives in the above areas.

Further details of the Group's approach are set out below.

IN THE WORKPLACE

Health and safety

Policy and practices

The Board recognises that the highest levels of safety are required in
order to protect employees, product users and the general public. The
Board believes that all incidents and injuries are preventable, and that all
employees have the right to expect to return home safely at the end of
every working day.

The Group Chief Executive has overall responsibility for health, safety and
environmental matters across the Group. The Group Director of Safety
reports directly to the Group Chief Executive, and is responsible for the
effective administration and implementation of the Group’s health, safety
and environment strategy. The Group Director of Safety is a member of
the Group Executive Committee and reports on the performance of all
businesses against agreed targets and objectives. The Group Chief
Executive reports monthly to the Board on all key health and safety issues.

The Board requires that all businesses systematically manage their health
and safety hazards. set objectives, and monitor progress by regular
measurement, audit and review. Each managing director is responsible for
the management of health and safety within their business, and for
providing adequate rescurces to satisfy the Board's requirements. All
managing directors have heatth and safety related objectives incorporated
within their annual bonus plan.

Managers and supervisors in the Group's businesses are required to
enforce procedures, and to provide leadership and commitment to
promote and embrace a positive health and safety culture. The Board
emphasises the importance of individual responsibility for heafth and
safety at all levels of the organisation, and expects employees to report
potential hazards, to be involved in implementing sclutions, and to adhere
to rules and procedures.

A key element in the continual imprevement of health and safety
management is sharing best practice and lessons learnt from incidents
acrass the Group’s businesses and the wider industry. Acadents,
incidents and near misses are investigated, with actions generated to
prevent recurrence.

Within the Group's Operational Exceflence Programme activities have
been identified that specifically relate to health and safety, including
further work on culture development. communication mechanisms,
competence management and wellbeing.

34

Energetic events

There was one energetic incident of note during the year; an ignition within
our primary explosives manufacturing facility in Scotland. This is a remaote
process, no one was hurt and all safety systermns worked as designed.

Strategy
The Group’s safety improvement programmes fit into three strategic areas:

Physical

The Group continues to invest in engineering solutions to remove people
from hazards. This includes the automation of operations, increasing the
number of processes that are conducted remotely and further developing
protection systems. All business activities that expose employees to 2 high
level of hazard have been identified and improvement plans developed to
eliminate or reduce the exposure.

Systems

All of the Group's businesses are certified to the international health and
safety management system OHSAS 18001, The businesses receive regular
internal, custemer and regulator audits.

Additionally, all businesses were audited in the year for compliance with
the Group Safety Policy Manual and improvement plans established.
The Group Safety Policy Manual specifies industry-leading performance
practices and arrangements.

People

The Group continues to focus on feadership, culture and behaviours
through the Safety Leadership Programme, which is delivered at all levels
across the Group.

Lost time incidents

The number of lost time incidents is ane of the key performance
indicators monitored by the Group. The Group collects and reports lost
time incident rates using the US Occupational Safety and Health
Administration rules.

In 2017 the lost time incident rate deteriorated slightly but still compares
well to our peers and the wider industry. None of the lost time incidents
during the year were assoclated with our energetic materials or processes.

The Group'’s historical lost time incident rate {number of lost time
incidents per 100 employees per year) is as follows:

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
0.59 035 057 043 0.83
Employees

The Board recognises the valuable contribution that the Group's
employees continde to make 1o its success, and aims to provide a working
environment that reflects and rewards this.

At 31 Ocrober 2017 the Group had 2,651 (2016: 2,577) employees based
in four countries.

Employment practices

The Group’s policy is to provide equal opportunities for all employees,
frrespective of race, nationality, gender, sexual orientation, marital status,
religion or political belief, disability or age. The Group is committed to
meering, at 8 minimum, the labour rights and legislation requirements in
each country in which it operates and, in practice, often exceeds these.
The Group's employment practices policies are introduced at newly-
acquired businesses at the earliest opportunity after they join the Group.



Human rights

The Group deoes not have a stand-alone human rights policy but its
practices and pohicies adhere to internationally-recognised human
rights principles.

A statement on the Group’s compliance with the Modern Slavery Act
2015 can be found on the Group's website at www.chemring.co.uk.

Gender diversity
A breakdown by gender of the number of persons who are directors of
the Company, senior managers and other employees is set out below.

The Board currently has one female member, and remains committed to a
minimum of at least 25% female representation on the Board. The Board
recognises the importance of premoting diversity across the Group.

Seniar managers are generally directors and functional heads within head
office and subsidiary companies.

Directors

Senior Managers

All Employees

Ethnic Diversity

Non-white @8 White B Female Il Male B

Devetopment and training

The Group continues to address training and development requirements for
employees at all {evels within the organisation. All businesses consider training
needs for their employees at a local level, in order to ensure that they have
the right skill base to deliver their five year plan. The Board aiso reviews
future management requirements and succession plans on an ongoing basis.

In the UK, Roke operates successful undergraduate placements,
internships and graduate development programmes, which have received
external recogmtion.

The Group has appointed an Organisational Development Director to
oversee employee development programmes across the businesses, drive
impravement in operational effectiveness and promorte culture change.

Benefits

The Group aims to provide all employees with an attractive and
competitive benefits package. US employees receive health care and
selected other benefits.

The Board is keen to encourage employees to join share schemes in
order that they can share in the future success of the Group, and savings-
related share plans are therefore offered to employees where appropriate.

Coemmunications

The Group pursues a policy of employee communication through
meetings (including team briefings and works councils) and in-house
rmagazines by which employees are made aware of the progress of the
Group and the businesses in which they work. The businesses also engage
with their employees through representative bodies and trade unions.

A Group magazine, "Chemring-i", is published on a bi-annual basis and is
distributed to all employees.

IN THE ENVIRONMENT

Policy and practices

All of the Group's businesses are certified to the environmental
management system 15O 14001, which requires the setting of
environmental goals and objectives focused on local aspects and impacts,
In addition, expectations are set for energy usage, waste generation and
water utilisation, and performance is monitared across the Group.

Land quality

The Chemring Energetic Devices facility in Chicago, USA, is located on a
site which has “superfund” status under the US contaminated land regime.
The business continues to work with consultants and the regulatory
authorities to ensure that its legal obligations in relation to this matter are
fully satisfied.

The Group carries a £3.1m (2016: £4.1m) provision in respect of
environmental liabilities, which the Board considers to be adequate (see
note 21 of the Group financial statements).

Incidents
There were no significant environmental incidents in the year.

Performance

Greenhouse gas emissions

The Group is required to report on all of the emission sources of entities that
fall within its consolidated financial statements, as specified under the
Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ Report) Regulations
2013. The Group daes not have responsibility for any emission sources of
entities which are not included in its consclidated financial statements,

Absolute values have been converted to carbon dioxide equivalents using
the UK Government Conversion Factors for Company Reporting 2017,
The reporting period covered aligns with the Group's financial year
ended 31 Qctober 2017. The Group is not required to report on its
Scope 3 emissions.
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Strategic report

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY REVIEW continued

Scope | emissions

Quanuty Canversian COe

Combusuon of fuel n any premises. machinery or equipment aperated. owned or contralled by the Group (Mwh) factar {rannes)
Gas 31,357 0.184 5770
Heating oil 7,109 0,268 1,905
Liquid petreleum gas 1,980 0.215 426

Quznury Cenversion COe

Fuels cansumed by company-owned and leased vehicles, excluding business travel and employee commuting {tonnes) factor (tonnes)
Diesel 1G8 3.099 335
Liquid petroleum gas 86 2.940 253
Petroleum B4 2.598 252
TOe

The operauon or control of any manufacturing process by the Group (tonnes}
On-site waste incineration 1,699
Total Scope | emissions 10,640

With reference to the six Kyoto substances, the Group does not emit hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons or sulphur hexafluoride. Values for carbon

dioxide, methane and nitrous oxides are included in the above figures.

Scope 2 emissions

Quantity Conversion COe

Electriaity: (Mwh) factor {tennes)

Australia 1,218 0.81360 931
Norway 41,684 0.01372 572
UK 16,272 0.35156 5,721
USA 29,328 0.49845 14,619
Total Scope 2 emissions 21,503
The Group uses revenue for intensity measurement, which it considers to be the most reliable comparator.

017 2016

Total emissions {tonnes CO,) 32,543 37,640
Group revenue (£m) 547 477
Total €O, per £m of revenue 59 73

The UK businesses participate in the CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme, with the exception of Chemring Energetics UK, which operates under a Climate

Change Agreement.

Vaste
The waste total has increased due to the inclusion of previously unreported waste streams.
2007 2016 2015 2014 2003
Tonnes Tonnes Tonnes Tannes Tonnecs
Recycled, non-hazardous 945 956 968 731 2,240
Recycled, hazardous 652 64 287 262 226
Not recycled, non-hazardous 1,343 782 748 659 1,080
Not recycled, hazardous 321 942 696 401 490
Total 3,261 2,744 2,699 2,053 4,036
Wyater 2017 2016 W15 2014 2013
m? m* m m} mt
Total water consumption 583,917 682,185 721,401 924,889 1,606,54|
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IN THE COMMUNITY

Helping others

The Board recognises that each of the Group’s businesses has an important
role to play in its local community.

The Board operates a charitable policy, which confirms its commitment to
support selected charitable causes with a focus on the military and armed
services, and those linked to the focal communities in which the Group's
businesses operate. Each business has its own locally-held charity budget,
and at a Group level, charitable donaticns are considered on a monthly
basis by the Executive Committee. The Group continues to sponsor the
British Army’s Parachute Regiment display team, the Red Devils.

In addition to making cash donations, the Group also encourages and
supports empioyees who undertake voluntary work in the local
community, where appropriate. During the year, employees donated their
time and services on a wide range of projects, several of which had an
educational bias.

The Group is iInvolved with a number of educational initiatives and has
relationships with several universities, whereby funding 1s provided for
students’ research activities.

Local impact

With regards to the impact of the Group’s manufacturing activities on the
local community, at locations where operations may inconvenience
neighbours through product procfing, the businesses liaise with local
residents to minimise any impact. The Group is also cognisant of the
potential impact of its operations oh the local environment, and is
addressing this through its environmental strategy.

IN THE MARKETPLACE

Policy on the Sale of Goods and Services

The Board has adopted a Policy on the Sale of Goods and Services, which
provides guidance to all stakeholders on the products and services that
the Group will supply, to which customers and te which countries, and
sets out a clear definition of what the businesses will not supply. All Group
businesses are required to comply with this policy, which addresses both
legal and reputational considerations with regards to certain products.
The policy is reviewed and updated on a regular basis.

Ethics and business conduct

The Group has adopted a Global Code of Business Principles, which
requires its employees, its businesses and all third parties who act on the
Group's behalf to comply with the Group's standards of acceptable
business conduct and applicable laws and regulations in all of the countries
in which the Group operates.

Anti-bribery and corruption
The Group's Bribery Act Compliance Manual incorporates all of its
anti-corruption policies and procedures, including the following:

= requirements for bribery risk assessments to be carried ourt as parrt of
normal cperating procedures;

* Group-wide policies and procedures on the appointment of all sales
partners and other third party advisers, stipulating due diligence
and contractual requirements, approval levels, and monitoring and
review processes;

» pelicies and procedures relating to third party service providers
and suppliers;

= regular training for management and employees working within
commercial, sales and marketing, finance and human resource
funcuons; and

= policies and procedures on the giving and receiving of gifts and
hospitality.

The Group's US businesses have an ethical compliance programme to
satisfy US Government requirements for ethical training for employees,
compliance audits, a confidential reporting line for employees, and related
investigation procedures.

The Group has a whistleblowing policy and procedures in place which
enable all employees to rzise concerns, in confidence, about possible
Improprieties.

These arrangements reflect the requirements of the UK Bribery Act 2010,

STRATEGIC REPORT

Cautionary statement

This report contains forward-looking statements that are based on current
expectations or beliefs, as well as assumptions about future events. These
forward-looking statements can be identified by the fact that they do not
relate only to historical or current facts. Forward-looking statements often
use words such as anticipate, target, expect, estimate, intend, plan, goal,
believe, will, may, should, would, could, is confident, or other werds of
similar meaning. Undue reliance should not be placed on any such
statements because they speak only as at the date of this document and,

by their very nature, they are subject tc known and unknown risks and
uncertainties and can be affected by other factors that could cause actual
results, 2nd Chemring's plans and objectives, to differ materially from those
expressed or implied in the forward-locking statements.

There are a rumber of factors which could cause actual resuits to differ
materially from those expressed or implied in forward-locking
statements. Among the factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those described in the forward-looking statements are;
increased competition, the loss of or damage to one or more key
customer relationships, changes to customer ordering patterns, delays in
obrtaining custamer approvals for engineering or price level changes, the
failure of one or more key suppliers, the outcome of business or industry
restructuring, the cutcome of any litigation, changes in economic
conditions, currency fluctuations, changes in interest and tax rates,
changes in raw material or energy market prices, changes in laws,
regulations or regulatory policies, developments in legal or public policy
doctrines, technalogical developments, the failure to retain key
management, or the key timing and success of future acquisition
opportunities or major investment projects.

Chemring is under no obligation ta revise or update any forward-locking
statement contained within these financial statements, regardless of
whether those statements are affected as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise, save as required by law and regulations.

The strategic report on pages 4 to 37 has been approved by the Board of
directors and signed on its behalf by:

Michael Flowers
Group Chief Executive
18 January 2018

37

v UNV el DNNY 21d dNOYS INIMWAHD

L1565 NNQT



LG S_NNO IOV ONY 1HT:3: TWINNY 2714 dNCYD ONIHWIAHD

Governance

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CARL-PETER FORSTER
Non-Executive Chairman

MICHAEL FLOWERS
Group Chief Executive

ANDREW LEWIS
Group Finance Director

SARAH ELLARD
Group Legal Director
& Company Secretary

Board length of service
(as at 18 Jan 18):
| year, 8 months

Board length of service
(as at 18 Jan 18):
3 years, 7 months

Board length of service
(as at 18 jan 18):
I year

Board length of service
(as at 18 Jan 18):
6 years, 4 months

Length of service with the
Group (as at 18 Jan 18):
| year, 8 months

Length of service with the
Group (as at I8 Jan |8):
Il years, | | months

Length of service with the
Group (as at 18 Jan 18):
! year

Length of service with the
Group (as at 18 Jan 18):
23 years, || months

Experience:

* Board experience at Chairman
and Chief Executive level
Extensive international experience
within the industrial gaads and
engincering sectors

Expertise in operational excellence
and lean manufacturing

Experience:

* Extensive senior management
experience in the defence sector

« International experience in
hoth service and manufacturing
industnes

Experience:

« Extensive intermational experience
in the defence sector

* Board experience at Finance
Director level

> Chartered Accountant

Experience:

+ Legal, compliance and
governance expertise

« Chartered Secretary

Carl-Peter Farster joined the Group
as an independent non-executive
director and Chairman-designate
on | May 2016, and was appointed
Chairman of the Board on

| July 2016,

Carl-Peter formerly held senior
leadership positions in some of

the world’s largest automotive
manufacturers, including BMW,
General Motors and Tata Motors
(including Jaguar Land Rover).
Cari-Peter is currently the Senior
Independent Director at IMI plc and a
non-executive director of Cosworth
Ltd, and was previously a non-
executive director of Rexam PLC and
Rolls-Royce plc. He is also Chairman
of the Landon Taxi Company, a
member of the Board of Volvo Cars
Corporation, a member of the Board
of Geely Auromobile Holdings, and

a member of the Advisory Board of
Rock Tech Lithium, Inc.
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Michael Flowers was appointed

to the Board as Group Chief
Executive on 24 june 2014, having
previcusly been Group Director —
Munitions, with responsibility for
running and subsequenily disposing
of the Group’s European munitions
businesses.

Michael joined Chemring in 2006,
and ran the Group's Austrafian
operations for seven years. Prior to
joining Chemring, Michael worked
for BAE Systems in programme
management roles, principally in the
‘weapons systems and electronic
warfare domains. Prior to his time
with BAE Systemns, Michael served
as an officer in the Australian Army
for 22 years, and was a graduate

of the Australian Command and
Staff College and the British Royal
Military College of Science.

Andrew Lewis joined the Group on
9 January 2017 and was appointed
to the Board as Group Finance
Director on 19 January 2017.

Andrew spent eight years as Group
Finance Director of Avort Rubber
pl.c., where he also performed

the Interim CEQ role during 2015,
following the retirement of the
previous CEQ,

Prior to joining Avon, Andrew

was Group Financial Controller

of Rotork plc and before

that he was a Director at
PricewaterhouseCoopers in Bristol
and New Zealand.

Sarah Ellard was appointed as
Group Legal Director on 7 October
2011, having been Group Company
Secretary since 1998,

Prior (o joining the Group, Sarah
trained and worked at Ernst &
Young LLP. She is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators.



ANDREW DAYIES
Non-Executive Directar

nn

DANIEL DAYAN
Non-Executive Director

-] |3

NIGEL YOUNG
Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Q]

Board length of service
(as at 18 Jan 18):
| year, 8 months

Board length of service
{as at 18 fan 18):
| year, 10 months

Board length of service
(as at 18 jan 18):
4 years, ¥ months

Length of service with the
Group (as at 18 Jan 18):
1 year, 8 months

Length of service with the
Group (as at I8 Jan 18):
| year, 10 months

Length of service with the
Group (as at 13 Jan 18):
5 year, 5 months

Experience:

* Board experience at Chief
Executive level

+ Extensive knowledge of the
international defence industry

Experience:

+ Board experience at Chief
Executive level and as a nan-
executive director

* Experience in manufacturing and
engineering sectors

Experience:

* Previously Interim Chief Financial
Officer of the Group from August
2012 to January 2013

+ Finance experience from previcus
CFO positions

+ Chartered Accountant

Andrew Davies was appainted
as an independent non-executive
director on |7 May 2016.

Andrew has a wealth of relevant
sector experience, having served
in senfor operational and strategic
rofes at executive committee
level at BAE Systems plc for more
than fourteen years. He was
formerly Chief Executive of
Wates Group Lid.

Daniel Dayan was appointed as an
independent non-executive director
and Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee on 7 March 2016.

Daniel is also currenty Group CEO
of the Klockner Pentaplast Group.

Daniel has held a number of senior
level executive and non-executive
roles within the engineering and
manufacturing sector. including an
eight-year appointment as Chief
Executive of Fiberweb plc and

two yaars as Chairman and CEO
of LINPAC before its acquisition
by Kléckner Pentaplast. He also
previously served as a non-executive
director of Stobart plc and as a
trustee in the charity sector.

Nigel Young became an
independent non-executive
director and Chairman of the
Audit Commitcee on | May 2013,
following his appointment as
nterim Chief Financial Officer in
August 2012, He was appointed
as Senior Independent Director in
March 201 6.

Nigel's previous appointments
inchude Finance Director of

ALVIS PLC, First Technology PLC,
Babcock International Group PLC
and Morgan Advanced Materials
Plc. Nigel has afso undertaken a
number of interim finance roles,
including one at McBride Plc. He is
currently a non-executive director
and Chzirman of P2i Limited,

a provider of liquid repellent
nanotechnology, and is a trustee
and Board member of Orbis LK,
a leading global eye charity.

COMMITTEE
MEMBERSHIP

Audit Commitwee

Nomination Committee

Ml Remuneration Cemmittee
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their annual report, together with the audited
financial statements of the Group and the Company, for the year ended
31 Ocrober 2017

The following sections of the annual report are incorporated into the
directors’ report by reference:

+  strategic report on pages 4 to 37;

« corporate governance report on pages 44 to 51;

*  Audit Committee report on pages 52 to 55;

- directors’ remuneration report on pages 54 to 74;

= directars’ responsibilities statement on page 43; and

s notes to the (3roup financial statements as detailed in this section.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The strategic report on pages 4 1o 37 provides a review of the Group's
business development, performance and position during and at the end of
the financial year, its strategy and likely future development, key
performance indicators, and a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the business. Further information regarding financial
risk management policies and financial instruments is given in note 20 to
the Group financial statements.

There have been ho significant events since the balance sheet date, other
than as referred to in note 36 to the Group financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit attributable to the Group’s shareholders for the year was
£6.6m (201&: £11.1m).

The directors are recommending the payment of a final dividend of
2.0p per ordinary share which, together with the interim dividend of
1.0p per share paid in September 2017, gives a total for the year of 3.0p
(2016: 1.3p). The final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting on 20 March 2018 and has not therefore
been included as a liability in these financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND THEIR INTERESTS

The directors are shown on pages 38 and 39.

Andrew Lewis was appointed as Group Finance Director on
19 fanuary 2017.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, all directors
are required to submit themselves for re-election at every Annual
General Meeting. All directors will therefore be seeking re-election at the
Annual General Meeting on 20 March 2018.

Dertails of the service contracts entered into between the Company and
the executive directors are set out In the directors’ remuneration report
on page 62. The non-executive directors do not have service contracts
with the Company.

The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the
benefit of its directors, which were in effect throughourt the year and
remain in force at the date of this report. The directors have the benefit
of a directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy.

Other than in relation to their service contracts, none of the directors is
or was beneficially interested in any significant contract to which the

Group was a party during the year ended 31 October 2017.

Information required in relation to directors’ shareholdings is set cut in
the directors’ remuneration report on page 70.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

At |7 January 2018, the following substantial holdings in the ordinary share
capital of the Company had been notified to the Company in accordance
with Chapter 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authority. It should be noted that these holdings may have
changed since the Company was notified; however, notification of any
change is not required until the next notrfiable threshold is crossed.

Name % Interest

Schroders Plc 1)
lowvesca Limited 8.4
Sterling Strategic Value Fund S.A., Sicav-Raif 5.4
Neptune Investment Management Limited 5.9
UBS Global Asset Management 55
Old Mutual Asset Managers 5.1
} O Hambro Capital Management Limited 5.t
Prudential Ple 50
Majedie Asset Management Limited 5.0
Thameside MBC re Greater Manchester Pension Fund 5.0
Jupiter Asset Management Limited Below 5.0
FIL Limited Below 5.0
} P Morgan Chase & Co 4.9
Investec Asset Management Limited 48
Ameriprise Financial, Inc. 4.8
AXA S AL and its group of companies 4.8
Standard Life Investments Limited 4.6
BT Pension Scheme Trustees Limited as Trustee of

the BT Pension Scheme 38

EMPLOYEES AND EMPLOYEE CONSULTATION

Details of the Group’s employment policies and employee consultation
practices are set out in the corporate responsibility review on pages 34
and 35,

POLITICAL DONATIONS

No political denations were made during the year {2016: £nil).

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

The Group contracts with a wide range of customers, comprising
governments, armed forces, prime contractors and OEMs across the
globe. The US Department of Defense is the largest single customer, and
procures the Group's products under a significant number of separate
contracts placed with individual Group businesses.

The Group's businesses utilise many suppliers across the woerld, and
arrangements are in place to ensure that businesses are not totally reliant
on single suppliers for key raw materials or compcnents.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group’s research and development expenditure for the year is
detziled in the financial review on page 20,




CHANGE OF CONTROL

Individual Group businesses have contractual arrangements with third
parties, entered into in the normal course of business, which may be
amended or may terminate on a change of contral of the relevant
business, or in certain circumstances, following a takeover of the Group.

The most significant agreements entered in to by the Group which contain
provisions granting the counterparties certain rights in the event of a change
of control of the Company are the revolving credit facility agreements
entered into with the Group’s banks, and the loan note agreements, pursuant
to which the Company issued notes under a series of private placements.
These agreements provide that, in the event of a change of a control, the
Company must repay all outstanding borrowings, together with accrued
interest and other sums owing under each agreement,

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS
General

The Company's share capital consists of ordinary shares of Ip each and
preference shares of £1 each, which are fully paid-up and quoted on the
main market of the London Stack Exchange. Full details of the movements
in the issued share capital of the Company during the financial year are
provided in note 23 to the Group financial statements.

Details of the rights attaching to shares are set out in the Articles of
Association {the "Articles”). All holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
attend, speak and vote at any general meeting of the Company, and to
appoint a proxy or proxies to exercise these rights. At a general meeting,
every shareholder present in person, by proxy or (in the case of a
corporate member) by corporate representative has ane vote on a show
of hands, and on a poll has one vote for every share held. The Notice of
Annual General Meeting specifies deadlines for exercising voting rights
and appointing a proxy or proxies to vote in respect of the resolutions to
be passed at the Annual General Meeting.

There are nao restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the capital
of the Company, other than certain restrictions which may from time to
time be imposed by law. In accordance with the Market Abuse Regulation,
certain employees are required to seek the approval of the Company to
deal in its shares.

The cumulative preference shares tarry an entitiement to a dividend at
the rate of /p per share per annum, payable in equal instalments on

30 April and 31 October each year. Holders of the preference shares have
the right on a winding-up to receive, in priority to any other classes of
shares, the sum of £1 per share together with any arrears of dividends.

The Company is not aware of any agreements between shareholders that
may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities and /or voting rights.

The Company’s Articles may only be amended by special resolution at a
general meeting of shareholgers.

issue of shares

Under the provisions of section 551 of the Companies Act 2006

{the "Act”™), the Board is prevented from exercising its powers under

the Articles to allot shares without an authority contained either in the
Articles orin a resolution of the shareholders passed in general meeting.
The authority, when given, can iast for a maximum period of five years,
but the Board proposes that renewal should be sought at each Annuai
General Meeting. An ordinary resolution, seeking such authority, will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Section 561 of the Act requires that an allotment of shares for cash may
not be made unless the shares are first offered to existing shareholders on
a pre-emptive basis in accordance with the terms of the Act. In
accardance with general practice, to ensure that small 1ssues of shares can
be made without the necessity of convening a general meeting, the Board
proposes that advantage be taken of the provisions of section 571 of the
Act not to apply the Act’s pre-emptive requirements. Accordingly, a
special resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting which, if passed, will have the effect of granting the directors the
power to aliot not more than 5% of the issued ordinary share capital at
the date of the Annual General Meeting free of the requirements of
section 564 of the Act. No issue of these shares will be made which would
effectively alter the control of the Company withaut the prior approval of
the shareholders in general meeting.

Purchase of own shares

The Company did not purchase any of its ordinary shares {2016: nil)
during the year. At 31 October 2017, the Company held a total of
2.198,814 |p ordinary shares in treasury (representing 0.8% of the
ordinary shares in issue on 31 October 2017).

A special resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting to renew the Company's authority to purchase its own shares in
the market up to a limit of 0% of its issued ordinary share capital. The
maximum and minimum prices will be stated in the resolution at the date
of the Annual General Meeting. The directors believe thatitis
advantageous for the Company to have this flexibility to make market
purchases of its own shares. The directors of the Company may consider
halding repurchased shares pursuant to the authority conferred by this
resolution as treasury shares. This will give the Company the ability to
reissue treasury shares quickly and cost effectively, and will provide the
Company with additional flexibility in the management of its capital base.
Any issues of treasury shares for the purposes of the Company's employee
share schemes will be made within the 10% anti-diluticn limit set by The
Investment Association. The directors will only exercise this authority if
they are satisfied that a purchase would resultin an increase in expected
earnings per share and would be in the interests of shareholders generally.

EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES AND PLANS
Approach to share ownership

The Group actively encourages its employees to share in the future
success of the Group, and therefore operates share-based arrangements
to provide incentives and rewards to employees.

The Group operated four share-based incentive plans during the year, as
set out below. Further details of awards and vesting are provided in note
27 to the Group financial statements.

The Chemring Group 2008 UK Sharesave Plan
(the “UK Sharesave Plan")

The LK Sharesave Plan is open to all etigible UK employees. Employees
may choose between three and five year savings periods, at the end of
which the employee can choose to exercise the option or seek the return
of their savings. A grant of options was made on 27 July 2017,

The Chemring Group Performance Share Plan
{the “PSP™)

The PSP expired on 22 March 2016 but was previously the primary
long-term incentive plan for executive directors and senior employees.
Discretionary awards were granted under the PSP over a fixed number of
shares by reference to salary, with awards crdinarily vesting, subject to
meeting performance criteria, on the third anniversary of the grant date.
Awards remain outstanding under the PSP but no further awards can be
made under the plan,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

The Chemring Group Performance Share Plan 2016
(the “2016 PSP")

The 2016 PSP is now the primary long-term incentive plan for executive
directors and senior employees. Discretionary awards are granted under
the PSP over a fixed number of shares by reference to salary, with awards
ordinarily vesting, subject to meeting performance criteria, on the third
anniversary of the grant date. Awards were granted under the plan on

24 March 2017.

The Chemring Group Restricted Share Plan (the “RSP*")

The RSP pravides for the discretionary grant of deferred share awards o
selected key employees. Executive directors are not eligible to participate.
Awards typically vest on the second or third anniversary of the grant date,
subject to mesting continuous service criteria. Awards under the RSP may
anly be satisfied with market-purchased shares.

GOING CONCERN

Details of the conclusions arrived at by the directors in preparing the
financial statements on a going concern basis are set out in the corparate
governance report on pages 50 and 51.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, AS REQUIRED BY LISTING
RULES REQUIREMENT 9.8.4

The annual report is required to contain certain information under Listing
Rules Requirement 9.8.4. Where this information has not been cross-
referenced within the Group financial statements, it can be found in the
following sections:

+ capitalised interest (see note 12};

+ long-term incentive schemes (see directors’ remuneration report);

» allocation of equity securities for cash (see note 23);

*  contracts of significance (see note 34);

- election of independent directors (see corporate governance report);

+ contractual arrangements (see directors’ report);

= details of independent directors (see corporate governance report);
and

« substantial shareholders (see directors’ report).

No profit forecasts are issued by the Group and no directors have walived
any current or future emoluments. Other than in relation to ordinary
shares held in treasury, no shareholders have waived or agreed to waive
dividends.

Nore of the shareholders is considered to be a Controlling Shareholder
{as defined in Lisung Rules 6.1.2. A} and the Group complies with the
independence provisions of the Listing Rules.

PROVISION OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR

Each director at the date of this report confirms that, so far as they are
each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's
auditor is unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that he or she
ought to have taken as a director to make himself or herself aware of any
relevant audit infformauon and to establish that the Company's auditar s
aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with
the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

42

AUDITOR

As outlined in the Audit Committee report, the Graup 1s undertaking

a tender process for the selection and appointment of a new external
zuditor to replace Deloitte, who have provided external audit services to
the Group for more than fifteen years. Pending conclusion of this process
and the appointment of a new auditor. resolutions will be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting to reappoint Deloitte and o
authgrise the directors to determine the external auditor’s rernuneration.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The resaluticns to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to be held
on 20 March 2018, together with explanatory notes, appear in the
separate Naotice of Annual General Meeting sent to all shareholders.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regularions,

Cempany law requires the directors 1o prepare financial statements for
each financial year. Under that law, the directors are required to prepare
the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the European Union ("EU"™)
and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation, and they have also chosen to prepare
the parent company financial statements under IFRS as adopted by the
EU. Under company law the directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, 1AS | Presentation of
Financial Statements requires that directors:

+ properly select and apply accounting policies;

* present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that
provides retevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information;

+ provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements of IFRS is insufficient to enable users 1o understand
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions
on the entity's financial position and financial perfarmance; and

= make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient te show and explain the Company's transactions,
disclose with reasonable accuracy at ary time the financial position of the
Group and the Campany, and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company, and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the mantenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information included on the Company's website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from fegislation in other
jurisdictians,



DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Each of the directors, whose names and functions are listed on pages 38
and 39, confirms that to the best of their knowledge:

» the financial statements, prepared in accordance with [FRS as adopted
by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position znd profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole;

= the strategic reportincludes a fair review of the development and
perfaormance of the business and the position of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they
face; and

+ the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced
and understandable, and provide the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company's performance, business model
and strategy.

The directors’ report and responsibility staterment was approved by the
Board of directors on 18 january 2018 and is signed on its behalf by:

Michael Flowers
Group Chief Executive

Sarah EHard
Group Legal Director
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Governance

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Tre Board 1s committed to Jphalding high standards of carporate
governance, protecung and growing shareholder value, and engaging
in a fair and transparent manner with all of the Group's stakeholders.
The Board takes responsibility for aoproving the Group's long-term
goals and strategies, and provides overall financial and organisational
control, The Baard also ensures that the Group's businesses have
appropr ate and effective internal control and risk management
systems,

2047 was the first full financial year for the new Board members
appointed during 2016, |t was a year for developing a deeper
understanding of the Group's businesses, its systems and processes,
and the longer-term strategic direction of the Group.

The Board travelled to the US in July to meet with the members of the
Group's US Board. Given the nature of our business interests in the
US, most of the Group's LIS businesses are subject to the
requirements of a Special Security Agreement with the US
Government, which imposes certain restrictions on the contrel and
influente we can exert over these businesses. This arrangement has
the potential to introduce additional challenges from a governance
perspective, and it is vital that the main Board maintains a strong
relationship with the US Board in order to ensure that all of our
respective stakeholders’ objectives are being addressed. The US
Board was strengthened during the year with the appointment of 2
new outside director with considerable US defence industry
experience, and we are already seeing the benefits of his contribution,

With regards to broader stzkeholder engagement, | met with a
number of our larger, institutional shareholders aver the course of the
year in order to elicit their views of the Group and their aspirations for
our future development. Daniel Dayan, the Chairman of our
Remuneration Committee, also spent a considerable amount of time
engaging with shareholders on a new directors' remuneration policy,
and whilst a decision was taken not to proceed with seeking approval
for the new policy at the 2017 Annual General Meeting, the feedback
that was recewed will be very valuable in framing the updated policy
that will require shareholder approval at the 2019 Annual General
Meeting.

The Board is aware of the consultation being undertaken by the
Financial Reporting Council oh the proposed new UK Corporate
Governance Code, and in particular, the proposed recommendations
that the Board should consider input from the workforce as part of its
normal operation in future. Michael Flowers, the Group Chief
Executive, has already started to engage with small groups of
employees during his visits to our sites, and we will consider how we
can build upon this over the course of the next year.

During the latter part of 2017, the Board undertook an externally-
facilitated review of its performance using our retained advisors,
Lintstock Limited. This highlighted several areas in which we can seek
to improve our effectiveness going forward, and these are now being
addressed.
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Compliance statement

In the year under review, the Company was required ta apply the main
and supporting principles of good governance set out in the UK
Corporate Governance Code issued in April 2016 by the Financial
Reporting Council (the "Code"). The detailed report below sets out
how the Company applied these principles in practice.

The Company was in compliance with the provisions of the Code
throughaut the year ended 31 October 2017, with the exception that a
formal performance evaluation of the Board was not completed during
the year. As referred to z2bove, the evaluation was completed after the
year end.

Carl-Peter Forster
Chairman



THE BOARD

Composition of the Board and independence

The Board currently comprises three executive directors and four

non-executive directors (including the Chairman). The biographical details

of individual directors, including details of their other business
commitments, are set out on pages 38 and 39.

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive are separate and clearly
defined, in accordance with the requirements of the Code, with the

division of responsibilities set out in writing and agreed by the Board.

The Board considers all of the current non-executive directors to be
independent in judgement and character, and considered Carl-Peter

Forster te be independent on his appointment as Chairman, Nigel Young
was employed as the Group's Interim Chief Financial Officer for a period

of six months from August 2012, prior to his appointment as a

non-executive director, but the Board does not consider that this short

period of employment impacted his independence, and his contribution to

the Board continues 1o be impartial and abjective. Mr Young was
appointed as Senior Independent Director in March 2016,

The Board considers that the current balance of executive and

non-executive influence on the Board 15 appropriate for the Company,

taking into account its size and status.

Matters reserved for approval of the Board

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved to it for consideration and approval, including:

Strategy and management

Approval of the Group's five year plan and annual budget
Approval of acquisitions, disposals and major capital expenditure

Approval of changes to the Group's capital structure

Financial matters and internal controls

Oversight of the Group's systems of financial control and risk management
Approval of financial statements and results announcements

Recommendation and declaration of dividends

Corporate governance

Undertaking performance reviews of the Board and its committees
Approval of policies on financing and treasury. ethical matters, and health and safety

Receiving reports on the views of shareholders
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

Board responsibilities

The key responsibilities of the Board members are as follows:

Chairman

Responsble for the leadership and governance of the Board as a whole

+ Ensures that the Board s kept properly informed and is consufted on all decisions
reserved to 1t

* Promotes construcuve relations berween the executive and non-executive directors

Ensures that the training and development needs of directors are rderufied

*+ Ensures that the performance of the Board is evaluated on a regular basis

Ensures that communication with shareholders is effective, and acts as a conduit to
ensure that the views of sharehotders are communicated to the Board

.

Group Chief Executive Responsible for the leadership and day-to-day management of the business

N

Develops strategy for Baard approval and ensures that the agreed strategy is
implemented successfully

Presents the annual budget and five year plan to the Board for approval and defivers
agreed ohjectves

* ldentifies new business cpportunities, and potential acquisitions and disposals

Manages the Group's risk profile, induding the management of health and safety

Ensures that the Board s fully informed of all key matters

Non-executive directors = Participate mn the development of strategic objectives and monitor the performance of
executive management in achieving the agreed objectives

Monitor the Group's financial performante

¢+ Consider the integnity of the Group’s financial informauon, and whether the financial
controls and nsk management systems are robust and defensible

= Determine the appropnate remuneration policy for the executive directors
* Meet periedically with the Group's semor management and visit operations

= Meet regulary without the executive directors being present

Senior Independent Director

Pravides support to the Chairman and acts as a trusted sounding board

.

Reviews the Chairman’s performance with the other non-executive directors

Available to meet shareholders if they have cancerns which cannort be resolved through
the normal channels

Company Secretary Secretary to the Board and its committees

Under the direction of the Chairman, responsible for maintaining good information
flows wichin the Board and its committees

» Develops Board and committee agendas, and collates and distributes papers
= Assists with the inducuon of new directors

* Keeps directors informed about changes o their duties and responsibilities

Prowvides advice on legal, regulatory and corperate governance matters

= Avalable to all directors
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OPERATION OF THE BOARD

Board meetings and attendance

The Board meets at least eight times a year. The Board receives reports from the Group Chief Executive, the Group Finance Director, the Group Legal
Director and the Group Director of Safety as standing agenda items at every scheduled Board meeting. Members of the senior leadership team and
external advisers attend Board meetings by invitation, as appropriate,

The following table shows the attendance of directors, who served during the year, at meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee:

Audit Norminaticn  Remuneration

Board Comrmittes Comnitiee Committee

(Bscheduled  (4scheduled  (2scheduled 3 scheduled

meeungs and meetings and meeungs and mesungs and

6ad hoc | ad hac {ad hoc Jadhoc

Board member meeungs) meeting) meeting) meetings)
Carl-Peter Forster 14(14) - 3(3) 6(6)
Andrew Davies 14(14) 5(5) 3(3) 6(6)
Daniel Dayan 13(14) 5(5) 3(3) 6(8)
Sarah Eltard 13(14) - - -
Michael Flowers 14(14) - - -
Andrew Lewis 8(9) - - -
Nigel Young 14(14) 5(5) 3(3) 6(6)

The maximum number of meetings which each director could have attended is shown in brackets.

In addition to the scheduled meetings, six ad hoc Board meetings, one ad hoc Audit Committee meeting, one ad hoc Nomination Committee meeting
and three ad hoc Remuneration Cemmittee meetings were convened to deal with matters arising between scheduled meetings. All absences of
directors were associated with unscheduled, ad hoc meetings.

During the year, the Chairman met regularly wizth the non-executive directors without the executives being present,

Board activity throughout the year

In addition to its routine scheduled business, the Board also underrock the following activities during the year:

November 2016

December 2016

January 2017

March 2017

* Review of updates to the Group strategy
= Approval of future financing strategy

+ Consideration of the Group's health and

= Appointment of Andrew Lewis as
the new Group Finance Director

» Rewiew of US Programs of Record

* Report from the Audit Committee

+ Approval of preliminary
announcement and annual results

« Consideration of acquisition
strategy and potental targets

+ Review of updated tax

safety plan » Review of the Operational + Traning on the Group's Bribery strategy
* Approval of addmenal US bank facilies Excellence Programme Act Compliance Manual
April 2017 June 2017 July 2017 September 2017

- Board visit to Norway and presentations
from the management of Chemnng Nobel

= Review of the US energetics market

= Considerauon of potential acquismon
opportunity

+ Approval of interim resuls

» Consideration and approval of the
Group IT strategy

* Review of the Group's senior
leadership team

+ Board visic to Alloy Surfaces

= Rewview of future capital
expendiure plans for Kilgore

+ Consideravon of updated Group
strategy

= Approval of 2018 budget

+ Review of updated financing
strategy
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS
Appointments to the Board

External search consultancies are generally appointed to assist with the
recruitment of new directors.

Drax Executive were appointed in July 2016 to undertake the recruitment of a
new Group Finance Director. The search process was led by Michael Flowers,
with support from the Chalrman and Nigel Young. Andrew Lewis was
identified as the preferred candidate and was invited to meet all members of
the Board prior to approval of his appointment in December 2016.

Drax Executive were also engaged by the Group 10 provide consultancy
services on organisational development during the year.

Diversity

The Board supports the principles set outin Lord Davies' Review into
Women on Boards published in February 2011, and the Board also
recognises the importance of promoting diversity across the Group. The
Board currently includes one fermale member, and remains committed to
a minimum target of at least 25% female representation on the Board,
amongst senior management and across the Group in general,

Re-election of directors

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, all directors are
required to submit themselves for re-election at each Annual General Meeting.

The papers accompanying the Notice of Annual Generat Meeting inciude a
statement from the Chairman confirming that the performance of each
non-executive director seeking re-election at the meeting continues to be
effective and that each director continues to demonstrate commitment to
their rofe.

Induction

An internal induction programme on the Group's operations, and its
strategic and business plans, is provided for newly-appeinted directors.
Directors are invited to meet key members of the senior management
team at the earliest opportunity, and site visits are arranged to facilitate
their understanding of the Group's operations.

The Company Secretary also provides detailed information on the
operation of the Board and its committees, directors’ legal dunes, and
responsibilities on appointment.

Training and development

The Company meets the cost of appropriate external training for directors,
the requirement for which is kept under review by the Chairman.

Directors are continually updated on the Group’s businesses and the
matters affecting the markets in which they operate. The Company
Secretary updates the Board on a regular basis with regards to regulatory
changes affecting the directors and the Group's operations generally, and
briefings are provided by the Group's advisers on key developments in
areas such as financial reporting and executive remuneration practice.
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Independent advice

All directors are entitled to take independent professional advice in
furtherance of their duties at the Company's expense, should the need
arise. No director had reason to seek such advice during the year.

Conflicts of interest

All directors have a duty under the Companies Act 2006 (the "2006 Act”)
to avoid a situation in which he or she has cr can have a direct or indirect
interest that conflicts or may possibly conflict with the interests of the
Company. The Company’s Articles of Association include provisions for
dealing with directors’ conflicts of interest in accordance with the 2006
Act. The Company has procedures in place to deal with situations where
directors may have any such conflicts, which require the Board to:

+  consider each conflict situation separately on its particular facts;

+ consider the conflict sitvation in conjunction with the rest of their
duties under the 2006 Act;

* keep records and Board minutes as to authorisations granted by
directors and the scope of any approvals given; and

» regularly review conflict authorisation.

Performance evaluation

The Board engaged in an externally-facilitated review of its performance
in late 2017, utilising the services of Lintstock Limited. The evaluation
considered topics under the following headings:

* Board composition and expertise;

* Board dynamics;

« management and focus of meetings;

* Board support;

+ strategic and operational oversight;

« risk managerment and internal control;

= succession planning and people management: and
= priarities for change.

The evaluation generated a number of recommendations, which will be
addressed gver the forthcoming year.

The Chairman and non-executive directors also reviewed the individual
performance of the execuuve directors as part of the annual
remuneration review.




BOARD COMMITTEES

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee are published on the Company’s website
{www.chemring.co.uk/investors/corporate-governance) and copies are
available on request from the Company Secretary.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three iIndependent non-executive
direcrors. At the date of this report, the Audit Committee members were
Nigel Young (Chairman), Andrew Davies and Daniel Dayan.

Nigel Young acted as Interim Chief Financial Officer for the Group
between August 2012 and January 2013, and was formerly the finance
director of several public companies. The remaining members of the
Cammittee are serving executive directors of substantial companies, and
have extensive business and financial management experience. The Board
therefore considers that each member of the Audit Committee has the
requisite recent and relevant financial experience to satisfy the
requirements of the Code.

The Audit Committee convened for four scheduled meetings and one
ad hoc meeting during the year.

The Audit Committee report is set out on pages 52 to 55.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors. At the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee members were Daniel Dayan (Chairman), Andrew Davies,
Carl-Peter Forster and Nigel Young.

Three scheduled Remuneration Committee meetings were held during
the year, together with three ad hoc meetings. Further details on the
Remuneration Committee and its activities, and the Company's policies
on directors’ remuneration are set outin the directors’ remuneration
repert on pages 56 to /4.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four independent non-executive
directors. At the date of this report, the Nomination Committee members
were Carl-Peter Forster (Chairman), Andrew Qavies, Daniel Dayan and
Nigel Young. Mr Forster is Chairman of the Nomination Committee but, in
accordance with the Committee’s terms of reference, 1s not permitted to
chair meetings when the Committee is dealing with the appointment of his
SUCCESSOT.

The Nomination Committee held two scheduled meetings during the year
and one ad hoc meeting.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is responsible for the executive day-to-day
running of the Group, submission to the Board of strategic plans and
budgets for the Group's operatians, and monitoring the trading
performance of the Group as a whole.

The current members of the Executive Committee are:

* Michael Flowers (Group Chief Executive)

* Rik Armitage (Group Director - Strategy & Technolagy)

» Terry Bridgewater {Group Director of Safety)

»  Stuart Cameron {(Managing Oirector - Chemring Energetics)

» David Cole {(Managing Director - Roke)

= Simen Darling (Managing Director - Chemring Countermeasures UK)
» Sarah Ellard {Group Legal Director & Company Secretary)

*  Andrew Lewis (Group Finance Director)

»  Clancy Murphy (Organisational Development Director)

* Rupert Pittman (Group Director of Corporate Affairs)

Michael Flowers chairs the Executive Committee, which meets monthly.

Key responsibilities delegated to the Executive
Committee by the Board

* Implementation of the Group's strategies and policies as
determined by the Roard

+ Monitoring of operational and financial results against budget

+ Allocation of resources across the Group within the overall plan
approved by the Board

«  Approval of R&D and capital expenditure within limits imposed
by the Board

* Developing and implementing risk management systems
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PROVIDERS OF CAPITAL

Shareholder engagement

The Campany maintains an active dialogue with institutional shareholders
through regular briefing meetings and format presentations following the
release of interim and annual results. Meetings are usually attended by the
Group Chief Executive and the Group Finance Director, although the
Chairman and the Seniar Independent Director also meet with
shareholders to discuss specific matters. The other non-executive
directors are also offered the opportunity to meet with major
shareholders and attend meetings if se requested by shareholders.

Communication with private investors is achieved largely through the
medium of the interim results statement and the annual report.

The Company's website (www.chemring.co.uk) provides financial,
business and governance information on the Group.

The directors are provided with reports and other written briefings from
the Company’s brokers, and are regularly informed by the Company
Secretary zhout changes to significant shareholdings.

Itis the Company’s policy that all directors should attend and make
themselves available to take questions from shareholders or address any
concerns at the Annual General Meeting. At other times of the year, the
directors can be contacted via the Company’s head office.

Annual General Meeting

All substantial issues, including the adoption of the annual report and
financial statements, are proposed on separate resolutions at the Annual
General Meeting. In line with best practice guidelines. voting at the Annual
General Meeting is conducted by way of a poll. This allows zll votes to be
counted, not just those of shareholders whe attend the meeting. Poll
resuits are published on the Company’s website as soon as practicable
following the conclusion of the meeting. The Notice of the Annual
General Meeting is sent to shareholders at least twenty working days
before the meeting.

Engagement with other providers of capital

In addition to issuing shares, the Company also finances its activities
through external bank loans and by the issue of loan notes. The Board
recognises the importance of maintaining good relationships with the
providers of this capital, and the Group Chief Executive and the Group
Finance Director brief the banks and note holders on a regular basis on
the Company and its performance. The Board receives regutar reports on
any issues impacting these relatianships.
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ACCOUNTABILITY

Financial and business reporting

The statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financizl
statements and accounting records maintained by the Company is set aut
on page 42.

Having taken all the matters considered by the Board and brought to the
attention of the Board during the year into account, the Board is satisfied
that the annual report and accounts for the year ended 31 October 2017,
taken as a whale, is fair, balanced and understandable. Furthermore, the
Board believes that the disclosures set oui on pages 4 to 37 provide the
information necessary to assess the Company's performance, business
maodel and strategy.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for determining the nature and extent of the
risks that it is willing to take to achieve its strategic objectives. The Board
is also responsibte for ensuring that the Group's risk managernent and
internal control systems are effective acrass the businesses.

The Board undertakes an annual review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s systems of internal control, including financial, operational and
compliance controls, and risk management systems. Further details of the
review undertaken during the financial year ended 21 October 2017 are
set gut on pages 26 and 27.

Gaoing concern

The Group's business activities, key performance indicators, and principal
risks and uncertainties are set out within the strategic report on pages 4
to 37. As part of a regular assessment of the Group’s working capital and
financing position, the directors have prepared a detailed bottom-up two
year trading budget and cash flow forecast for the period through to
October 2019, being at least twelve months after the date of approval of
the financial statements. This is in addition ta the Group’s longer-term
strategic planning process, In assessing the forecast, the directors have
considered:

» trading risks presented by economic conditions in the defence market,
particularly in relation to government budgets and spends:;

* the timing of defivery of key contracts;

« the impact of macro-economic factors, particularly interest rates and
foreign exchange rates;

» the status of the Group's existing financial arrangements and
associated covenant requirements; and

« the availability of mitigating actions should business activities fall
behind current expecrations, including the deferral of discretionary
overheads and restricting cash flows.

Addivonal detailed sensitivity analysis has been performed on the
forecasts to consider the impact of severe, but plausible, reasonable
waorse case scenarios on the covenant requirements. These scenarios,
which sensitised the forecasts for specific identified risks, modelled the
reduction in anticipated levels of underlying EBITDA and the associated
increase in net debt. These scenarios incduded significant delays to major
contracts and new productiaunches, and the temporary closure ofa
major facility. These sensitsed scenarios show headroom on all covenant
test dates for the foreseeable future,




The directors have acknowledged the latest guidance on going concern.
They have made appropriate enquirnes and taken into account factors
which are detafled in the strategic report on pages 4 to 37. Asa
consequence, the directors believe that the Company is well placed to
manage its risks.

The directors, having considered the forecasts, the risks, and associated
mitigating actions, have a reasonable expectation that adequate financial
resources will continue to be available for the foreseeable future.

Thus, they continue to support the gaing concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

Long-term viability statement

The directors have assessed the Group's viability over a three-year period
to October 2020 based on the above assessment, combined with the
Group’s strategic planning process, which gives greater certainty over the
forecasting assumptions used. Based on this assessment, the directors
have a reasonable expectaticn that the Group will be able 1o continue in
operation and meet all its liabilities as they fall due up to October 2020.

in considering our viability statements we have considered the principal
risks and uncertainties discussed in the strategic report and assessed
the impact.

Sensitivity analyses were run to model the financial and ¢perational
impact of plausible downside scenarios of these risk events occurring
individually or in combination. These included the impacts of a further
detericraticn in the macroeconomic environment, underperformance

in executing the Group's strategy. failure to derive targeted benefits
from the Group's Operational Excellence Programme, the impact of a
significant business interrupuon event, material movements in foreign
exchange rares and a change in regularions impacting the Group's internal
financing structure. Consideration was also given to the plausibility of the
occurrence of other individual events that in their own right could have a
material impact on the Group's viability,

Based on the consolidared financial impact of the sensirivity analyses and
associated mitigating internal controls and risk management actions that
are either now in place or could be implemented, the Board has been
able to conclude that the Group will be able to maintain sufficient bank
facilities to meet its funding needs over the three-year pericd.

INSURANCE

The Company maintains directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in
respect of legal action against its directors and officers.
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Governance

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Annual statement by the Chairman of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee continues to play a very important role in the
governance of the Group's financial affairs, both through monitoring
the integrity of the Group's financal reporting and reviewing
material financial reporting judgerments.

In 2017 the Committee reviewed a number of key areas:

The Group’s policy on capitalising development costs was reviewed
and refined so certain criteria that a project must reach to be
considered capital in nature were more clearly defined. As part of its
review of the 2016 financial statements and the 2017 interim financial
statements. the Commirttee reviewed the carrying value of
previously capitalised projects and as part of this review considered
the independent reporting on this area from the Group's external
auditor. Based on its review the Committee concluded the carrying
value was appropriate.

The adoption of IFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers was a
key project during the year. The Committee reviewed the initial
impact study prepared by management and agreed the scoping of the
transition project. At the time of approving the interim financial
statements the Commirttee reviewed the final analysis of the impact
of adoption and approved the use of the modified transitional
provisians and the related disclosures.

The Group's US businesses sit within a Special Security Agreement,
which requires independent directors to be appointed to the US
holding company. During 2017 a US Audit Committee was
established, with terms of reference similar to the main Group Audit
Committee. ltis intended that this Committee will be fully functional
in 2018,

Further details of the Committee’s activities during the year are set
out on the following pages.

Nigel Young
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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OPERATION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee monitors the integrity of the Group's financial
statements and the effectiveness of the external audit process.

Key responsibilities

+ Making recommendations on the appointment, reappcintment
and remuneration of the external auditor

» Ensuring that an appropriate relaticnship between the Group
and the external auditor is maintained, and overseeing the
provision of non-audit services

+ Reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and cbjectivity

« PReviewing the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls and
risk management systems

+ Considering the effectiveness of the Group's internal audit
function and monitoring internal audit activities

* Reviewing arrangements by which the Group’s employees may
confidentially raise concerns about possible improprieties

= Providing guidance to the Board in its consideration of whether
the annuat report and accounts are fair, balanced and
understandable

The Committee is authorised to seek any information it requires from
any employee af the Group in order to perform its duties, and to
obtain any outside legal or gther professional advice it requires at the
Company's expense,

The Committee reviews its terms of reference and its effectiveness
annually, angd recommends to the Board any changes required as the result
of the review.

Meetings

Meetings of the Committee are attended, at the invitation of the Chairman,
by the external auditor, the Chairman of the Board, the Group Chief
Executive, the Group Finance Director, the internal auditers and
representatives from the Group finance function, The Committee meers
with the external and internal auditors on a regular basis without the
executive directors being present. The Company Secretary acts as
secretary to the Committee and minutes of meetings are circulated to

all Board members.

A verbal report on key issues discussed by the Committee is provided to
the Board after every meeting.

The Committee plans to meet four times in the current financial year.
The Chairman of the Committee meets regularly with the Group Finance

Director, the external audit lead partner and the internal audit lead
partner cutside of scheduled meetings.

Principal activities of the Audit Committee during
the year

November 2016

= Approval of the external auditor’s finalised year end audit plan
+ Consideration of KPMG's imernal audit report

+ Approval of the internal audit plan for 2017

January 2017

+ Rewview of the status of the Group’s significant research and development
projects, and assccated capitalised develapment costs

Review of the Group's preliminary announcement and annual results for the
year ended 31 October 2016, including the Group's going concern status and
the viability statement

= Consideration of the auditor's report on the results of the full year audit

+ Consideration of KPMG's internal audrt report

April 2017

+ Considerauon and approval of the early adopuen of IFRS 15

= Consideravon of the auditor’s plan for the half year results review

« Consideravon of KPMG's internal audit report

* Annual review of the Committee’s terms of reference

= Consideraton of the Group Legal Director's ethics and compliance report

« Review of the Group's whistleblowing policy and procedures

June 2017

+ Review of the Group's use of Alternauve Performance Measures

= Updated status review of the Group’s significant research and development
prejects, and assocrated capitalised developrment osts

= Review of the Group's half year results, including the going concern status
» Consideration of the auditor's report or the results of the interim review
= Considerauon of KPMG's internat audit report

= Review of the proposed establishment and remit of the US Audit Committee

September 2017

» Review of audit services for the year ended 31 October 2017
= Consideration of the auditar's plan for the full year audit

» Annual review of policy on the provision of non-audit services by the
external auditor

» Consideration of KPMG’s internal audit report

* Approval of the internal audit plan for 2018
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Governance

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT continued

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES CONSIDERED BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE DURING THE YEAR IN RELATION
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue

recognition
policies and
procedures

The Commuittee raviews the Group’s revenue recogmtion policies and procedures an an ongoing basis, to ensure that they
remain appropriate and that the Group's internal controls are operatng effectively in this area The Committee
considered the key assumprrons underlying the accounting treatment of any material contract with a customer where
judgement on revenue recognitton was required.

The Group's adoption of IFRS 15 has led to a more prudent revenue recognition appreach, with some revenue being
recogrised later than it would have been under the previous standard.

Impairment of
goodwill and other
intangible assets

The Committee considered both the recognised impairment foss in respect of the Chemring Defence UK business and
rmanagement's review of the carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets held on the Group's balance sheer as at 31
October 2016 and 30 April 2017, against the Jatest forecasts for each of the applicable businesses

Capitalised
development costs

The Committee continued to manitor the level of development costs capitalised during the year and the periods over
which such costs are to be amortised. Detailed reviews of the Group's ten most significant research and development
projects, and their associated caprtalised development costs, were undertaken by the Comruttee in January 2017 and june
2017

Deferred tax
assets on tax
losses and US
interest
deductions

The Committee considered the management's review of the recoverability of US interest deductions and tax losses
carried forward. A review of management's projections of future taxable profits that will be available to uulise tax losses
and interest carned forward, and the assumptians made. was undertaken by the Comrmittes.

Going concern and
long-term viability

In order to satisfy itself that the Group has sufficient financial resources to emable it to continue trading for the foreseeable
future, the Committee regularly reviews the adequacy of the Group’s financing facilities against future funding
requirements and working capital projectiens.

Based on its review of the Group’s forecasts and discussions with the external audicor, the Committee recommended to
the Board the adoption of the going concern basis for the preparation of bath the 2016 financial statements and the 2017
interim results.

The Group was also required to make a statement on its long-term viability in the 2016 financial statements The
Committee considered the periad over which the Group’s wiability would be assessed and having concluded that a
three-year period was appropriate, the Committee undertook a review of the analysis and projections which supported
the viability assessment prior to submission to the Board

EXTERNAL AUDIT

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and remaval of the Company’s
extarnal auditor. The Committee also undertakes an annual assessment of the auditor’s independence and objectivity, taking into account relevant
professianal and regulatory requirements and the relationship with the auditor as a whole, including the prowision of any non-audit services.
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Audit effectiveness and tendering

The Committee keeps the assessment of the need to tender the audit mandate under continuing review. Deloitte LLP (“Deloitte”) and its predecessor
firms have been auditor to the Group for over 15 years and during this time a tender has not been conducted.

2017 represents Anna Marks’ fifth year as the lead audit partner. In view of this, the EU regulatory change which requires a change of auditor in 2020, and
the extensive period that Deloitte has been auditor, the Audit Committee concluded it was an apprepriate time to offer the external audit work for tender.

The Audit Committee considered the timing and process of the tender against a background of substantial regulatory developments. It concluded that it
was in the bestinterests of the Group to commence the tender process following the publication of the 2017 results. Subject to the successful selection
and appointment of a new audit firm, the Board continues to recommend the reappointment of Deloitte at the Annual General Meeting, The result of
the tender and appropriate transition arrangements will be advised in due course.

In assessing the effectiveness of the external auditor during the year, the Committee reviewed and considered:
« the arrangements for ensuring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity;

= the external auditor’s fulfilment of the agreed audit plan and any variations from the plan;

= the robustness and perceptiveness of the auditor in their handling of the key accounting and audit judgments;
* the content of the external auditor’s reports and internal control recommendations; and

* the feedback received on the conduct of the external audits from key people involved in the audit process.

There are no contractual or similar obligations to restrict the choice of external auditor.

Auditor independence

The Committee keeps under review the level of any non-audit services which are provided by the external auditer, to ensure that this does notimpair
their independence and objectivity.

The Committee has adopted a policy which states that the external auditor should not be appointed to provide any non-audit services to the Group.
unless the Committee agrees that their appointment would be in the best interests of the Company's shareholders in particular circumstances and
would not create any direct conflict with their role as external auditor. In approving any such appointment, the Committee is also required to consider:
= whether the provision of the proposed services might compromise the auditor's independence or objectivity;

« whether the non-audit services will have a direct or material effect on the Group’s audited financial statements;

= whether the skills and experience of the external auditor make it the most suitable supplier of the nen-audit services; and

« the level of fees proposed for the nen-audit services relative to the audit fees.

The external auditor is required to provide the Committee with a written confirmation of independence for all duly-approved engagements for
non-audit services.

The policy adopted by the Committee expressly prohibits the provision of certain non-audit services by the external auditor, in line with regulatory
reguirements and UK ethical guidance.

Dreloitte did not provide any additional services to the Group during the year under review. With effect from | November 2016, Deloitte ceased to
provide any tax-related services to the Group.

Details of the amcunts paid to the external auditor during the year for audit are set outin note 4 to the Group financial statements.

The Cormmittee, in conjunction with the Group Finance Director, ensures that the Group maintains relationships with a sufficient choice of
appropriately-qualified alternative audit firms for the provision of non-aydit services.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the work undertaken by the Group’s internal auditors, assessing the adequacy of the internal audit
resource, and recommending changes for increasing the scope of the internal audir activities.

The Group's internal audit programme incorporates an annual rolling review of all businesses, and focuses on both financial ard non-financial contrels
and procedures. The Committee approves the annual internal audit plan and receives regular reports from the internal auditors.

KPMG LLP has been appointed by the Committee ta provide internal audit services for the Group. The KPMG internal audit programme covers
financial and commercial processes, governance issues, and key corporate risks. The internal audit plan for 2017 included specific focus on:

« IT and cyber security risk management and controls;

+ adherence to the Group's Bribery Act Compliance Manual; and

* the key financiai and operating controls at each business.

KPMG presents its internal audit reports to the Committee on 2 quarterly basis. The management of each business is responsible for implementing the
recommendations made by the internal auditors, and the Committee reviews progress on a regular basis.

Having undertaken a review of the effectiveness of KPMG in fulfilling the internal audit functien, the Committee is satisfied that the guality, experience
and expertise of KPMG meets the Company's requirements, and KPMG has therefore been reappointed te provide internal audit services for the
Group in 2018. In 2018 the work programme for internal zudit will move to a site rotation basis where every site will be covered on a two or three-year
rotational basis and KPMG will create bespoke risk-based testing plans for each site.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Annual statement by the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Dear Shareholder

t am pleased to present the directors’ remuneraton report for the
year ended 3| October 2017

As noted in last year’s report the Remuneration Committee
conducted a comprehensive review of the remuneration policy
during 2016 and as a result put forward a revised policy for
sharehclder approval at the 2017 Arnnual General Meeting. When
developing this proposal, the Commitiee undertock extensive
consultation with major shareholders and shareholder
representative bodies and recerved generally positive feedback.
However, during the run up to the 2017 Annual General Meeting,
the Committee noted that, while majority support would have been
received for the revised policy, a number of shareholders still had
reservations. The Board therefore decided not to proceed with the
proposed policy.

This means that, for the year under review, we continued with the
remuneration policy which was approved at the 2016 Annual
General Meeting. We remain of the view that updating the policy is
necessary to attract and retain the right calibre of talent and 1o align
with the evolving corporate strategy. However, we feel that itis
important to take time to re-engage with shareholders to reach a
greater consensus and that this will be best achieved by conducting a
further review in the run-up to the required policy approval at the
2019 Annual General Meeting. As a result we will not be making any
changes to the policy or its operation for the 2018 financial year, but
will spend significant time during the coming year talking to major
shareholders about formulating an optimal remuneration policy.

Performance outcomes

In line with the remuneration policy approved in 2016, the
Committee operated an annual bonus with share deferral as well as
alonger-term performance share plan for the executive directors.

The annual bonus was based on two elements — 75% based on
financial targets (namely earnings per share (“"EPS") and operating
cash flow) and 25% based on personal abjectives. The Committee
has continued to set stretching targets which require superior
performance to achieve the maximum bonus. As set out in the
strategic report, Chemring’s financial performance for the year
under review has been positive, with underlying EPS having increased
by 25.2%. The operating cash flow targets for the year were not met,
primarily as a result of the investment in working capital associated
with the fuifilment of profitable contracts in the Energetics segment.
In terms of personal objectives, the three executive directors achieved
between 82% and 88% of their personal objectives. This performance
resulted in annual bonuses being payable to each individual between
58% and 60% of their ndwidual maximum opportunity.

The long-term equity-based incentive performance shares granted in
January 2015 to the two executive directors employed by Chemring
at that time were subject to two performance measures. Half of the
awards were subject to an EPS growth measure over the three years
that ended on 3| October 2017 and the remaining half were subject
te a relative total shareholder return measure. Compound EPS
growth over the three-year performance period was 8.01% p.a. and
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the Company’s TSR was below the median of the comparator group.
Based on this performance, 35.075% of these awards will vest on 26
January 2018, subject to continued employment and the rules of the
scheme.

The Cammittee is satisfied that the level of pay-out under the
incentive plans is representative of the Company's performance over
the respective one and three-year performance periods.

Other Committee activities during the year

In addition to the evaluation of the policy review, the Committee
undertocok a number of other regular activities in connection with
remuneration during the year, details of which are set out on page
64. In addition, the Committee agreed the remuneration-related
elements of the recruitment of Andrew Lewis as Group Finance
Director (further details of which are provided in the report).

The Commuttee also considers the overall environment with regard
to executive remuneration in the various jurisdictions relevant to
Chemring’s operations and, in particular, relevantissues such as the
recently-introduced gender pay data disclosure requirements and
the remuneration aspects of the UK Government’s response to the
Green Paper on Corporate Governance Reform and the FRC's
review of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

Conclusion

| hope you will find this report helpful and informative, and look
forward to receiving your support for the advisory resclution for the
remuneration report 1o be tabled at our forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. In the meantime, | would welcome any feedback or
comments you have on the report or the policy in general and any
comments you would Jike to feed into the remuneration policy
review process leading up to the 2019 Annual General Meeting.
Please do not hesitate to contact me in regard to remuneration
matters via Sarah Ellard, Group Legal Director & Company Secretary
at sarahe@chemring.co.uk.

Daniel Dayan
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee



PART A - REMUNERATION POLICY

This report sets out the information required by Part 4 of Schedule 8 to the Large and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 {as amended) {the "Regulations”). The report also satisfies the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authority, and describes how the Board has applied the principles and complied with the provisions relating to directers’ remuneration in the UK
Corporate Governance Code.

Part A of this report represents the directors’ remuneration policy. Part B constitutes the implementation sections of the report {the "Annual Report
on Remuneration™). The auditors have reported on certain sections of Part B and stated whether, in their opinion. thase parts have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006. Those sections of Part B subject to audit are clearly indicated.

The Remuneraticn Commitiee has been established by the Board and is responsible for the remuneration of the executive directors and the Chairman.
The Committee's terms of reference are available in full on the Company’s website or from the Company Secretary on request.

In determining remuneration for the executive directors, the Remuneration Committee seeks to maintain a competitive package of rewards required to
promate the long-term success of the Company, without {i) being excessive by reference to market rates across comparator companies and (i) neither
encouraging nor rewarding inappropriate risk-taking. Performance-related elements should be transparent, stretching and rigorously applied, form a
significant proportion of the total remuneration package of each executive director, and align the interests of executives with those of shareholders, by
ensuring that a significant proporticon of remuneration is performance-related and delivered in shares.

The table below summarises the Committee’s policy on the remuneration of executive directors, as approved by shareholders
at the 2016 Annual General Meeting and which can be found in the 2015 directors’ remuneration report

{htrp://www.chemring.co.uk Zinvestars/reports-archive/2015.a2spx). The policy remains valid until the 2019 Annual General Meeting.

Further details of the full policy are set out on pages 60 to 63.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Purpase and link

Element to strategy Operation Maximum Performance assessment
Salary + Reflects the + Normally reviewed » Salary increases will + None, aithough overall indvidual and company
performance of annually with effect from normally be i line with performance 15 a factor considered when setuing and
the individual, their | January those received by the reviewing salaries
N o .
skills a d * Benchmarked periodically wider woridorce
experience over . .
- against companies with = More significant
time, and the
oo similar characteristics and mncreases may be
responsibilities of . .
companies within the same awarded at the
the role :
sector discretion of the
) :m:'de: in level Salaries take account of Cf\)mml:‘tee. for e):‘ar:pele
ppropnate leve complexity of the rofe, where there 1s a chang
of basic fixed . in responsibilities, to
N market competiuveness, s
income, avoiding reflect individual
: Group performance and
excessive risk R development and
arising from the increases awarded to o i the rol
.
g the wider workforce perlarmance e role
over-reliance on
variable income
Bonus » Incentivises annual  + Paid in cash, with up to = Group Chief Executive * Mix of Group financial objectives and personal
delivery of 40% deferred as a - 125% of salary objectives — financial objectives will determine the
financial, strategic conditional award of . majority of the award and will typically include a
* Other executive L
and personal goals deferred shares directors - 100% of measure of profiability and cash flow, although the
™ Committee has discretion to select other metrics
* Maximum bonus = Vesting of deferred shares salary
only payable for 15 subject 1o continued = Personal objectives will be measurable and linked to
achieving employment (save in "good goals that are consistent with the Group’s longer-
demanding targets leaver" scenarios) at the term goals
. d of thi fr .
« Delivery of a end of three years from the + Payment of the personal objectives element will be
. award of the bonus . A
propartion of subject to an underpih based on the Committee's
bonus in deferred = The payment of any earned assessment of underlying business performance,
shares pius the bonus remains ultimately at including inter afia levels of profitability and cash flow.
ability ta receive the discrevon of the as well as health and safety performance
dividend ML
€ Commitcee + Performance below the threshold for each financial
equivalents . .
. Non-pensionable target results in zero payment in respect of that
prowdes alignment : 2,
\ . element. Payment rises from 0% to 100% of the
with shareholders' « Executives are entitled 1o .
) ! maximum opportunity for levels of performance
interests and receive, o vesting of i
; A between threshald and maximum with 50% of the
assists with deferred share awards, the nortally payable for on-target
retention value of dividend payments maximum ¥ payable for on-targ
. performance
that would atherwise have
been paid on the deferred < Includes a dawback mechanism in the event of
shares during the deferral misconduct, error in calculation of performance, ora
period material misstatement of the Group's financial results
Long-term = Incentivises = Annual grants of shares, « Normally |50% of base = Awards from 2014 onwards are subject to targets
incentive plan executives 1o which vest subject to the salary {although grants based on EPS growth and relative TSR measured
{performance achieve targets Group's performance of up to 200% of base against a peer group of international defence sector
share plan aligned to the measured over at least salary may be made in companies. For awards granted in 2018, each
- “PSP™) Group's main three years exceptional measure will determine the vesting of 50% of the

strategic cbjectives
of delivering
sustainable growth
and shareholder
returns

.

Delivery of
awards In shares
plus the ability to
receive dividend
equivalents helps
ahgn executives’
rewards with
shareholders'
interasts

arcumstances such as

Execunves are enutled o
on retirement)

receive the value of
dividend payments that
would otherwise have been
paid on vested awards

= All awards are subject to
the discretons given to the
Committee in the plan
rules during the vesting
period

award; however, the Committee will bave discretron
to set different weightngs for awards in future years

Targets for the EPS condition are set by the
Remuneration Committee prior to each grant.
Targets for the relauve TSR condition are based on a
shding scale, with median representing threshold
performance and upper quartile representing H
maximum performance

Far each measure, performance below threshold
results in zero payment. Payment nises from 25% to
100% of the maximum opportunity for that measure
for levels of performance between threshold and
maximum

Includes a clawback mechanism in the event of :
misconduct, error in caleulation of performance, ora
material misstatement of the Group's financial results
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Purpose and link

Element to strategy Operation Maximum Performance assessment
All-employee = All employees, + The UK Sharesave Plan * Participation limits are = N/A

share ncluding and US$ Stock Purchase those set by the

schemes executive Plans have standard terms relevant tax authorines

directors, are
encouraged to
acquire shares by
parucipating in the
Group'’s
all-employee
share plans - the
UK Sharesave
Plan and the US
Stock Purchase

from time-to-ume

Plan
Pension + Prowides + Ongoing pension provision 0% of base salary = N/A
retirement is in the form of a cash cash supplement
benefits that supplement, subject to contribution paid in heu
reward sustained auto-enrolment in the of occupavonal pension
contribution Group's stakeholder scheme membership
scheme + However, from
= Longer-serving employees | January 2014, all LK
have accrued benefits employees, including
under the Group’s defined the executive directors,
benefit scheme, which was were subject o
closed ro future accrual for auto-enrolment ino the
the executive directors on Group's defined
6 April 2010 contribution
stakeholder scheme,
with an employer
contribution of 4% of
base salary. If exacutives
do not opt out of this
scheme, their cash
suppletnent will be
reduced by 4%
Other * Prowides a * Main benefits currendy » Cash allowance in lieu < N/A
benefits competitive provided to UK executives of company car of up
package of are a car allowance, ke to £25.000 per annum
benefits that assurance, permanent « Other benefits will be in
assists with health insurance and N .
line with market. The
recruitment and private medical insurance L
; value of each benefit is
retention

Notes:

I
2.

Executive directors are
eligivle for ather benefits
which may also be
intraduced for the wider
warkforce on broadly
similar terms

based on the cost to
the Company and is not
pre-determmed

Any reasonable
business-related
expenses (induding tax
thereon) can be
reimbursed if
determined to be a
taxable benefit

A descripuon of how the Company intends to implement the policy set cutin this table for the forthcoming year is set out in the annual report on remuneration on pages 64 to 74.
The remuneration policy for the executive directars and other senicr executives is designed with regard to the palicy for employees across the Group as a whole. However, there
are some differences in the structure of the remuneration pelicy for executive directors and other senior executives. In general, these differences arise from the development of
remuneration arrangements that are market-competitve for the various categories of individuals. They also reflect the fact that, in the case of the executive directors and other
senior execytives, a greater emphasis tends ta be placed on performance-related pay in the market,

All-employee share plans do not have performance conditions, UK-based executive directors are eligible ta participate in the UK Sharesave Plan on the same terms as other emplayees.
As described on page 70, the Company operates share ownership guidelines requiring executive directers to acquire and hold a specified level of shareholding.

The Committee may make minor amendments to the policy set cut above for regulatary, exchange control, tax or administrative purposes or to take account of a change in
legislation, without obeaining sharehslder approval for that amendment.

The Regulations and related investor guidance encourages companies ta disclose a cap within which each element of the directors’ remunerauon palicy will operate. Where
maximum amounts for elements of remuneration have been set within the policy, these will operate simply as caps and are not indicative of any aspiration

While the Committee dees not consider it to form part of benefits in the normal usage of that term, it has been advised that corparate hospitality, whether paid for by the Company
or another, and business travel for directors and sn exceptional arcumstances their famibes, may techmically come within the apphcable rules, and so the Committee expressly
reserves the right for the Commuittee to authorise such activities within its agreed pelicies (and to discharge any related tax liability).
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Committee discretions

The Committee operates the Group's variable incentive plans according to their respective rules and in accordance with governing legislation and
HMRC rules where relevant. To ensure the efficent administration of these plans, the Committee will apply certain operational discretions. These
include the following:

» selecting the parucipants in the plans on an annual basis; .
« determining the timing of grants of awards and/or payment;
= determining the quantum of awards and/or payments {within the limits set ourt in the policy table above);
» determining the extent of vesting based on the assessment of performance;
* making the appropriate adjustments required in certain circumstances (e.g. change of contral, rights issues, carparate restructuring events and
special dividends);
= determining “good ieaver” status for incentive plan purposes and applying the appropriate treatment; and
- undertaking the annual review of weighting of performance measures. and setting targets for the annual bonus plan and the PSP from year to year.

If an event occurs which results in the annual bonus plan or PSP performance conditions and/or targets being deemed no longer appropriate by the
Committee {e.g. a material acquisition or divestment), the Committee will have the ability to adjust appropriately the measures and/or targets and aiter
weightings, provided that the revised conditions or targets are not materially less difficult to satisfy (taking account of the relevant circumstances).

Selection of performance metrics and targets

The performance-related elements of remuneration take into account the Group's risk policies and systems, and are designed to align the senior
executives' interests with those of shareholders. The Committee reviews the metrics used and targets set for all of the Group's senior executives {not
just the executive directors) every year, in order to ensure that they are aligned with the Group’s strategy and to ensure an appropriate level of
consistency of arrangements amongst the senior executive team. All financial targets will (where appropriate) be set on a sliding scale. Non-financial
targets are set based on individual and management team responsibilities,

The annual bonus plan performance metrics include a mix of financial targets and personal objectives, reflecting the key annual priorities of the Group.
The financial metrics determine the majority of the bonus and normally include operating cash flow — a key measure of the Group’s ability to investin
the business, and a measure of profitability, which together reflect the Group's financial performance and are key measures for shareholders. For the
2018 financial year, the measure of profitability will be underlying earnings per share. The personal objectives agreed on an annual basis will be
measurable and based cn individual perfarmance, and will be consistent with the achievement of the Group’s longer-term goals.

The Committee has decided to apply total sharehclder return (“TSR™) and earnings per share {"EPS") performance conditions to awards made under
the PSP, EPS is a measure of the Group's overall financial success and TSR provides an external assessment of the Company’s performance against a
peer group. TSR also aligns the rewards received by executives with the returns received by shareholders. Details of the EPS targets applied to 2017
awards and those to be made in 2018 are set out on pages 68 and 74, and further details on the TSR targets for 2017 and 2018 awards are also set cut on
pages 69 and 74.

The Cammittee will review the choice and relative balance of performance measures and the appropriateness of performance targets prior to each
grant of awards under the PSP. The EPS targets are reset prior to each grant, following a review of internal and external expectations of future EPS
growth for the Group, and are based on growth in adjusted EPS. The TSR comparator group is reviewed prior to each grant to ensure it remains as
appropriate as possible, recognising the small size of the UK-listed defence company sector and the individual characteristics of each company. The
Committee retains discretion to set different targets for future awards, providing that, in the opinion of the Committee, the new targets are no less
challenging in light of the prevaziling circumstances than those set previously. if substantially different targets to those used previously are proposed,
major shareholders will be consulted.

How employees’ pay is taken into account

In addition to determining the remuneration arrangements for the executive directors, the Committee considers and approves the base salaries for
thirteen other senior executives, and reviews salaries for the next ter of management at each of the Group’s businesses. The Committee also receives
information on general pay levels and palicies across the Group. The Committee, therefore, has due regard to salary levels across the Group in applying
its remuneration policy. However, reflecting standard induscry practce, the Committee does not cansult with employees in relation to the design and
operation of the executive remuneration policy, although the Committee will continue to monitor regulatory developments in this area.

How the executive directors’ remuneration policy relates to the wider Group
The remuneration policy described above provides an overview of the structure that operates for the most senior executives in the Group. Lower

aggregate incentive quanta are applied at below executive level, with levels driven by market comparatives and the impact of the role.

Employees are provided with a competitive package of benefits, which typically includes participation in the Group's defined contribution pension
arrangements.

Long-term incentives are provided to the most senior executives and those identified as having the greatest potential to influence performance within

the Group. However, in order to encourage wider employee share ownership, the Company also operates a Sharesave Plan in the UK, in which all UK
employees are eligible to participate on completion of six months’ service.
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How shareholders' views are taken into account

The Remuneration Committee considers shareholder feedback received an the directors’ remuneration report each year and guidance from
shareholder representatve bodies more generally. Shareholders’ views are key inputs when shaping remuneration policy, with the Company's major
shareholders being consulted in advance in connection with proposed changes to policy. A substantial consultation exercise is expected during 2018
leading up 1o presentation of the remuneration paoiicy resoluticn at the 2019 Annual General Meeting, and shareholders’ direct participation in this
consultation would be welcomed.

Legacy arrangements

For the avoidance of doubt, authority is given to the Company to honour any commitments entered into with current or former directors (such as the
payment of a pension or the unwinding of legacy share schemes) permitted under the current policy or which have been disclosed 1o shareholders in
previcus directors’ rermuneration reports. Derails of any payments 1o former directors will be set outin the annual repart on remuneration as they arise.

External appointments

The Company’s policy is to permit an executive director to serve as a hon-executive director elsewhere when this does not conflict with the individual's
duties to the Company, and where an executive directer takes such a role they may be entitled to retain any fees which they earn from that appointment.

Potential remuneration scenarios for executive directors

The chart below details the hypothetical composition of each executive director’s remuneration package and how it could vary at different levels of
performance under the policy set out above.

Assumptions:

I. Minimum = fixed pay only (2018 salary plus benefits plus pension cash supplement).
On target = fixed pay plus target annual bonus of 62.5% of salary for the Group Chief Executive znd 50% for the ather executive directors plus target PSP awards of 37.5% of salary
for the Group Chiel Executive and the other executive directors.
Maximum = fixed pay plus maximum annual bonus of 125% of salary for the Group Chief Executive and 100% for the ather executive directers plus maximum PSP awards of [50% of
salary for the Group Chief Executive and the other execuuve directors.

2. Asrequired by the Regulatiens, no account is taken of the impact that future share price growth might have an the value of remuneration delivered in shares.

3. The PSP awards section of the bars is shaded, as these awards are subject to performance In future years and cannot ordinarily vest untit three years after grant.

4. Salary levels (on which other elements of the packages are calculated) are based on these applying from | January 2018. Note that Sarah Ellard’s remuneratan reflects her current
contraciual office-based hours, and may be increased or decreased pro-rata should these change in future.

5. The value of taxable benefits is based on an estimated cost of £22,500 for Michael Flowers, £21,000 for Andrew Lewis and £20,500 for Sarah Ellard.

6. Pension provision is 20% of salary for each director.

7. The executive directors may participate in all-employee share schemes an the same basis as other employees. The value that may be received under these schemes is subject to
tax-approved limits. For simplicity, the value that may be received from participating in these schemes has been excluded from the above chart.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Policy on payments for loss of office

All new executive directors appoeinted will have service contracts which are terminable on a maximum of twelve months’ notice. Provisions permitting
the Company to make any termination payments by instalments, and requiring directors ta mitgate their loss in such circumstances, wilt be included in
each contract. The Remuneration Committee will exercise discretion in determining whether termination payments should be paid by instalments,
taking account of the reason for the departure of the director and their prior performance. Other than in gross misconduct situations, the Company
wauld expect to honour the contractual entitlements of terminated directors.

Other than in certain “good leaver” circumstances (including, but not imited to, redundancy. ill-health or retirement), no bonus would be payable under
the annual bonus plan unless the individual remains employed and is not under notice at the payment date. Any honus paid to a "good leaver” would be
based on an assessment of their individual and the Company’s performance over the period, and would normally be pro-rated for the proportion of the
year worked.

Deferred bonus share awards will also normally lapse on cessation of employment, unless the execuuve director is deemed to be a “"good leaver” by the
Remuneration Committee, as referred to above, in which case they would vestin full.

With regards to long-term incentive awards, the PSP rules provide that other than in certain “good leaver” circumstances, awards lapse on cessation of
employment. Where an individual is a “good leaver”, the Remuneration Committee's policy for PSP awards made frem 2014 onwards is normally to
permit awards to remain outstanding until the end of the original performance period. when a pro-rata reduction will be made to take account of the
proportion of the vesting period that lapsed prior to termination of employment, although the Committee has the discretion to partly or compietely
disapply pro-rating in exceptional circumstances. The Committee has discretion to deem an individual to be a “good leaver™. In doing so, it will take
account of the reason for their departure and the performance of the individual.

The Committee will have zuthority to pay any statutory entitlements and settle claims against the Company {e.g. for unfair dismissal, discrimination or

whistleblowing) that arise on terminaticn. The Committee may also authorise the provision of outplacement services and settle legal fees where
cansidered appropriate.

Executive directors’ service agreements and loss of office payments

The current executive directors have rolling service contracts, details of which are summarised in the table below:

Provision Detailed terms

Contract dates Michael Flowers - 23 June 2014 (effective 24 June 2014)
Andrew Lewis - 12 December 2016 {effecove 9 January 2017)
Sarah Bliard - 2 November 2011 {effective 7 October 2011)

Notice period Twelve months from both the Company and from the executive
Termination Contracts may be terminated without notice by the payment of 2 sum equal to the sum of salary due for the unexpired notice
payments pericd plus the fair value of any contractual benefits (ncluding penston)

Payments may be made in instalments and in these circumstances there 1s a requirement to mitigate loss

The Company’s policy on service agreements reflects the approach described above (e.g. notice periods will normally be twelve months or less).

The executive directors’ service cantracts are available for inspection at the Company's registered office.
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Recruitment of executive directors

Salaries for new hires (including internal promotions) will be set to reflect their skills and experience, the Company’s intended pay positioning, and the
markec rate for the applicable rale.

Where it is appropriate to offer a below-market salary initially, the Committee has the discretion to allow phased salary increases over a pericd of time
for newly-appointed directors, even though this may involve increases in excess of the rate for the wider workforce and inflation.

Benefits will be provided in line with those offered to other executive directors, taking account of local market practice, with relocation expenses or
arrangements provided if necessary. Tax equalisation may also be considered if an executive is adversely affected by taxation due to their employment
with the Company. Legal fees and other costs incurred by the individual may alsc be paid by the Company.

The aggregate incentive oppartunity offered to new recruits will normally be no higher than that offered under the existing incentive plans to the
incumbent executive directors. Different performance measures and targets may be setinitially for the annual bonus plan, taking into account the
responsibilities of the individual and the point at the financial year at which they join. A performance share plan award may be granted shortly following
appointment (assuming the Company is not in a close period). Any incentive guantum offered abeove the limits set out in the existing incentive plans and
policy will {save as set out below) be contingent on the Company receiving shareholder approval for an amendment to its approved policy atits next
general meeting.

Current entitlements of 2 new joiner from their previous employer that are forfeited (e g. benefits, bonus and share schemes) may be bought out on
terms that take due account of the nature of the entitlements in terms of (for example) time horizon, fair value and performance conditicns. The
Group's existing incentive arrangements will be used tc the extent possible, although awards may also be granted outside of these arrangements if
necessary, and as permitted under the Listing Rules, reflecting the above parameters. Such awards will not, in accordance with the Regulatians, be
subject to the limits of the remunerauan policy for incentive pay.

In the case of an internal hire, any outstanding variable pay awarded in relation to the previous rale will be allowed to pay out according 16 its terms of
grant (adjusted as relevant to take into account the Board appointment).

Policy for non-executive directors

Purpose and link Performance
Element to strategy Operation Maximum  assessment
Non-executive Takes account of + The Chairman is paid a single fee for zall his responsibilities. The « N/A < N/A
directors’ and recognised practice noh-executives are paid a basic fee. The Chairs of the
Chairman's fees and set at a level Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee each receive

thatis sufficient to additional fees to reflect their extra responsibilities

attract and retain *  When reviewing fee levels, account is taken of market movemnents

high-calibre in non-executive director fees, Board committee responsibilities,

non-executives ongaing time commitments, the general economic envirgnment and

the level of increases awarded to the wider workforce

- Feeincreases, if applicable, are normally effective from April of
each year

* Non-executive directars do not participate in any pension, bonus
or share incentive plans

= MNon-executive directors may be compensated for travel,
accommodation or hospitality-related expenses in connecuon with
their roles and any tax thereon

+ |nexceptional circumstances, additional fees may be paid where
there is a substantial increase in the time commitment required of
non-executive directors

Chairman’s and non-executive directors’ letters of appointment

Non-executive directors do not receive compensation for lass of office but are appointed for a fixed term of three years, renewable for further
three-year terms if both parties agree and sutiject to annual re-election by shareholders. The Chairman’s appcintment may be terminated on six
months’ notice by either party and the other non-executive directors’ appointments may be terminated on three months' notice by either party. The
non-executive directors’ letters of appointment are available for inspection at the Company’s registered office.

The following table provides further details of the terms of appointment for the non-executive directors who served during the year:

Expected

Darte onginal Date current expiry date af

Name term commenced  term commenced current term
Carl-Peter Forster | May 2018 | May 2016 30 April 2019
Andrew Davies I7 May 2016 17 May 2016 16 May 2019
Daniel Dayan 7 March 2016 7 March 2016 6 March 2019
Nigel Young | May 2013 | May 2016 30 April 2019
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT continued

PART B - ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATICN

This part of the report has been prepared in accordance with Part 3 of Schedule 8 1o The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2008 (as amended), and 9.8 6R of the Listing Rules. The annual report on remunerauon will be put to an advisory sharehcldar
vote at the 2018 Annual General Meeting, The information on pages 64 to 74 has been audited.

THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND ITS ADVISERS

Members of the Remuneration Committee

The following individuals were members of the Remuneration Committee during the year:

Name Fram To
Daniel Dayan (Chairman) 7 March 2016 Present
Carl-Peter Forster [ May 2016 Present
Andrew Davies I7 May 2016 Present
Nigel Young | May 2013 Present

The Group Legal Director & Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Committee, and the Group Chief Executive and the Group Finance Director
attend meetings by invitation, but no executive director or other employee is present during discussions relating directly to their own remuneration.

Meetings

The Remuneration Committee met for three scheduled meetings during the year. In addition, three additional ad hoc meetings were convened to deal
with matters arising between scheduled meetings. Details of the attendance of the Commitiee members at meetings are set cut on page 47 of the
Corporate governance report.

Principal activities of the Remuneration Committee during the year

November 2016

= Review of inrtial feedback from shareholders on the proposed new incentive plan

» Consideration of potential financial targets for the proposed new incentive plan

» Consideration of salary levels for the executive directors and the senior management team

January 2017

+ Consideration of bonus outturn for the 2016 finanaal year
- Approval of the directors' remuneration report for 2016

- Approval of the proposed new remuneration policy for the execuuve directors and detailed terms of the propased new incentive plan

March 2017

+ Review of further feedback from shareholders on the proposed new remuneration policy for the executive directors and the proposed new Incentive plan

+ Approval of financial targets and personal objectives for the 2017 annuat bonus plan

* Grant of 2017 awards under the Performance Share Plan

September 2017

= Consideration of treatment of “goed leavers” under the Performance Share Plan

Advisers

During the year, FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP ("FIT") were retained by the Committee to advise on remuneration and incentive plan related
matters. FIT is a signatory to the Remuneration Consukants’ Group Code of Conduct. The Committee has reviewed the nature of the services
provided by FIT and is satisfied that no conflict of interest exists in the provision of these services. The Company received no other services from FIT
during the year. The total fees paid to FIT in respect of services ta the Committee during the year were £45,562 (2016: £25,792 paid to FIT and £47,300
paid to the Committee’s former retained adviser, New Bridge Street). Fees were determined based on the scope and nature of the projects undertaken
for the Committee.

The Committee reviews the performance and independence of its advisers on an annual basis.

The Committee consults internally with the Group Chief Executive (Michael Flowers) and the Group Legal Director & Company Secretary {Sarah Ellard).
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DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of all the directors who served during the year are shown below:

Bonus {cash and

Salaries Taxable deferred Pension
/fees benef.ts' shares)’ PSP? benefits® Total
Year 7000 £'000 £'000 £900 £000 £'000
Executives
Michael Flowers 2017 415 23 310 - 83 831
2016 406 24 347 - al 855
Andrew Lewis® 2047 265 16 193 - 53 527
2016 - - - - - -
Sarah Ellard 2017 208 20 121 - 42 391
2016 204 23 141 - 4] 409
Non-executives

Carl-Peter Forster® 20017 200 - - - - 200
201é 100 - — - - 100
Andrew Davies’ 2017 58 - - - - L1
2018 25 - - - - 25
Daniel Dayan® 2017 65 - - - - &5
2018 43 - - - - 43
Nige! Young® 2017 (1 - - - - (1]
2008 63 - - - - &3
Total remuneration 2017 1,274 59 624 - 178 2,135
2018 841 44 488 - 122 1,495

Notes:

I, Comprises a fully-expensed company car for Sarah Ellard (annual lease cost £10.186) up te 19 August 2C16 and cash allowance of £19,350 per annum thereafrer; car-related cash

allowance of £20,000 per annum up te 31 May 2016 and £21,500 per annum thereafter for Michael Flowers; and car-related cash allewance of £19,350 per annum for Andrew Lewis;

plus private medical insurance far each of the executive directaors.

40% of any bonus is delivered as an award of deferred shares, Bonuses had accrued but had not yet been paid at the date of this report.

PSP awards that were due to vest during the year lapsed in full. PSP awards granted in January 2015 are due to vest an 26 January 2018, as reported on page &68.

The executive directors receive a cash supplement of 20% of salary in liew of occupational pension scheme membership.

Andrew Lewis joined the Company on 9 January 2017 and was appointed to the Board on 19 January 2017.

Carl-Peter Forster joined the Board on | May 2816,

Andrew Davies joined the Board on 17 May 2016

Daniel Dayan joined the Board on 7 March 2016. Daniel receives an additional fee of £10.000 per annum, included in the above figures, in respect of his Chairmanship of the

Remuneration Committee

9. Nigel Young receives an additional fee of £10,000 per annum, included in the figures above, in respect of his Chairmanship of the Audit Committee. This fee was increased from
£8,000 to £10,000 per annum with effect from 7 March 2016. However, the increased payment was not processed unul January 2017 and the back-dated sum paid is therefore
included in the 2017 figures,

® N R

Amounts shown above in the salaries and fees column relate to base salary in the case of executive directors and fees in the case of non-executive directors.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT continued

BASE SALARY AND BENEFITS PAID DURING THE YEAR

Salaries for Michael Flowers and Sarah Ellard were reviewed in November 2016 and a 2.7% increase, with effect from | January 2017, was approved by
the Committee. The salaries of the executive directors during the year were therefore as follows:

Annual salary from  Annual salary from

| November 2014 to I January 2017 to
Executive 31 December 2014 31 Octaber 2017
Michael Flowers £406,000 £416,962
Andrew Lewis' - £325,000
Sarah Ellard £203,539 £209,035

Note:
I. Andrew Lewis joined the Campany on 7 January 2017 and was appointed to the Board on 19 January 2017

The Group Chief Exacutive receives a cash allowance of £21,500 per annum in lieu of a company car and the other executive directors receive a cash
allowance of £19,350 per annum. The cash allowances are reviewed every three years and will next be reviewed in 2019.

DETAILS OF VARIABLE PAY OPPORTUNITY IN THE YEAR

Annual bonus

In accordance with previous practice, 75% of the annual bonus opportunity for 2017 was based on financial targets (namely earnings per share and
operating cash flow), with 25% hased on perscnal objectives. No bonus is payable in respect of the personal objectives unless the Committee is satisfied
that this is justified by the Group's underlying performance, including inter afia levels of profitabitity and cash flow, as well as health and safety performance.

The Committee has consistently set challenging targets for the achievement of maximum bonuses. The finandial targets for the 2017 bonus ptan,
compared with actual performance. were as follows:

Payout
(as % of salary}
Weighting

(75% of overall Andrew Lewis

Metric bonus) Performance Target Actual  Michael Flowers & Sarah Ellard

Earnings per share 50%  Threshold 10.9p 12.9p 46.875% 37.5%
Target H.9p
Maximum 12.5p

Operating cash flow 50%  Threshold £60.0m £47.1m 0% 0%
Target £67.5m
Maximurm £75.0m

The personal objectives set in respect of the 2017 bonus plan (25% of overall bonus) are set out below:

Payout (as %

Executive Personal objectives Key aspects of performance against individual objectives of salry)
Michael +  Health and safety performance » Implemented plan for mitigation or elimination of Group-wide hazardous 27.5%
Flowers exposures

» Achieved a lost time incident rate of less than G.66

- Operational performance = Implemented Operaticnal Excellence Programme
improvement = Developed new KPls and baseline metrics for measuring future operational
perfarmance improvements
+ Implemented Group-wide customer relationship management system
+ Initiated development of a Group-wide operational framework

+  Capability and infrastructure + Progressed closure of Torrance facifity
developments = Closed Alloy Surfaces' second facility
« Implemented plans for closure of various surplus facilities

- Strategic development * Developed strategic options for non-organic growth
= Secured initial US tactical electronic warfare order
» Achieved iniual technology upgrade order for the HMDS spiral development
programme
+ Refreshed strategy for the Erergetics segment
» Developed future financing strategy for the Group

*  TJennessee site transformation > [Developed future capability and investment plan for Tennessee
«  Delivery of US growth = Progressed to key stages on Next Generzation Chemical Detector and Joint
programmes Biological Tactical Detection System programmes
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Payout {as %

Executive Personal objectives Key aspects of performance against individual objectives of salary)
Andrew = Health and safety performance + Implemented plan for mitigation or elimination of Group-wide hazardous 22.0%
Lewis exposures
= Achieved a lost time incident rate of less than 0.66
+ Financial systems »  Reissued Group Accounting Policy Manual
+  Updated Group reporting processes and reduced reporting timeline
» Implemented quarterly balance sheet reviews for each business
+ Operaticnal performance »  Progressed financial aspects of the Operational Excellence Programime
Impravement » Developed new KPIs and baselire metrics for measuring improvements in
margins, cverhead cost base and working capital
+ Initiated development of standardised business processes for inclusion in a
Group-wide operational framework
« Strategic development - financial = Developed and implemented future financing strategy for the Group
«  Achieved investment grade credit rating for the Group in order to reduce
coupan on the loan notes
= T and cyber « Finalised new [T strategy for the Group
* Developed Group cyber-security risk management plan
* Tennessee site transformarion *  Suppoerted development of future capability and investment plan for Tennessee
Sarah Ellard +« Health and safety performance = Implemented plan for mitigation or elimination of Group-wide hazardous 20.5%
eXposures
»  Achieved a fost time incident rate of less than 0.66
= Operational performance » Progressed commercial and legai aspects of the Operational Excellence
improvement Programme
«  Developed new KPIs and baseline metrics for measuring improvements across
key commercial and legal operational areas
= Initiated development of standardised commercial and legal procedures for
tnclusion in a Group-wide operational framework
* Implemented contractual risk management training
»  Strategy develcpment - pecple *  Supported development of new incentive arrangements
* Initiated development of standardised terms and conditions of employment
+ Governance and compliance * Completed updated Group-wide anti-bribery compliance training
+ Introduced procedures for UK gender pay gap reporting
= Pensions = Developed and implemented initial de-risking strategy for the UK tegacy
defined benefit pension scheme
+ Tennessee site transformarion + Supported development of future capability and investment plan for Tennessee
Based on the above performance, bonuses are payabie to the executive directors under the 2017 bonus plan as follows:
Bonus paid in
Benus paid in respect of
Maximum respect of personz
bonus  financial targets abjectives Total bonus
Executive (% of salary) {% of salary) (% of salary) payment (£)'
Michael Flowers 125 46.875 275 310,115
Andrew Lewis 100 375 220 193,375
Sarah Ellard 100 375 20.5 121,240

Note:

|.  40% of bonuses payable are sausfied by way of an award of deferred shares, vesting of which is subject only to continued service.

The committee agreed to pay a full-year equivalent bonus to Andrew Lewis as part of his terms agreed on appointment.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Performance Share Plan
Vesting of 2015 PSP awards

The PSP awards granted on 26 [anuary 2015 were made subject to the following performance conditions:

Measure Threshold vesting Full vesting

Total compound earnings per share growth per annum over 5% p.a. (25% vests) 10% p.a. {100% vests)
three financial years (50% of award)

Rank of the Company’s total shareholder return against the Median ranking {25% vests) Upper quartile ranking (100% vests)
total shareholder return of the members of the comparator
group (50% of award)

The Group's compeound earnings per share growth over the three financial years ended 31 October 2017 was B.01% p.a., and 70.15% of the part of the
awards subject to the earnings per share measure will therefore vest. The Company's total sharehalder return over the performance period was below
the median ranking of the comparater group, and no part of this element of the award will vest. In total therefore, 35.075% of the awards granted on
26 January 2015 will vest on 26 January 2018.

Detalls of the awards granted to the executive directors on 26 January 2015 are provided below:

Rights issue Number of Number of
Number of adjustment shares shares Value of
Execurtive Vesung date  shares atgrant during 2016 10 vest ta lapse dividends
Michael Flowers 26 January 2018 261,935 37,096 104,885 194,146 £6.179
Sarah ENard 26 january 2018 143,867 20,374 57,607 106,634 £3,394

PSP awards granted in the year

The following conditional awards of shares were granted to the executive directors under the PSP during the year:

Closing Number of
share price condinonal % that
Date Value an date shares Face vests at Vesting
Executive of grant. of award of grant awarded value threshoid determined by ,
EPS growth (50%) and
lative TSR +

L"ichael Flowers 24 March 2017 150% of salary 195.75p 363,629 £711,804 25% riSEU;Z)E as d:[z;:;?:&c\s
Andrew Lewis 24 March 2017 150% of salary 195.75p 283430  £554.814 25%
Sarah Ellard 24 March 2017 150% of salary 195.75p 182,297 £356,846 25%

Awvards under the PSP are normally granted in January of each year, following the release of the results for the preceding financial year, and award levels
are calculated based on the closing share price on the trading day immediately preceding the date of grant. However, no awards were granted in January
2017, as it was intended that shareholder approval would be sought for a new incentive plan at the Annual General Meeting in March 2017, as reported
on page 56. Following the Board's decision to withdraw the resclution for approval of the new plan, the Committee agreed 1o revert to making awards
under the PSP on 24 March 2017. In order to ensure that the recipients of awards were not prejudiced by the delay in granting awards, the Committee
considered that it would be appropriate, on this occasion, to calculate the award [evels based on the closing share price on |9 January 2017 i.e. the date
on which grants would normally have been made.

The face value of each award shown above is based on the closing share price on the date of grant.

The performance conditions applying to the awards made in 2017 are based as to one half of each award on the Company’s compound EPS growth over
three financial years commencing t November 2016, and as to the other half of each award on the Company’s TSR performance over the same
three-year performance period.

The EPS performance condition will be measured as follows:

Total compound earnings per share growth

over the three-year performance period % of earnings per share part that may vest
Less than 5% p.a. 0%

5% p.a. 25%

Between 5% p.a_and 0% p.a. On a straight-line basis between 35% and 100%
10% p.a. or more 100%
Noge:

. Earnings per share is calculated on a fully-diluted and normalised basis, as specified by the Commuttee prior to grant.

68



The TSR performance condition will he measured as follows:

Rank of the Company's toral shareholder return against the toral

shareholder return of the members of the comparator group

% of total shareholder return part that may vest

Below median

Median

Between median and upper quartile
Upper quartile or above

0%
25%

On a straight-line basis between 25% and [00%

100%

The comparator group for the 2017 awards comprises BAE Systems, Cobham, Cohort, Esterline Technologies, FLIR Systems, L3 Communications,

Leonardo Finmeccanica, Orbital ATK, QinetiQQ Group, Raythecn, Rheinmetall, Rockwell Collins and Ultra Electronics.

Performance conditions for outstanding awards

Measure Directar Awrards to executive dirgctors Threshold vesting Full vesting
Awards made en  Total compound earnings per share  Michael Flowers 150% of salary 5% p.a. 10% p.a.
25 January 2016 growth per annum over four financial Sarah Ellard (25% vests) (100% vests)

years commencing | November 2014

(50% of award)'

Rarik of the Company’s total

sharehalder return against the total
sharehaolder return of the members
of the comparator group over three

financial years commencing

I November 2015 (50% of award)

Median ranking Upper quartile
(25% vests) ranking
{100% vests)

Note:

I.  Earmings per share 1s calcufated on a fully-diluted and normalised basis, as specified by the Committee prior to grant,

Summary of outstanding PSP awards

Number of shares under award

Closing
A Awarded Lapsed Vested A share price an
| November during during during 3| Ocrober date of
Executive 016 the year the year the year' 2017 Date of vesting grant (p)*
Michael Flowers 108,256 - (108,256) - - - 229.0
212,394 - (212,394) — — — 199.0
299,0317 - - — 299031 26 January 2018 2305
443,538 - - - 443,538 25 January 2019 138.4
- 363,629 - - 363,629 24 March 2020 195.7
1,063,219 363,629 (320,650) - 1,106,198
Andrew Lewis - 283,430 - - 283,430 24 March 2020 1957
- 283,430 - - 183,430
Sarah Ellard 159,802 - (159.802) - - - 1290
164,2412 - - - 164,241 26 January 2018 2305
222,358 - - - 222,358 25 January 2019 138.4
- 182,297 - - 182,297 24 March 2020 195.7
545,401 182,297 (159,802) - 568,896

Notes:
I. Awardslzpsed due to the performance condiuons not being met,

1. Asexplained above, these awards will parually veston 26 January 2018,

3. Prerightsssue grant share price, where applicable.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Sharesave awards

Summary of outstanding Sharesave awards

MNumber of shares under award

AL Awarded Lapsed Excroised Ac
| November during during during 31 Ccrober

Executive 2018 the year the year the year 2087 Exercise price Exercise date

| October 2019 -

Michael Flowers 17,142 - - - 17,142 f05p 3| March 2020
17,142 - - - 17,142

| October 2020 -

Andrew Lewis - 12,162 - - 12,162 |48p 31 March 202]
- 12,162 - - 12,162

| October 2020 -

Sarah Ellard - 7,297 - - 71297 148p 31 March 2021
- 1,297 - - 71,297

Deferred share awards

Vesting of deferred share awards

The deferred award over 14,384 shares granted to Sarah Ellard in part satisfaction of her annual bonus for the year ended 31 October 2013 vested in full
on 23 January 2017. Mrs Ellard also received £1,297.80 in respect of the dividends paid on these shares during the deferral period.

Summary of outstanding deferred share awards

Number of shares under award

At Awarded Lapsed Vested At Closing share
| November during during during 31 Getober price on date of
Executive 2018 the year the year the year 2017 Date of vesting grant (p)?
Michael Flowers 16,674 - - - 16,674 27 January 2018 2265
- 80,633 - - 80,633 19 January 2020 172.0

16,674 80,633 - - 97,307
Sarah Ellard 14,384 - - (14,384) - 23 January 2017 229.0
21.660 - - - 21,660 27 January 2018 2265
- 32,944 - - 32,944 19 January 2020 172.0

36,044 32,944 - (14384) 54,604

Notes:

|, Number of shares subject 1o awards, after 2016 rights issue adjustment.

2  Prerightsissue grant share price, where applicable.

3. Vesting of deferred bonus share awards is subject only to continued service.

DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS

Sharehaolding guideiines apply ta executive directors and other participants in the PSP. Executive directors are expected to bufld-up and maintain a
shareholding in the Company equivalent to one year's basic sakary, by retaining at least 50% of the after-tax gain on vested PSP awards until such time as
the guidelines have been met. Qther participants in the PSP are expected to retain a shareholding equivalent to 25% to 50% of their basic salary,

The interests of the directors in the ordinary shares of the Company at 3| October 2017 are shown below. Al are beneficial holdings.

Unvested and subject to performance condiuons under the PSP

Legally owned  Value of legally Total at Deferred

fnumber  owned shares Guideling 2015 2016 2017 31 October bonus share Sharesave

Executive of shares) a5 % af salary met award award award 2017 aveards options

Michael Flowers 185.982 77% No 299,031 443,538 363.629 1,106,198 97.307 17,142

Andrew Lewis 8,720 5% No - - 183,430 283.430 - 12,162

Sarah Ellard 43,977 16% No 164,24| 272,358 182,297 568.896 54,604 7,297

Carl-Peter Forster 20,000 - - - - - - - -

Andrew Davies - - - - - - - - -

Daniel Dayan 60,300 — — - - - - - -

Nigel Young - - - - - - - - -
Note:

| Based on the number of shares legally owned, prevaling base salary and share price of 172.5p, 2t 3| October 2017

The directors’ share interests at 31 October 2017 include shares held by the directors’ connected persons, if any, as required by the Regulations.

There have been no changes to the directors’ interests in shares since 31 October 2017,
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PENSION

The following table sets out the pension benefits earned by the executive directors. Only Sarah Ellard previously accrued benefits during her former
membership of the Chemring Group Staff Pension Scheme.

Total benefit acerued ac Toral benefit zccrued ac
31 Ocraber 2016 3| Ocrober 2017

Increase n

Transfer value Transfer value transfer value

LCashin ey of of accrued of accrued during year
pension benefit at benefitac  {less members’  Value of benefic
contributians Pension Cash 31 Oct 2016 Pension Cash 31 Oct 2047 contributions)  far single figure
Executive £'000 £'000p.a. £'000 £'000 £'000p.a. £000 000 000 £000
Michael Flowers 83 - - - - - - - 83
Andrew Lewis 53 - - - - - - - 53
Sarah Ellard 42 24 72 461 24 72 461 - 42

Notes:

The execuuve directors recerve a 20% cash supplement in lieu of pension.

Transfer values represent liabilities of the applicable scheme, and do not represent sums paid to individuals.

Transfer values have been cafculated in accordance with the Occupational Pension Scheme (Transfer Value) Regulations 1996,

Sarah Elard |eft pensionable service on 6 April 2010 and therefare has not accrued additional pension over the year. The accrued benefits shown are the benefits at the date of exit.

The scheme provided pension at a rate of /80th of final pensionable salary plus a cash lJump sum of 3/8Cths for each year of membership. Final pensionable salary was capped art the
HMRC notional earnings cap. and the scheme assumed 2 normal retirement age of 5. Early retirement is permissible from age 55 but accrued benefits are reduced accordingly using
the early retirement factars in force at the date of early retirement.

ok =

LOSS OF OFFICE PAYMENTS

The principles governing compensation for loss of office are set out on page 62.

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS

There were no payments made to past directors during the year.

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE GRAPH AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION TABLE

The following graph shows the Company's cumulative total shareholder return over the last nine financial years relative to the FTSE 250 and FTSE Small
Cap Indexes. The FTSE Small Cap has been selected by the Committee for this comparison because it provides the most appropriate measure of
performance of listed companies of a similar size 1o the Company. The FTSE 250 has been shown in previous years and has been included this year for
the purpase of continuity.

TSR graph

This graph shows the value, by 31 October 2017, of £100 invested in Chemring Group PLC on 31 Qctober 2008 compared with the value of £100
invested in the FTSE 250 and FTSE SmallCap. The other points are the values at intervening financial year ends.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Chief Executive remuneration table

The total remuneration figures for the Group Chief Executive during each of the last nine financial years are shown in the table below. Mark Papworth
replaced David Price as Group Chief Executive on 5 November 2012, and Michael Flowers replaced Mark Papworth on 24 june 2014,

The total remuneration figures for 2012 and 2014 include the payments for |oss of office made to David Price and Mark Papworth respectively.
The total remuneration figure for each year includes the annual bonus based on that year's performance and, where applicable, vested PSP awards
based on the three-year performance period ending in the relevant year. The annual bonus payout and PSP award vesting level as a percentage of the

maximum opportunity are also stiown for each of these years.

Mark Mark Papwaorth!

David Price Papworth  Michael Flowers Michael flowers
2009 010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2018 w7
Total remuneration (£000) 1,309 1,391 1,239 £.325 785 g4l 507 855 831
Annual bonus (% of maximum) 4% 62% 0% 0% 40% 50% 0% 68.3% 59.5%
PSP awards vesting (% of maximum) 100% 100% 100%  54.375% 0% 0% 0% 0% %

PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN THE GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

The table below shows the percentage change in the Group Chief Executive's total remuneration {excluding the value of any PSP awards and pension
benefits receivable in the year) between the 2016 and 2017 financial years, compared to that of the average for all eligible employees of the Group.

% Change from 2016 to 2017

Salary Benefits Annual bonus
Group Chief Executive 2.7 4.8 {10.6)
Average of other employees 2.0 59 36.6

The Committee is cognisant of the proposed introduction of fegislation which will require companies to publish ratios comparing Chief Executive to
employee pay. The Company has prepared this anabysis internally, and it has been reviewed and considered by the Committee. The Committee has not,
however, published this data in this report as it is concerned that the methodology for these comparisons has not yet been formally announced. The
Caommittee will publish ratias showing camparisans in future years when UK regulations or guidance introduce 3 commaon or specified methodalogy.

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY

The follawing table shows the Company’s actual spend on pay (for all employees) relative to dividends and retained profits:

2017 2016
fm Im % change
Staff costs 130.4 139.1 (6.3)
Dividends 6.4 - N/A
Retained profits [13.5 121.8 (5.8)

The dividends figures refate 1o amounts payable in respect of the relevant financial year.
SHAREHOLDER YOTING ON THE DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION REPORT
AT THE 2017 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

At the Annual General Meeting held on 17 March 2017, the resolution relating to the directors’ remuneration report received the following votes
from shareholders:

Total aumber % of
of vates votes cast

Directors’ remuneration report
For 229,703,217 98.08%
Against 4,501,178 1.92%
Total votes cast (for and against excluding withheld votes) 234,204,395 100.0%
Votes withheld' 2,385,186 |.00%
Total votes cast (including withheld votes) 236,569,581 100.0%

Note:
. Awvote withheld 1s not a vote (n law and 1s not counted in the calculation of the proportion of votes cast “for” and "against” a resolution.
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SHAREHOLDER VOTING ON THE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY AT THE 2016
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

At the Annual General Meeting held on 2} March 2016, the resolutien relating to the directors’ remuneration policy received the following votes
from shareholders:

Toral number
of votes % of vores cast

Directors’ remuneration policy

Far 215,625,426 91.12%
Against 21,014,549 8.88%
Total votes cast (for and against excluding withheld votes) 236,639,975 100.0%
Votes withheid' 2,094,082 0.88%
Total votes cast (including withheld votes) 238,734,057 106.0%
Naote:

|. A vote withheld 15 not a vote in law and 15 not caunted tn the calculation of the proporuan of votes cast “for™ and “2gainst™ a resolution,

APPLICATION OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY FOR 2018
Base salary

The executive directors’ salaries were reviewed in November 2017. The salary increases, which took effect from | January 2018, are set out beiow. The
percentage increase applied to the executive directors’ salaries was in line with the average salary increase for UK empioyees,

Salary as at Percentage
Executive I January 2018 increase
Michael Flowers £427,386 2.5%
Andrew Lewis £333,125 2.5%
Sarah Ellard £714.36l 2.5%

Pension/benefits

No changes are proposed to the structure of pension and benefits provision for 2018,

Fees for the Chairman and non-executive directors

As detailed in the remuneration pclicy, the Company’s approach to setting the non-executive directors’ remuneration takes account of recognised practice,
and is set at a level that s sufficient to attract and retain high-calibre non-executives. Details of the fees that will apply for 2018 are set out below.

Fee as at Percentage

¥ January 2018 increase

Chairman’s fee £200,000 0%
Other non-executive directors’ base fee £55,000 0%
Audit Committee Chair fee €10,000 0%
Remuneration Committee Chair fee £10,000 0%

Annual bonus plan

The annual bonus plan for 2018 will operate on a similar basis to 2017. The performance measures and weightings for the annual bonus plan will therefore
be as follows:

Ag a percentage of maximum

Measure bonus cpportunity
Earnings per share 37.5%
Operating cash flow 37.5%
Personal objectives 25.0%

Personal objectives have been set to reflect performance in the following key areas:

+ Health and safety

+  Operational improvement

«  Organisational performance

+ Strategy and business development
+ Financial and corperate management

73

44 IWINNY 27d dNOYD ONIWWIHD

LW CINY 1Y

5 NNOD.

ird

£l



2 S_NNADDY ANV [HG=39 WNNNY I7d dNOUD ONIHWIHD

13

Governance

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT continued

The Committee does not believe that it would be in shareholders’ interests to prospectively disclose the financial targets under the annual bonus plan
due to issues of commercial sensitivity. However, detailed retrospective disclosure of both the financial targets and the personal objectives, and
performance against them, will be included in next year's annual report on remuneration.

No bonus will be payable in respect of the personal objectives unless the Commuttee is satisfied that this is justified by the Group's underlying
performance, including inter alia levels of profitability and cash flow.

The 2018 bonus plan is consistent with the remuneration policy detailed on pages 58 to 63, in terms of maximum bonus opportunity, deferred share
arrangements and clawback.
Performance Share Plan

Itis intended that the performance condition for the annual awards granted to the executive directors under the PSP in 2018 will incorporate two
metrics, namely growth in adjusted EPS and relative TSR measured against an international peer group of defence sector companies, as listed below,
Each metric will determine the vesting of 50% of the 2018 awards. 25% of each part of the award will vest for thresheold ar median performance, with full
vesting of each part of the award for siretch or upper quartile performance.

The EPS performance condition for the 2018 awards will be measured as follows:

Total compound earnings per share growth over the three year

performance period % of earnings per share part that may vest
Less than 5% p.a- 0%

5% p.a. 25%

Between 5% p.a. and 10% p.a. On a straight-line basis between 25% and 100%
10% p.a. or more 100%

The TSR performance condition for the 2018 awards will be measured as follows;

Rank of the Company’s total shareholder return against the

total shareholder return of the members of the comparator group % of total sharehoider return part that may vest
Below median 0%

Median 25%

Batween median and upper quartile On a straight-line basis between 25% and 100%
Upper quartile or above 100%

The defence sector peer group for the 2018 awards comprises: BAE Systems, Cobham, Cobort, Esterline Technalogies, FLIR Systems, L3 Technologies,
Leonardo Finmeccanica, QiretiQ Group, Raytheon, Rheinmetall and Ultra Blectronics.

APPROVAL OF THE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

The directors’ remuneration report was approved by the Board on |8 january 2018.

Signed on behalf of the Board

Daniel Dayan
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2017

2017 2016
Non- Non-
Underlying underlying Undertying, urderlying
performance items! Total performance items' Tatal
Note £m £m tm £m m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 1.2 547.5 - 547.5 477.1 - 477.1
Operating profit 24 55.4 (40.1) 15.3 48.5 (22.3) 262
Finance expense 6 11.3) - {$1.3) (14.5) (3.7) {18.2)
Profit before tax 44.1 (40.1) 4.0 340 (26.0) 8.0
Taxation 7 (8.1) 12 {0.9) (7.1} 5.6 (1.5)
Profit after tax 36.0 (32.9) 3.1 26.9 (20.4) 6.5
Discontinued operations
Profit after tax from discontinued operations 28 - 3.5 3.5 - 4.6 4.6
Profit after tax 36.0 {29.4) 6.6 26.9 (15.8) 1.
2017 2016
Non- Non-
Underlying undertying Underlying urderlying
Earnings per ordinary share Note performance items' Tatal performance items' Total
Continuing operations
Basic 9 12.9p {(1L8)p L.lp 10.3p (7.8)p 2.5p
Diluted 2 12.6p (1.5)p Lip 10.1p (7.7p 24p
Continuing and discontinued operations
Basic 2 12.9p (10.5)p 2.4p 10.3p 6.1)p 4.2p
Dituted 9 12.6p (10.3)p 2.3p 10.1p (5.9)p 4.2p

| Further information about non-underlying items s set out in note 3.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3/ OCTOBER 2017

2017 2016
Note £m im
Profit after tax attributable to equity holders of the parent as reported 6.6 [l
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemas 29 1.9 (3.8)
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension schemes 22 {2.0) 0.8
9.9 3.0
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (11.6) 33.0
Current tax on items taken directly to equity G.D 0.8
Deferred tax on exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 22 0.8 47
(13.9) 385
Total comprehensive income attributable to equity holders of the parent 2.6 46.6
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Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
OCTOBER 2017

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

Share Special
Share prerum capital Revaluation Translauen Retaned Own
capital account reserve reserve reserve earnings shares Total
£m im £m £m ém &m £m £m
At | November 2016 2.8 305.1 12.9 1.i {20.7) 121.8 (9.6) 413.4
Impact of adoption of IFRS 15 (note 33) - - - - - 10.2) - (10.2)
Profit after tax - - - - - 6.6 - 6.6
Other comprehensive income - - - - 4.1 4.4 - 03
Tax refating to components of
other comprehensive income - - - - - (4.3) - 4.3)
Total comprehensive income - - - - (4. 6.7 - 16
Ordinary shares issued - 02 - - - - - 02
Share-based payments (het of settlement) - - - - - 1.6 - 16
Dividends paid - - - - - (6.4) - &4
At 3| October 2017 1.8 305.3 12.9 11 {24.8) 3.5 {9.6) 401.2
Share Special
Share premium capital Revaluauon Translauon Retained Own
capital agcount reserve reserve reserve earmings shares Total
£m £m £m fm £m ‘m £m £m
At | November 2015 2.0 230.7 12.9 12 (32.3) 85.7 {9.6) 2906
Profit after tax - - - - - It - 11
Other comprehensive income - - - - 1.6 17.6 - 29.2
Tax relating to components of
other comprehensive income - - - - - 6.3 - 6.3
Total comprehensive iIncome - - - - 1.6 35.0 - 46.6
Ordinary shares issued 0.8 74.4 - - - - - 75.2
Share-based payments (net of settlement) - - - - - 1.0 - 1.0
Transfers between reserves - - - 0.1 - 0.1 - -
At 3| October 2016 .8 305.1 129 1.1 (20.7) 121.8 (9.6) 413.4
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2017

2087 2016
Note im im im &m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 10 125.4 1329
Development costs I 337 40.9
Other intangible assets I 57.0 77.1
Property, plant and equipment 12 160.1 179.9
Deferred tax 22 63.2 59.6
439.4 430.4
Current assets
Inventories 14 97.6 104.8
Trade and other receivables 5 131.0 114.2
Cash and cash equivalents 16,32 3.6 634
Derivative financial instruments 20 0.4 0.5
262.6 282.6
Total assets 702.0 7730
Current liabilities
Borrowings 17,32 (51.6) (29.5)
Obligations under finance leases 17.18 - (0.1
Trade and other payables 19 aney {107.3)
Provisions 2] (6.5) (4.5)
Current tax (5.5) [€R))
Derivative financial instruments 20 (0.4) (2.5)
(175.9) (147.0)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 17,32 (61.9) (121.0)
Trade and other payables 19 - (4.0)
Provisions 21 (8.8) (1.7)
Deferred tax 21 (53.5) {58.5)
Preference shares 17,23 {0.1) 0.0
Retirement benefic obligations 29 (0.6) (17.3)
{124.9) (212.6)
Total labilities (300.8) (359.6)
Net assets 401.2 413.4
Equity
Share capital 23 2.8 28
Share premium account 305.3 305.1
Special capital reserve 12.9 129
Revaluation reserve 1.1 t
Translation reserve (24.8) {20.7)
Retained earnings 113.5 121.8
410.8 423.0
Own shares 5 (9.8) (9.6)
Total equity 401.2 413.4

These financial statements of Chemring Group PLC (registered number 86662) were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
18 january 2018.

Signed on behalf of the Board

Michael Flowers Sarah Eilard
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2017

017 0l
Neote im m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from underlying operations 30 471 814
Cash impact of non-underlying items (6.3) 8.1
Cash flows from operating activities 40.8 733
Retirement benefic deficit recovery contributions (5.0) (5.0
Tax paid {3.6) 3.0
Net cash inflow from operating activities 32.2 652
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of intangible assets a9 (6.7)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (12.8) (16.3)
Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking, net of cash acquired - (2.5)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.1
Net cash outflow from investing activities {16.5) (19.4)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds of share issue - 754
Dividends paid 8 (6.4) -
Finance expense paid 9-3) {19
Accelerated interest costs - 3.7
Loan note repayment costs - (14)
Capitalised facility fees paid (0.5) (0.5)
Repayments of borrowings (28.8) (48.8)
Repayments of obligations under finance leases (0.1) {0.3)
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from financing activities (45.1) 8.8
(Decrease)lincrease in cash and cash equivalents (29.4) 54.4
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 83.1 7.6
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 0.1) 09
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 16,32 33.6 631
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. REVENUE

All of the Group's revenue is derived from the sale of goods and the provision of services. The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

revenue by destination:

Countermeasures Sensors Energetics 2017
£m Em m £m
UK 17.8 43.5 24.0 85.3
USA 45.3 29.8 189.7 264.8
Europe 15.9 71 19.1 42.1
Asia Pacific 45.8 5.4 0.9 52.1
Middte East 9.5 8.1 83.7 101.3
Rest of the world 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.9
134.8 94.5 318.2 547.5
Countermeasures Sensors Energeucs 2018
&m £m fm £m
UK 1.4 429 254 79.7
USA 57.8 367 135.6 230.
Europe 13.1 0.5 12.4 262
Asia Pacific 307 49 1.9 375
Middle East 4.6 1.7 65.3 101.6
Rest of the world 07 0.2 11 2.0
138.3 959 2419 4774

The directors consider that the only countries that are significant in accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments are the USA and the UK.

The following table discloses the split of the Group's revenue between goods and services:

Countermeasures Sensors Energetics 2017
£m m £m fm
Geoods 130.3 30.3 314.8 475.4
Services 4.5 64.2 3.4 72.1
134.8 94.5 318.2 547.5
Countermeasures Sensors Energetcs 2016
£m £m £m £m
Goods 136.4 40.2 2389 415.5
Services 1.9 56.7 3.0 &1.6
138.3 269 2419 477.1

All revenues recognised arose from contracts with customers.

In 2Q17 £0.6m (2016: £G.2m) of revenue was recognised in respect of performance obligations satisfied in previcus periods.

As ar 31 Ocrober 2017 £478.0m {2016: £592.9m) of revenue was outstanding in respect of obligations that were unfulfilled or only partially fulfilled
as at the year end. £360,9m (2016: £368.0m) of this revenue is expected to be recagnised in the next financial year and £117.1m (2016: £224.9m) in

future periods.

8l

JICCSANOIOI IV UNY LHedY IWNNNY D7d dNOYD SNIWIHD



HIVINNY 27d dNOHD ONIYKWIHD

=

LISTSINNSIDY ONV 1T,

Financial Staterments

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

IFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the Group Chief Executive and the Board to allocate resources 1o the segments and to assess their performance. For
management purposes, the Group's operating and reporting structure clusters similar businesses together within the following three operating
segments — Countermeasures, Sensors and Energetics. These segments are the basis on which the Group reports its segmental information. The
principal activities of each segment are as follows:

Countermeasures Development and manufacture of expendable countermeasures for air, sea and fand platforms, and fand—-based
electronic warfare equipment.

Sensors Develgpment and manufacture of IED detection equipment, chemical and biological threat detection equipment,
IED electronic countermeasures, network protection tachnologies and explosive ordnance disposal equipment.

Energetics Development, procurement and manufaciure of signals and illumination devices and payloads, cartridge /
propellant actuated devices, pyrotechnic devices for satellite launch and deployment, missile and ammunition
components, 40mm ammunition, propellants, warheads, fuses, separation sub-systems, actuators and energetic
materials.

A segmental analysis of revenue and operating profit is set out below:

Countermeasures Sensors Energetics Unallocated Tortal
Year ended 3| Octoher 2017 m £m fm £m £m
Revenue 134.8 94.5 318.2 - 547.5
Segment result before depreciation, amortisation and non-underlying items 29.8 20.2 41.2 {10.2) 81O
Depreciation (10.8) (1.8) (5.8) 0.1 (18.5)
Amortisation 2.3) “.0) (0.6) (0.1 an
Segmental underlying operating profit 16.7 14.3 34.8 (10.4) 55.4
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (0.4) (7.0) (7.6) - (15.0)
Non-underlying items (note 3) (3.8) 5.9 (16.2) 0.l {25.1)
Segmental operating profit 12.7 1.9 1.0 {10.3) 158.3
Finance expense - - - (11.3) (1.3}
Profit before tax 12.7 1.9 1.0 (21.6) 4.0
Tax - - - ©.9) ©.9)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 12.7 19 .o (22.5) 3.1
Discontinued operations - - - 35 3.5
Profit for the year 12.7 1.9 11.0 (19.0) 6.6
Other segment items
Property, plant and equipment — additions 4.1 1.0 1.2 0.1 12.4
Intangible assets — addiuons 0.4 33 0.3 ~ 4.0
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2. BUSINESS SEGMENTS CONTINUFD

Countermeasures™ Sensors Energetics Lnallocated Total
Year ended 31 Qctober 2016 £m £m fm £m £m
Revenue 138.3 96.9 2419 - 477.1
Segment result before depreciation, amortisation and non-underlying items 25.2 18.0 378 (7.2) 73.8
Depreciation (10.6) (2.2) (5.5) {0.1) (18.4)
Amortisation (.8) .4 (0.8) 0.1) 6.9)
Segmental underlying cperating profit 12.8 V.4 317 (7.4) 48.5
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (0.2) (7.1 (7.5) - (14.8)
Non-underlying items (note 3) 0.9 (0.8) (3.3) {2.5) (7.5)
Segmental operating profit 1.7 3.5 209 (9.9) 262
Finance expense - - - (18.2) (18.2)
Profit before tax I7 35 209 (28.1Y 8.0
Tax - - - (1.5) (1.5)
Profit for the year from continuing cperations f.7 35 209 (25.6) 6.5
Discontinued operations - - - 4.6 4.6
Profitfor the year t.7 15 20.9 {25.0) 1.1
Other segment items
Property, plant and equipment — additions X3 1.4 50 0.3 10.3
Intangible assets — additions 3 5.1 0.6 - B

*  The year ended 31 Octaober 2016 includes £2.8m of insurance proceeds in relation to a business interruption claim follawing an earlier energetic incident,

Assets and lizbilities by segment are not reported to the Group Chief Executive on a monthly basis, therefore are not used as a key decision making tool

and are not disclosed here. A disclosure of non-current assets by location is shown below:

2017 2016
Non-current assets by focation £m £m
UK 224.8 249.1
USA 186.9 209.1
Norway 5.0 5.4
Australia 12.7 26.8

439.4 490 4

Information on major customers

Included in segmental revenues for continuing operations are revenues of £197.8m (2016: £147.6m), which arose from sales to the Group's largest
customer. The largest customer had sales reported in ali of the Group's business segments. This was the only individual customer where direct sales

accounted for mare than 10% of Group revenue from conunuing and discontinued operations for the year.
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

3. ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES
In accordance with our accaunting policy we have presented the following reconciliation of Alternative Performance Measures used throughout this
report to their IFRS equivalent measures as follows:

017 2016
Non-underlying items and non-underlying measures tm im
Acquisition and disposal related costs (2.3) (0.3}
Business restructuring and incident costs (14.3) (5.4)
Claim related {costs)/credits 0.4) 0.6
Impairment of business (note 10) (9.8) -
Loan nete repayment costs - (1.4}
Gain/(loss) on the movementin the fair value of dervatve financial instruments (note 20) [ (1.0}
Less non-underlying depreciation in business restructuring and incident costs 1.0 -
Impact of non-underlying items on EBITDA (24.1) (7.5)
Non-underlying depreciation in business restructuring and incident costs (1.0) -
Intangible amortisation arising from business combinations (note 1) (15.0) (14.8)
Impact of non-underlying items on operating profit {40.1) (22.3)
Non-underlying accelerated interest costs - 37
Impact of non-underlying items on profit before tax (40.1) (26.0)
Tax impact of non-underlying items 7.2 5.6
Impact of non-underlying items on continuing profit after tax (32.9) (20.4)
Discontinued operations 15 47
Tax on discontinued operaticns - ©.n
Impact of non-underlying items on profit after tax (29.4) {15.8)

The impact of non-underlying items on statutory basic and diluted EPS, as well as a reconciliztion to the IFRS equivalent, is presented in note 9. The
impact of non-underlying items on cash generated from operating activities, as welt as a reconciliation to the IFRS equivalent, is presented in note 30.

Acquisition costs and disposal related credits

Acquisition and disposal related costs of £2.3m (20t6: £0.3m) relate to transaction costs and an earnout payment on the acquisition of Wallop Defence
Systems’ assets for which no provision was made at the time of acquisition. The remaval of these items from underlying measures is in line with our
accounting policy and improves comparability of information between reporting periads.

Business restructuring and incident costs
In 2G17, business restructuring and incident costs of £14.3m principally comprise of restructuring costs in relation to the site closures / consolidations at
facilities in California, Philadelphia and Virginia.

In 2017, there was a £9.9m (2016: £2.6my} difference between the business restructuring and incident costs recognised in the income statement and the
outflow appearing In the cash flow statement due to the timing of payments, asset write-offs and other non-cash movements.

In 2016, business restructuring and incident costs of £5.4m principally comprised of restructuring costs in refation to Chemring Defence UK and across
the US businesses, partly offset by insurance proceeds in relation to a property damage claim following an earlier energetic incident.

The rermoval of these items from underlying measures is in line with our accounting palicy and improves comparability of informauon between reporting periods.

Claim related (costs)/credits
In 2017, claim related costs of £0.4m relate to the legal costs of a case relating to an historic transaction, which remains angging, and the final settlement of
claims regarding the manufacture of certain components for the Next Generation Light Anti-Tank Weapon {“NLAW™} by Chemring Energetics UK.

In 2016, the claim related credit of £0.6m relates to the final settiement of the claim brought by the US Department of Justice relating to historical
supplies of preduct by Kilgore. This claim is being settled in cash over a five-year period commencing 2016

The costs and credits incurred are a result of claims that have previously been presented as non-underlying. In order to improve comparability these are
presented consistently with previous reporting periods, in non-underlying results.

Impairment of business
The Group has recognised a total impairment loss of £10.6m (2016; £nil), which includes £0.8m relating to taxation, in respect of the Chemring Defence
UK business. This is based on the current market conditions in the military and law enforcement pyrotechnics market,

Other

Unallocated items include £nil (2016: £3.7m) of accelerated interest due on early repayment of koan notes, £nil (2016: £1.4m) of loan note repayment,
costs and a £1.7m gain {2016: £1.0m loss) on the movement in fair value of derivative financial instruments. Also included is the amortsation charge
arising from business combinations of £15.0m (2016: £14.8m).

These items are all removed from underlying measures in line with our accounting policy. The removal of these items allows for improved comparability
between reporting periods.
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3. ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES CONTINUED
Discontinued operations

Disposal related credits of £3.5m (2014: £4.7m) primarily relate to the expiry of certain tax, environmental and property liabilities arising from the

disposal of several businesses in prior years. For further information on discontinued operations related credits see note 28.

Net debt
An analysis and reconciliation of net debt is presented in note 32.
EBITDA
In our financial review we present measures of EBITDA which is calculated as follows:

2017 2016

im £m

Operating profit 15.3 26.2
Armorusation arising from business combinations (note 4) 15.0 14.8
Amortisation arising from develcpment costs (note 4) 6.9 6.8
Amortisation arising from patents and licences (note 4) 0.2 0.1
Depreciation {note 12) 18.5 18.4
Non-underlying depreciation in business restructuring and incident costs {note 12) 1.0 -
EBITDA 569 66.3
Non-underlying items 24.1 75
Underlying EBITDA 81.0 7318

Constant currency revenue

In our finzncial review we present a measure of constant currency revenue. This is calculated by translating our results for the year ended 31 October

2017 at the average exchange rates for the comparative year ended 31 October 2016.

4. OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profitis stated after charging/(crediting):

2017 216
im £m
Research and development costs — customer-funded 401 43.4
—internally-funded 7.4 77
Armortisation — arising from business combinations 15.0 14.8
— development costs 6.9 6.8
— patents and licences 0.2 0.1
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — owned assets 18.4 183
—leased assets 0.l 0.1
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 34 0.2
Operating lease rentals - plant and machinery 1.3 1.3
— other 0.5 0.6
Government grants (¢.n 0.3)
Foreign exchange losses 2.4 33
Staff costs {note 5) 130.4 139.1
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 270.9 205.1
Acquisition and disposal related costs — continuing operations (note 3) 2.3 0.3
— discontinued operations (note 28) {(3.5) “.7)
Business restructuring and incident costs {note 3) 14.3 5.4
Claim related costs/(credits) (note 3) 0.4 (0.6)
fmpairment of business (note |0) 9.8 -
{Gain)/loss on the movement in the fair value of derivative financial instruments (note 20) (.7 1.0
Loan note repayment costs - 1.4
Auditor's remuneration 0.9 1.8
A detailed analysis of the auditor’s remuneration on a worldwide basis is set out below:
2017 2016
Auditor's remuneration m £m
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for:
— the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 03 04
—the audit of the Company's subsidiaries, pursuant to tegislation 0.5 0.5
0.8 09
Other services
Audit-related assurance services 0.1 0.1
Orther assurance services - 05
Tax services — compliance - 0.3
0.t 0.9
0.9 1.8
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

4. OPERATING PROFIT CONIINUED
Included in the fees for the audit of the Company's annual accounts is £0.1m (2016: £0.2m) in respect of the parent cempany.

A description of the work of the Audit Committee 5 set cutin the Audit Committee report on pages 52 to 55, and includes an explanation of how
auditor objectivity and independence is safeguarded when non-audit services are provided by the auditor. No services were provided by the auditor
pursuant to contingent fee arrangements.

5. STAFF COSTS
The average monthly number of employees, including executive directors, was:

0I7 016

Number Nurmber

Direct 1,464 1,620
Indirect 1,046 1,084
2,510 1,704

At the year end, the number of employees was 2,65} (2016: 2,577). The costs incurred in respect of employees, including share-based payments, were:

2elr 015

m £m

Wages and salaries 0.4 118.9
Social security costs 12.0 13.0
Orther pension costs 6.1 6.2
Share-based payment charge 19 .0
130.4 139.1

6. FINANCE EXPENSE 2017 _—
£m £m

Bank overdraft and loan interest 1.1 1.2

Loan notes interest 7.4 9.6
Finance lease interest - C.1

Amortisation of debt finance costs 1.4 2.8

Interest cost of retirement benefit obligations (note 29) 0.4 0.3

Underlying finance expense EL.3 14.5

Non-underlying items include £nil (2016: £3.7m) of accelerated interest costs due on early repayment of loan notes. Including this non-underlying item,
the total finance expense for continuing operations was £11.3m (2016: £18.2m).

7. TAX 2017 w016

(4] £m
Current tax {charge)/credit (10.7) 5.3
Deferred tax credit/{charge) (note 22) 9.8 (6.8)
Tax charge for continuing operationg (0.9) (1.5)

Incore tax in the UK is calculated at 19.4% (2016: 20.0%) of the taxable profit for the year. Tax for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing
in those jurisdictions.

The tax credit for continuing operations tan be reconciled to the income statement as follows:

2017 2006

im £m

Profit before tax from continuing operations 4.0 8.0
Tax ar the UK corporation tax rate of 19.4% (2014: 20.0%) (0.8) (1.6)
Expenses hot deductible for tax purposes (6.3) -
Changes in tax rates (0.6) 0.2
Tax losses not recognised /carried forward (1.2) -
Prior period adjustments {0.3) 54
Adjustment ta provision for interest restriction (note 22) 4.2 {10.6}
Overseas profits taxed at rates different 1o the UK standard rate 4.1 55
Tax charge for continuing operations 0.9) (1.5)
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T. TAX CONTINUED
In addition to the tax credit in the Income statement, a tax charge of £4.3m (2016: £6.3m credit) has been recognised in equity in the year.

in 2016 the prior year adjustment arises primarify as a result of the recognition of additional losses in the UK and US groups.

The effective rate of tax on the profit before tax of the Groupis 22.5% (2016: 18.8%), and the effective rate of tax on the underlying profit before tax of
the Group is 18.4% (2016: 20,9%). The decrease in the effective rate of tax on the results of the Group is primarily due to the geographic mix of profits,
changes to the amounts of deferred tax assets considered recoverable in respect of both tax losses and US interest limitations, prior year adjustments
and the recent changes in UK corporation tax rates,

Factors affecting the tax charge in future years

The Group's future tax charge and effective tax rate coutd be affected by several factors including; tax reform in countries around the world, including
any arising frem the implementation of the OECD’s BEPS actions and European Commission initiatives such as the proposed anti-tax avoidance
directive, tax and financial reporung directive or as a consequence of state aid investigations, future corporate acquisitions and disposals and any
restructuring of our business.

See note 22 for detall on the impact of the LS Tax Cuts and jobs Act,

8. PIVIDENDS

2017 2016
im im

Dividends paid on ordinary shares of Ip each
Final dividend of 1.3p per share for the year ended 3| October 2014 3.6 -
Interim dividend of |.0p per share for the year ended 3| October 2017 2.8 -
Total dividends 6.4 -

The final dividend of 2.0p per ordinary share will be paid on 20 April 2018 to all shareholders registered at the close of business on & Aprif 2018.
The total dividend for the year will therefore be 3.0p (2016: 1.3p) per ordinary share. The final dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting and, accordingly, has not been included as a liability in the financial statements for the year ended 31 October 2017,

The cumulative preference shares carry an entitlement to a dividend at the rate of 7p per share per annum which was paid in equal instalments on
30 April 2017 and 3t October 2017,

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

On 24 February 2016, B5,915,828 new ordinary shares were issued pursuant to the rights issue, with four new ordinary shares issued for every nine
existing ordinary shares held. As a result, the totaf share capital increased to 279,226,442 ordinary shares. For the calculation of earnings per share,
the weighted average number of shares in issue for periods prior to the rights issue has been increased by 14.2% to reflect the bonus element of the
rights issue.

Earnings per share are based on the average number of shares in issue, excluding own shares held, of 279,244,616 (2016: 261,386,484).

Diluted earnings per share has been calculated using a diluted average number of shares in issue, excluding own shares held, of 285,023,506 (2C16:
266,191,422).

The number of shares used in the calculations are as follows:

2007 2016

Ovdinary shares Ordinary shares

Number Number

millions milions

Weighted average number of shares used to calculate basic earnings per share 279.2 2614
Additional shares issuable other than at fair value in respect of options outstanding 5.8 4.8
Weighted average number of shares used to calculate diluted earnings per share 285.0 266.2

The earnings used in the calculations of the various measures of earnings per share are as foliows:
2017 2016

Basic EPS  Dijuted EPS Basic EPS Oiluted EPS

m (pence) {pence) £m {pence) (pence)

Underlying profit after tax 36.0 2.9 12.6 269 10.3 10.1
Non-underlying items {note 3) (32.9) (11.8) (11.5) (20.4) (7.8 (7.5
Profit from continuing operations 3.1 L 1.1 6.5 25 2.4
Profit from discontinued operations 1.5 1.3 1.2 4.6 1.7 1.8
Total profit after tax 6.6 2.4 2.3 111 4.2 4.2
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

10. GOODWILL

£m
Cost
At | November 2065 179.0
Foreign exchange adjustrents 75
At 3| Ocrober 2016 206.5
Foreign exchange adjustments (10.4)
At 3| October 2017 196.1
Accumulated impairment losses
At | November 2015 (57.8)
Foreign exchange adjustments (15.8)
At 31 Ocrober 2016 (73.6)
Impairment (3.0
Foreign exchange adjustments 59
At 3| Gerober 2017 {70.7)
Carrying amount
At 31 October 2017 125.4
At 31 Ocrober 2016 1329

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated at acquisition to the cash-generating units {("CGUs") that are expected to benefit from that
business combination. The carrying amount of the goodwill has been allocated to the Group’s principal CGUs.

The Group tests goodwill at least annually for impairment. Tests are conducted more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.
The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions for the value-in-use catculations have been
individually estimated for each CGU and include the discount rates and expected changes to cash flows during the period for which management has
detailed plans, which are underpinned by the winning and execution of key contracts.

Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
each of the CGUs, Pre-tax discount rates, derived from the Group’s post-tax weighted average cost of czpital of 6.9% (2016: 8.1%) which have been
adjusted for a premium specific to each of the CGUs to account for differences in currency risk, country risk and other factors affecting specific CGUs.
have been used to discount projected cash flows. These premiums range from 2% to 4% (2016: 2% to 4%).

Expected changes to cash flows during the period for which management has detailed plans refate to revenue forecasts, expected contract outcomes
and forecast operating margins in each of the operating companies. The relative value ascribed to each varies between CGUs as the budgets are built up
from the underlying operating companies within each CGU, but the key assumption for each CGU is that demand fram the US and UK governments and
customers in cur other principal markets for the product offering in each company will recover from its current low base. In the case of Chermring
Sensors & Electronic Systems. Inc. CGU. this will be to a level seen historically and in the case of the Reke Manor Research Limited and Chemring
Energeuc Devices, Inc. CGUs it will continue at a similar or slightly enhanced level.

The calculations have used the Group's forecast figures for the next five years. This is based on data derived from the five year plan that has been
approved by the Board. At the end of five years, the calculauons assume the performance of the CGUs will grow at a nominal annual rate of 0.5% in
perpetuity. Growth rates are based on management’s view of industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes.

The pre-tax discount rates used for value-in-use calculations and the carrying value of goodwill by the principal CGUs are:

2017 2016 2017 2006

% % tm m

Roke Manor Research Limited 1.5 13.1 28.4 84
Chemring Energetics UK Limited 10.4 1.8 18.1 18.1
Chemring Sensors & Electronic Systems, Inc. 13.9 15.3 35.4 385
Chemring Defence UK Limited 12.7 14,1 - 30
Chemring Energetic Devices, Inc. 13.7 154 15.6 170
Other 279 279
125.4 1329

The pre-tax discount rates used for other CGUs ranged from 11.7% to 19.3% (2016: 13.0% to 17.5%).
The Board has concluded that the goadwill relating to Chemring Defence UK Limited is impaired and a charge of £3.0m has been recorded in 2017. This

assessment is based on current market conditions in the military and law enforcement pyrotechnics market. The total impairment [oss is £10.6m and
also covers property, plant and equipment of £5.4m {see note 12) and other assets of £2.2m, which includes deferred tax of £0.8m.

88




10. GOODWILL CONTINUED

The weighted average cost of capital is derived using beta values of a comparator group of defence companies adjusted for funding structures as
appropriate. The beta values of this group have reduced during the year leading to generally lower pre-tax discount rates being used compared to the
year ended 31 October 2016.

Following a detailed review, no other impairment losses were recognised in the years ended 31 Octaber 2017 and 31 October 2016.

Stress testing was performed on the forecasts to consider the impact of severe but plausible reasonzble worst case scenarios in the first two years,
including sigmficant delays to major contracts and new product launches followed by a 10% fall in the forecast cash flaws. Even under these
circumstances, no other CGUs would require an impairment against goodwill.

A |% addition to the discount rate for each CGU was zlso separately modelled, and would not result in any CGUs requiring any impairment.

Setting long-term growth rates beyond the five year forecast period to zero would not result in impairment of any CGUs requiring any impairment.

I1. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Acquired
Development Acquired CUstomer Patents and
casts technology relatonships licences Toral
£m £€m £m £m £m

Cost
At | November 2015 545 B5.8 93.1 1.5 1804
Additions 6.7 0.5 1.6 - 2.
Disposals (4.0 4.7) (28.1% (0.9) (33.7)
Foreign exchange adjustments 7.2 19.5 20.9 0.4 40.8
At 3| October 2016 64.4 101.1 B7.5 1.0 189.6
Additions 39 - - o.1 a1
Disposals (3.6) - {4.3) (0.5) {4.8)
Foreign exchange adjustments (3.0) 74 (5.9) .0 (13.4)
At 31 Qcrober 2017 61.7 937 773 0.5 1715
Amortisation
At | November 2015 (18.4) (46.1) {59.1) (1.0) {106.2)
Charge {6.8) (8.6) (6.2) ©.h {14.9)
Disposals 35 47 28.1 09 337
Foreign exchange adjustments (1.8) (10.8) (14.0) (0.3) (25.1)
At 3] October 2016 {23.5) {60.8) (51.2) (0.5) (112.5)
Charge 6.9) (8.6) (6.4) 0.2) (15.2)
Disposals 1.6 - 4.3 0.5 4.8
Foreign exchange adjustments 0.8 47 3.6 0.1 8.4
At 3| October 2017 {18.0) (64.7) (49.7) c.h (114.5)
Carrying amount
At 31 October 2017 33.7 19.0 17.6 0.4 57.0
At 3| October 2016 409 40.3 363 0.5 771

Acquired intangibles are recognised at fair value on acquisition and are amortised over their estimated useful lives. Fair values for acquired intangibles
are assessed by reference to future estimated cash flows, discounted at an appropriate rate to present value, or by reference to the amount that would
have been paid in an arm’s length transaction between two knowledgeable and willing parties. Other intangible assets are recognised at cost and are
amortised over their esumated useful economic lives, which are set out in the accounting policies section.

Included within the development costs of £33.7m, individually material balances relate to CENTURION £2.9m (2016 £3.6m), electronic attack £3.0m
(2016: £3.7m). Perception £2.2m (2016: £2.9m), Joint Biological Tactical Detection System £8.1m (2016: £6.7m) and Next Generation Chemical
Detector £8.4m (2016: £8.2m). Development costs are amortised over their useful economic lives, estimated to be between three and fifteen years,
with the remaining amortisation periods for these assets ranging up 1o twelve years.

Acquired technology of £29.0m includes individually material balances relating te Chemvring Sensors & Electronic Systems £16.1m (2016: £21 8m),
Chemring Energetic Devices £8.7m {2016: £13.0m) and Roke £2.6m (2016: £3.1m). The remaining amortisation periods for these assets are six years,
ten years and five years respectively.

Acquired customer relationships of £27.6m include individually material balances relating to Chemring Energetic Devices £11.6m (2016: £14.3m),

Chemring Ordnance £7.1m (2016: £10.4m), Chemring Sensors & Electronic Systems £4.0m (2016: £5.1m) and Roke £3.3m (2016: £4.4m). The remaining
amortisation periods for these assets are nine years, four years, six years and three years respectively.
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land ana Plant and
bulldings equipment Total
fm im ém

Cost or valuation
At | November 2015 105.0 105.% 2109
Additions l.6 8.7 10.3
Disposals (0.2 4.4 (4.6)
Foreign exchange adjustments 5.5 22.1 37.6
At 3| Ocrober 2016 1219 132.3 1542
Addifions 1.5 10.9 12.4
Dispesals ©.7) (6.0} 6.7)
Foreign exchange adjustments {5.5) (8.3) {13.8)
At 3| October 2017 172 128.9 246.1
Depreciation
At | November 2015 9.0 (33.9) (42.9)
Charge (3.5) {14.9) (18.4)
Disposzls 0. 4.2 4.3
Transfer between categories 0l €. -
Foreign exchange adjustments (39) (13.4) (17.3)
At 31 Ocrober 2016 {16.2) (58.1 (74.3)
Charge (39 {i5.6) {13.5)
Impairment 3. (2.3) (5.4
Disposals 0.6 5.7 6.3
Foreign exchange adjustments 1.6 5.3 6.9
At 31 October 2017 (21.0) (65.0) (86.0)
Carrying amount
At 31 October 2017 96.2 63.9 160.1
At 31 October 2016 105.7 742 1799

The carrying amount of the Group's plant and equipment includes £nil (2016: £0.2m} in respect of assets held under finance leases.

In 2017, £1.2m {2016: £1.2m) of capitalised interest was charged as depreciation. This resuits in a net book value for capitalised interest of £12.3m (2016;

£13.5m).

Land and buildings were revalued at 30 September 1997 by Chestertons Chartered Surveyors, independent valuers not connected with the Group, on
the basis of depreciated replacement cost for two pyrotechnic sites and on open market for the remainder, which represent level 2 measurements in

the fair value hierarchy.

2017 2016
£m £m
30 September 1997 depreciated replacement cost 5.8 5.8
Freehold at cost 111.4 He.1
Cost of land and buildings as at 31 October 2017 7.2 1219
If stated under historical cost principles, the comparable amounts for the total of land and buildings would be:
2017 2016
im £m
Cost 115.2 119.9
Accumulated depreciation (20.3) {15.5)
Historical cast value 94.9 104.4

All other tangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost.

At 31 October 2017, the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of property. plant and equipment amounting to

£2.8m (2016: £2.5m).
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13. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

All subsidiary undertakings have been reflected in these financial statements. The subsidiary undertakings held at 31 QOctober 2017, all 100% owned by
the Group, are shown below. All of these subsidiary undertakings are wholly controlled by Chemring Group PLC.

Country of incorporation {or registration) and operation

Operating segment

Subsidiary undertaking
Chemring Australia Pty Limited

B.D.L Systems Limited

Celco Industries {USA) Limited
Chemring Countermeasures Limited
Chemring Defence UK Limited
Chemring Energetics Limited
Chemring Europe Limited

Chemring Finance Europe Investments Limited
Chemring Finance Europe Limited
Chemring International Limited
Chemring investments Limited
Chemring Limited

Chemring Narth America Unlimited
Chemring Prime Contracts Limited
Chemring Technolegy Sclutions Limited
CHG Design Limited

CHG OQverseas Investments Limited
CHG QOverseas Limited

Chemring UAE Limited

Coated Electrodes UK Limited

Greys Exports Limited

Haley and Weller Limited

Karma Industries No | Limited
Karma Industries No 2 Limited
Kembrey Corporate Trustee Limited
Kembrey Electronics Limited
Kembrey Engineering Limited
Kembrey Group Limited

Kembrey Industries Limited

Kembrey Limited

Kembrey Technologies Limited
Leafield Engineering Limired

Nobel Energertics Limited

Parkway No 3 Limited

Parkway No 7 Limited

Parkway No 8 Limited

Parkway No 9 Limited

Parkway No 10 Limited

Protox Environmental Systems Limited
PW Defence Limited

Richmond EEI Limited

Richmond Electrenics & Engineering Limited
Ripault Drivex Limited

Roke Manor Research Limited
Sarclad Rolltex Limited

Schermuly Limited

Chemring Luxembourg Finance SARL
Chemring Luxembourg Holding SARL
3d-Radar AS

Chemring Nobel AS

Chemring Energetics UK Limired
Allied Technology LLC

Alloy Surfaces Company, Inc.

ASC Realty LLC

Chemring Energetic Devices, Inc.
Chemring Military Products, Inc.
Chemring North America Administration, Inc.
Chemring North America Group, Inc.
Chemring Ordnance, Irc.

CHG Flares, Inc.

CHG Group. Inc.

Kilgere Flares Company LLC

Australia
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
Engtand
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Norway
Norway
Scotland
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
UsA
USA
USA
UsA

Countermeasures
Darmant
Darmant
Countermeasures
Energerics
Dormant
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Dormant
Non-trading
Dormant

Holding Company
Energetics
Sensors

Dormant
MNon-trading
Holding Company
Non-trading
Dormant
Dormant
Darmant
Daormant
Dormant
Dormant
Darmant
Darmant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Darmant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Non-trading
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant

Sensors

Dormant
Dormant

Halding Company
Halding Company
Sensors
Energetics
Energetuics
Holding Company
Countermeasures
Property Holding Company
Energetics
Energetics
Dormant

Holding Company
Energetics
Holding Company
Head Office
Countermeasures
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

13. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS CONIINUED

Country of incorporation {or registration) and operation Operating segment
Chernring Sensors and Eleceranic Systems, Inc. Usa Sensors
Tactical Systems and Crdnance, Inc. UsA Sensors
Titan Dynarmics Systems, Inc. usAa Dormant
Associated undertaking
Chemring Aasia Services Pvt Limited (%} India Non-trading

*  The Group owns 49% of the issued share capital. The associate drd not trade during the year.

CHG Overseas Limited, Chemring North America Unlimited, Parkway No [0 Limited, Chemring Investments Limited, CHG Overseas Investments Limited
are exempt from the requirement to file audited accounts for the year ended 31 QOctober 2017 by virtue of section 479A of the Companies Act 2006.

See page 127 for the registered offices of the subsidiary undertakings.

I14. INVENTORIES

007 1006

Em im

Raw materials 45.7 377
‘Work in progress 30.6 3B.6
Finished goods 20.3 285
91.6 104.8

There are no significant differences between the replacement cost of inventory a2nd the fair values shown above. The Group recognised £8.8m (2016:
£3.2m) as a write down of inventories to net realisable value.

I5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2017 2016

£ €m

Trade receivables 92.9 836
Allowance for doubtful debts (6.9) (0.9
92.0 827

Contract receivables 0.7 2.2
Advance payments to suppliers 25.8 17.0
Other receivables 1.2 2.5
Prepayments and accrued income 1.3 9.8
131.0 114.2

All amounts shown above are due within one year.

The average credit period taken by customers on sales of goods, calculated using a countback basis. is 34 days (2016: 24 days). No interest is charged on
receivables from the date of invoice to payment.

The Group's policy is to provide in full for trade receivables outstanding for more than 120 days beyond agreed terms, unless there are facts and
circumstances that support recoverabilicy.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair values.
16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. The carrying
amount of these assets approximates to their fair value.
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17. BORROWINGS

2017 2018
fm £m
Within current liabilities
Loan notes — US dollar denominated 46.1 295
- Sterling denominated 5.3 -
Short-term borrowings - US dollar denominated 0.2 -
Finance leases - Sterling denominated - 0.1
Borrowings due within one year 51.6 29.6
Within non-current liabilities
Loan notes - Sterling denominated - 53
- US dollar denominated 61.9 115.7
Preference shares 0.1 G.1
Borrowings due after more than one year 62.0 1211
113.6 150.7
Analysis of borrowings by currency:
2017 2016
m £m
Sterling 5.4 5.5
US dollar 108.2 145.2
113.6 150.7
The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows:
2017 016
% %
Bank overdrafts (R 29
UK bank lcans - Sterling denominated L 29
Loan notes — Sterling denominated 7.2 7.6
- US dellar denominated 6.0-6.7 6.0-7.0
An analysis of borrowings by maturity is as follows:
2017 2046
Bank Rank
loans and Loan Other loans and Loan Other
overdrafts notes borrowings Total overdrafts nates baorrowings Tartai
im £m im £m im £m £ im
Barrowings falling due:
— within one year 0.2 51.4 - ] - 295 ol 29.6
Borrowings falling due:
- within one to two years - - - - - 538 - 538
— within two to five years - 1.9 - &1.9 - 67.2 - 67.2
— after five years - - 0.1 0.1 - - 0.1 [+A]
- 619 0.1 62.0 - 121.0 0.l 1211
Total borrowings 0.2 113.3 0.1 113.6 - 150.5 0.2 150.7

Orther borrowings comprise finance leases and preference shares.

The Group has a £100.0m, four year revolvirg credit facility with a syndicate of three banks expiring in July 2019. In addition, the Group has ancillary UK
facilities of £56.0m in respect of bonding and trade finance requirements, and a £17.5m facility to fulfil US trade finance and working capital
requirements. None of the borrowings in the current or the priar year were secured.

There have been no breaches of the terms of the loan agreements during the current cor prior year.

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities available, in respect of which all conditions precedent have been met. Interest costs under
these fac/lities are charged at floating rates.

017 2018
m £m
Undrawn borrowing facilities 106.0 108.0

The Group is subject to two key financial covenants, which are tested quarterly. These covenants relate to the leverage ratio, being the ratio hetween
underlying earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation ("underlying EBITDA") and debt. and the interest cover ratio between
underlying EBITDA and finance costs. The calculation of these ratios involve the translation of hon-sterling denominated debt using average, rather than
closing, rates of exchange. The Group complied with these covenants throughout the year.
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Fipancial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

18, OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Mimimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
2017 2016 2047 016
£m £m £m m
Amounts payable under finance leases:
— within one year - 0.1 - 0.1
— within two to five years - — - —
Present value of lease obligations - 0.1 - 0.1
Less amounts due within one year shown within current liabilities - 0.)
Amounts due for settlement after one year - -
19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2017 04
ém £m
Within current liabilities
Trade payables 371.7 515
Other payables 20.0 17.7
Interest payabte 3.2 4.1
Other tax and social security 3.7 30
Advance receipts from customers 30.7 12.4
Accruals and deferred income 16.6 16.6
1L 107.3
Within non«current liabilities
Other payables - 40

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoirg costs. Advance receipts from customers arise
on larger contracts to fund working capital. The directors consider that the carrying amount of payables approximates to their fair value.

The average credit period taken on purchases of goods is 42 days (2016: 75 days) using year end trade payables divided by cost of sales. No interestis
payable on trade payables from the date of invoice to payment.

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group uses financial instruments to manage financial risk wherever it is appropriate to do so. The main risks addressed by financial instruments are
foreign exchange rate risk and liquidity risk. The Group's policies in respect of the management of these risks, which remained unchanged throughout
the year, are set out below.

The Group's global activities expose it to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Group enters into forward foreign
exchange contracts to manage its exposure to transactional foreign currency risks.

Foreign exchange risk management
The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, giving rise to exposures to exchange rate fluctuations. Foreign exchange
risk can be subdivided into two components, transactional risk and translation risk:

Transactional risk The Group's policy is to hedge transactional currency exposures through the use of forward foreign exchange contracts. The
measurement and control of this risk is monitored on @ Group-wide basis.

Translation risk The Group translates the results and net assets of overseas operations in accardance with the accounung policy within the
Accounting Policies section. The transiation risk on net assets is mitigated by the transfer of currencies between Group
campanies and the appropriate use of foreign currency borrowings.

The sterling equivalents of the carrying amounts of the Group’s forergn currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the year end were
as follows:

w017 2018
Norwegian Australian Norwegian Australian
US dollar Euro krone dollar US dollar Eure krone dollar
Monetary assets {(£m} 57.7 0.5 8.1 2.7 85.1 - 78 6.4
Monetary habilities (£m) {142.5) - (3.4) {0.9) (184.8) {0.3) (3.6) (2.4)

Foreign currency denominated net assets are partially hedged by foreign currency borrowings. The borrowings detailed below were designated as
hedging instruments in net investment hedges.

2017 2016
Morwegian Australian Norwegiar Australian
US dallar Euro krane dollar US dollar Eura krone dollar
Barrowings (fm 109.0 - - - 148.1 - - -
£
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT CONITINUED
The Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its currency risk, most with a maturity of less than one year from inception. The exchange
rate which has the most significant effect on the Group is the US dollar. The following table details the forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding:

Exprring within Expiring within

Average exchange rate Expiring within ong year ONe [0 [WO yaars two to five years
2017 20t6 2017 Pl L) 017 016
2017 2016 £m £ &m £m &m £m
US dollar .32 1.28 3.3 4.7 o.n 02 (.n -
Euro LIS - (4.0) - - - - -
AU dollar 1.72 1.63 39 5.1 - 0.2 - -
Naorwegian Krone 10.70 10.63 52 L7 - - - -

The principal amounts of the Group’s US dollar loan notes have been accounted for as a net investment hedge of the US businesses. This hedge was
effective throughout the year and the gains arising on translation of the loan notes were taken to reserves alcngside the losses on retranslation of the US
businesses. The Norwegian and Australian businesses have no net investment hedge. The retranslation of these businesses is taken directly to reserves.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The following exchange rates applied during the year:

2017 018
Average Closing Average Clesing
rate rate rate rate
US dollar 1.30 1.33 1.28 1.22
Al dollar 1.68 1.73 1.82 1.60

For the year ended 3| October 2017, a | cent decrease in the US dollar exchange rate would have increased reported net debt by approximately £0.8m.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity 1o a 10 cent movement in the relevant foreign currencies against sterling with regards to its income
statement. This sensitivity represents management’s assessiment of a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. This sensitivity analysis only
ineludes translation of the results of foreign currency denominated companies and so does not reflect the impact on the results of sterling or other
turrency companies that have transactions in US dollars.

+10 cents ~10cents
US dollar impact US dollar impact
017 2016 017 20{6
im Lm m £m
Revenue (14.0) (19.0) 17.0 22.0
Underlying operating profit 2.49) (2.0) 2.8 2.3
Interest 0.5 0.6 {0.6) (0.7)
Underlying profit before tax (U8 )] (t.4) 1.2 1.6

Interest rate risk
The Group finances its operations through a combination of retained profits, bank and loan note borrowings, and finance leases.

The UK borrowings are denominated in sterfing and US dollars, and at the shorter end are subject o floating rates of interest.
At 3| Ocrober 2017, the Group had outstanding fixed interest loan notes in the US totalling £114.3m (2016: £153.4m). On 2| November 2016, the
Group repaid $356.0m of outstanding loan notes out of existing cash resources. The remaining loan notes are repayable in November 2017 {£5.3m and

$61.2m) and November 2019 ($83.6m). The loan notes provide a natural hedge against the Group’s investment in its US businesses.

As the Group has predominantly fixed interest rate debt, a change in interest rates would not have an immediate significant impact on the income
statement, A change in interest rates of 1% would cause the Group's finance expense to change by £0.1m_

Liquidity risk

The table below details the maturity profile of the Group’s derivative financial instruments and other assets:

2017 2016

Derivative Other Denvative Other
receivables assets Total receivables assers Total
£m Em Em im £m £m

Falling due:

—within one year 36.1 133.3 169.9 64.0 153.1 2i7.1
— within one to two years L1 - [ 0.9 - 0.9
— within two to five years 1.1 - .1 - - -
38.3 133.8 172.1 649 153.1 218.0
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT CONIINUED

The profile of the Group's financial assets by underlying currency and batance sheet classification is as follaws:

2017 2016

im im

Sterling 71.3 114.6
US dollar 125.1 135.6
AU dollar 1.3 il6
Euro 1.é 2.5
Other currencies 9.9 1.5
215.2 27548
Overdraft offset {43.1) {57.7)
172.1 218.1

2087 2016

£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 33.6 63.1
Trade receivables 92.0 82.7
Accrued income 1.0 4.8
Other receivables 1.2 2.6
DOerivative financdial instruments 38.3 649
172.1 218.1

The ageing of financial assets past due but not impaired is as follows:

7 W6

im im

Current 147.6 202.3
Up to 30 days 4.2 13
Mare than 30 days 20.3 13.5
172, 218.t

The total amount of past due receivables is £24.5m (2016: £15.8m).

The majority of cash balances heid in the UK and the US have a right of offset against overdraft balances.

The foreign currency balances are predominantly attributable to overseas business units and therefore do not result in significant exposure to transactional

risks for the Group.

The table below details the maturity profile of the Group's derivative financial instruments and loans (excluding finance leases, preference shares and

capitalised facility fees):

2017 2016
Derivative Loans and Dervauve Loans and
payables averdrafts Total payables averdrafts Totai
fm £m im im £m £m
Falling due:
— within one year 36.2 120.4 156.6 66.1 119.9 186.0
~ within one to two years 1.1 - 1.1 0.7 55.4 56.1
— within two to five years 11 62.0 63.1 - 68.5 68.5
38.4 182.4 220.8 66.8 243.8 3106
The profile of the Group's financial tabilities by underlying currency and balance sheet classification is as follows:
1017 2016
Fixed rate Total Fixed rate Total
£m £m fm m
Sterling 65.5 65.5 63.0 63.0
US dollar 189.4 189.4 294.) 294,
AlJ dollar 0.9 0.9 28 2.8
Euro 49 4.9 36 3.6
Orther currencies 3.2 3.2 4.8 4.8
263.9 263.9 368.3 368.3
Overdraft offset (43.1) (57.7)
220.8 310.6
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

2017 016

£m £m

Loan notes 113.3 150.5
Preference shares {note 23) 0.1 0.1
Short-term borrawings 0.2 -
Obligations under finance leases {note [8) - 0d
113.6 150.7

Trade payables 7.7 53.5
Accruals 14.2 13.7
Interest payable 32 4.0
Other payables 13.7 21.7
Derivative financial instruments 38.4 66.9
220.8 310.6

The weighted average interest rate of fixed rate financial liabilities at 31 October 2017 was 6.7% (2016: 6.6%) and the weighted average period of funding
was one year (2016: two years).

Derivative financial instruments
The following table details the fair value of derivative financial instrument liabilities recognised in the balance sheet:

2017 2016

im Lm

Included in current assets 0.4 0.5
Included in current liabilities (0.4) {2.5)
Forward foreigh exchange contracts - (2.0)

The foliowing tabie details the (gain}/loss on the movementin the fair value of derivative financial instruments recognised in the income statement:

2017 2016
im im
(Gain)/loss on the movement in the fair value of derivative financial instruments (.7 1.0

Fair value hierarchy
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures requires companies that carry financial instruments at fair value in the balance sheet to disclose their level of
visibility, determining into which category those financial instruments fall under the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

» Llevel | — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilives;

»  Level 2 —inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observabie for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly {i.e. derived from prices); and

*  Level 3 —inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. as unobservable inputs).

The following tables present the Group’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value:

1017 2016
Level | Level 2 Total Level | Level 2 Totat
im £m fm im im im
Assets
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 0.4 Q.4 - 05 0.5
Total assets - 2.4 0.4 - 0.5 0.5
2017 2018
Level | Level 2 Total Level | Level 2 Total
£m £m £m im £m irm
Liabilities
Borrowings - (113.8) (113.6) - (150.5) (150.5)
Forward foreign exchange contracts - (0.4) (©.4) - (2.5) (2.5)
Total liabilities - (114.0) (114.0) - (153.0) (153.00

There were no assets or liabilities that were classed under Level 3 on the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of derivative financial instruments is
estimated by discounting the future contracted cash flow, using readily available market data.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT CONIINUED

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances and cash. trade and other receivables, and derivative financial instruments, which represent the
Group's maximum expaosure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. Whilst the Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single
counterparty in respect of bank balances and cash. the credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is monitored on an ongoing basis
using credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies, the credit default swap market and market capitalisation.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables, The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful
debts, based on prior experience and an assessment of the current economic environment, Trade receivables are attributable to a smalt number of
customers spread across a diverse geographical area. Customers are mainly multinational organisations or government agencies with whom the Group
has long-term business relationships. The Group's principal customers are government defence departments, such as the LS Department of Defense,
the UK Ministry of Defence and the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia Ministry of Defence and Aviation, US and UK defence prime contractors, such as
Lockheed Martin, BAE Systems and General Dynamics, and distributors of products for their onward sale to end users.

Counterparties are monitored on an ongoing basis for credit risk and, at the balance sheet date, the risk was deemed to be low. Ongoing credit
evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable and action is taken to minimise credit risk.

The Group's accounting policies and control procedures require letters of credit to be put in place for the majority of cantracts with
overseas customers.

The Group's pricing risk is primarily in relation to the cost of raw materials and is not considered significant. Pricing risk is managed through negotiations
with suppliers and, where appropriate, the agreement of fixed-price supply contracts.

Capital management

The Board seeks to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence, and to sustain future development of the
business. From time to time, the Group purchases its own shares in the market; the timing of these purchases depends on market prices. Primarily, such
shares are intended to be used for satisfying awards under the Group's share-based incentive schemes. Buy and sell decisions are made on a specffic
transaction basis by the Board.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally-imposed capital requirements.

21. PROVISIONS

Legal Environmental Warranty  Restructuring Disposal Qther
provision provisten provision provision provision provision Total
im m £m £m £m £m im

At | November 2016 3.1 4.1 0.1 1.3 76 - 16.2
Provided - 0.2 — 6.7 - 0.4 7.3
Foreign exchange adjustments {0.2) (0.3) - - 0.l - ©.4)
Paid {1.2) (0.2) (0. {2.1) 0.5 0.2 4.3)
Released ©.1} 0.7 - - (2.7) - (3.5)
At 3| October 2017 1.6 3.1 - 5.9 4.5 0.2 15.3
These provisions are classified on the balance sheet as follows:

2017 pael [

im fm

Included in current liabilities 5.5 4.5
Included in hon-current liabilities 8.8 1.7

15.3 16.2

The legal provision represents the estimated legal liabifivies faced by the Group at the balance sheet date. Further detalls of the Group's contingent
ligbilities are set out in note 34.

The environmental provision is held in respect of potential habilities associated with the Group’s facility in Chicago, USA.
The restructuring provision relates to the closure of a Countermeasures facility in Philadelphia, USA and an Energeues facility in California, USA.

The disposal provision relates to estimated liabilities faced by the Group in respect of Mecar and Simme! under the terms of their respective sale
agreements. The risk of ecanomic outflow refating to these reduces with the passage of time.

Provisions are subject to uncertainty in respect of the outcome of future events. Legal provisions will be utilised based on the outcome of cases and the
level of costs incurred defending the Group's position. Enviranmental provisions will be utilised based on the outcome of further environmental studies
and remediation work. Restructuring provisions will be utilised based on actual costs incurred for redundancy, dead rent and dilapidations and these will
e impacted by the final negotiated settlement of any claims wath landlords. Disposal provisions will be utilised based on the outcome of certain events
which are specified in sale and purchase agreements. Itis not possible to estimate more accurately the expected timing of any resulting cutflows of
ecoromic benefits.
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22. DEFERRED TAX
The foliowing are the principal deferred tax liabilities/{assets) recognised by the Group and movements thereon:

Accelerated

rax US Interest Tax Acquired
depreciation Pensions deductrans losses intangibles Other Tatal
£m £m £m £m £m im £m
At | November 2015 14.0 (3.5) (16.2} (3.3) 1.9 (5.3) 2.4)
Charge/(credit) to income 1.8 1.0 73 4. (2.6) 34 6.8
Charge/(credit) to equity 08 (0.8) {5.7) - 0.5 (0.3) (5.5}
At | November 2016 16.6 3.3 (14.8) 7.4 9.8 (2.2) (1.1}
Charge/(credit) to income (4.6) 1.2 {10.8) 57 09 (2.2) (9.8)
Charge/(credit) to equity 0.3 2.0 28 0.2 (0.4) 3.7 1.2
At 31 October 2017 12.3 (0.1 (22.6) {1.5) 10.3 8.n 9.7)

The Finance Act 2016, which provided for reductions in the main rate of UK corporation tax from 20% to 19% effective from | April 2017 and to 17%
effective from | April 2020, was substantively enacted on |# September 2016.

The closing UK deferred tax asset as at 31 October 2017 has been calculated at the rates which will be in force when the assets and liabilities are
expected to reverse.

The Group’s deferred tax provision at the balance sheet date includes an asset of £22.6m {2016: £14.6m) in relation to amounts carried forward under
the LS interest limitation regulations. These carried forward amounts are available for offset in future periods in accordance with the regulations,
subject to available US taxable profits. Management prepare long-term forecasts for the upcoming five-year period for all entities in the Group and have
used these to determine the amount of the deferred tax asset which shoutd be recognised at the balance sheet date. Due to the irherent uncertainties
associated wath preparing long-term forecasts, particularly in the current global environment, the final outcome may vary significantly, whilst a range of
outcomes is reasonably possible, the extent of this range is potential additional assets of up to £13.6m or a reducticn in the asset of up to £22.6m.

The US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("TC|A”) was substantively enacted on 22 December 2017. The TCJA provides for a reduction in the main rate of federal
corporate income tax from 35% to 21% for accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2018. As the legislation was not substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date its effect has not been included in these financial statements. If the changes had been taken into account in preparing the financial
staterments the impact would have been to reduce the value of the Deferred Tax Asset by approximately £5m.

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in accerdance with the Group’s accounting policy. Deferred tax balances after offsetare
analysed on the balance sheet as follows:

2047 016

im £m

Non-current liabilities 53.5 58.5
Non-current assets (63.2) (59.6)
.7 (.0

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unrecognised tax losses of £27.5m (2016: £8.0m) potentially available for offset against future profits in certain
circumstances, the increase arising primarily as a result of the tax losses arising in the UK. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of this
amount because of the unpredictability of future taxable qualifying profit streams.

23. SHARE CAPITAL

2017 2016
im £m

Issued and fully paid
281,588,075 (2016: 281,425,256) ordinary shares of Ip each 2.8 2.8

During the year, 162,819 ordinary shares {2016: 5,337) were issued for cash to employees under the Group’s approved savings-related share schemes.

On 24 February 2016, 85,915,828 new ordinary shares were issued pursuant tc the rights issue, with four new crdinary shares issued for every nine
existing ordinary shares held.

The Company's share capital also includes 62,500 7% cumulative preference shares of £1 each, which are all issued and fully paid-up. and are classified
for accounting purposes within non-current liabilities. The cumulative preference shares carry an entitlement to a dividend at the rate of 7p per share
per annum, payable in equal instalments on 30 April and 31 October each year. Holders of the preference shares have the right on a winding-up 10
receive, in priority to any other classes of shares, the sum of £1 per share together with any arrears of dividends.

24. RESERVES
The share premium account, the special capital reserve and the revaluation reserve are not distributable.

Included within retained earnings are £3.6m (2016 £3.0m) relating 1o the share-based payment reserve and £nil (2016: £nil) of the Company's own
shares held by the Greup’s Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust.
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

15. OWN SHARES

2017 w16
im £m
At beginming and end of the year 9.6 9.6

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in the Company purchased in the market and held by the Group to satisfy awards under the
Group’s share-based incentive schemes, details of which are set outin note 27. No ordinary shares (2016: nil) were acquired during the year and no
ordinary shares (2016: nil) were distributed following the vesting of awards under the PSP. The total number of ordinary shares held in treasury at
3t October 2017 was 2,198,814 (2016: 2,198,814), with an average cost of 439.0p (2016: 439.0p) per share.

This represents 0.8% (2016: 0.8%) of the rotal issued and fully-paid ordinary share capital.

26, OBLIGATIONS UNDER NON-CANCELLABLE OPERATING LEASES

07 2018
im £m
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised in the income statement B 1.5

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, falling
due as follows:

2017 2016

im im

Within one year 2.3 27
In the second to fifth years 1.0 5.2
Over five years 0.2 0.4
5.5 83

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group. Leases are negotiated for an average term of three years and rentals are fixed for the
lease period, with an option to extend for a further period at the then prevailing market rate.

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The Group operates share-based compensation arrangements to provide incentives to the Group's senior management and eligible employees. The
Group recognised a net charge of £1.9m (2016: £1.9m} in respect of share-based payments during the year.

Detzils of the four schemes which operated during the year are set out below.

The Chemring Group Performance Share Plan {the “PSP") and

The Chemring Group Performance Share Plan 2016 (the “2016 PSP’")

Under the PSP and the 2016 PSP, conditional awards of ordinary shares are made at nil cost to employees. Awards ordinarily vest on the third
anniversary of the award date. The PSP commenced in March 2006 and expired in March 2016, when it was replaced by the 2016 PSP, which has broadly
similar terms. Awards remain outstanding under the PSP but all new awards will now be made under the 2016 PSP.

PSP 2016 PSP
Number of condiuonal shares Number of condinonal shares
2017 2016 2017 2016
Qutstanding at beginning of the year 4,503,592 3966720 - -
Adjustments relating ta rights issue - 704,701 - -
Awarded - 2,313,385 12,295,577 -
Lapsed (£,333,619) (2,481.214) (111,690) -
Outstanding at end of the year 3,169,973 4,503,592 12,183,887 -
Subject to vesting at end of the year - -

The following awards were outstanding at 31 October 2017:
Number of

ordinary Vesung price Date when
shares per share awards due
Date of award under award Pance o vest
26 January 2015 1,237,868 ail 26 January 2018
25 January 2016 1,673,526 nil 15 January 2019
7 March 2016 258,579 nil 7 March 20(9
24 March 2017' 2,183,887 nil 24 March 2020

! These awards were granted under the 2014 PSP,

(00




27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONIINUED
The Group has applied a discount to the share-based payments, to reflect the anticipated achievement of the stipulated targets for each PSP and 2016 PSP
award based on the predicted figures within the Group's financial projections and the expected number of leavers over the fife of the awards.

The 2016 PSP awards made in the year ended 31 October 2017 had targets based on earnings per share growth and total shareholder return.
The awards have been valued using the following modelling inputs:

Date awarded

24 March 25 January 7 March

2017 2016 2016

Share price at valuation 196p 138p 134p
Exercise price hil nil nil
Risk-free rate 0.2% 0.7% 0.4%
Expected volatility 28.8% 36.4% 38.6%
Fair value 165.5p 107.0p 85.5p

The weighted average fair value of awards made during the year was 165.5p (2016: 102.4p).

No awards were exercised in the year ended 31 October 2017 or the year ended 31 Cctober 2016. The charge recoghised in respect of the awards is
based an their fair value at the grant date.

The Chemring Group Restricted Share Plan (the “RSP"")
Under the RSP, deferred awards of ordinary shares are made at nil cost to employees. Awards ordinarily vest on the second or third anniversary of the
award date. The first awards under the RSP were made in February 2013.

Number of deferred shares

2017 2016

Outstanding at beginning of the year 50,000 130,000

Awarded - 50,000

Exercised - (130,000)

Outstanding at end of the year 50,000 50,000

Subject to vesting at end of the year - -
The following RSP awards were outstanding at 3t October 2017:

Number VYesting Date

of ordinary price when

shares under per share award

Date of award award Pence duc to vest

7 March 2014 50,000 nil 7 March 2019

The Group has applied a discount to the share-based payment relating to the RSP, to reflect the expected number of leavers over the life of the
RSP awards.

The Chemring Group 2008 UK Sharesave Plan (the “UK Sharesave Plan')
Optichs were granted during the year on 27 july 2017,

w017 2016
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise Number exercise
of share price of share price
optians Pence opuons Pence
Ourtstanding at beginning of the year 1,728,037 128.1 1,302.225 186.4
Adjustment relating to the rights issue - - 172,519 186.4
Granted 518,998 148.0 1,03¢,147 105.0
Exercised (162,819) 141.3 (5,337} 163.0
Lapsed {280,563) 166.7 (772,517) 163.5
Qutstanding at end of the year 1,813,653 126.7 1,728,037 128.1
Subject to exercise at end of the year 74,792 150.7 53,441 255.9
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONIINUED
The following opticns were outstanding at 31 Ociober 2017:

Number
of ardinary  Exercise price

shares under per share Dates between which
Date of award award Pence options may be exerosed
30 July 2012 12,283 195.0 | Qctober 2047 — 31 March 2018
30 july 2013 29,218 209.0 | October 2018 — 31 March 2019
30 July 2014 62,509 142.0 | October 2017 — 3] March 2018
30 July 2014 54,615 142.0 | October 2049 ~ 31 March 2020
30 July 2015 153,909 152.0 1 October 2018 — 31 March 2019
30 July 2015 33,848 152.0 i October 2020 — 31 March 2021
27 July 2018 874,013 105.0 | October 2019 — 31 March 2020
27 July 2016 78,853 105.0 | Octaber 2021 — 31 March 2022
27 July 2017 435,760 1480 | October 2020 — 31 March 2021
27 July 2017 78.645 148.0 1 Ocrober 2022 — 31 March 2023

The weighted average fair value of options granted in the year was 37.0p (2016 26.0p).
The weighted average fair value of options exercised in the year was 36.7p (2016: 41.3p).
The weighted average share price on exercise of the options during the year was 141.3p (2016: 146.6p).

The fair values of the share options in the UK Sharesave Plan are based on the difference between the exertise price and the share price on the grant
date of the option.

28. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 4 May 2016, the Group acquired patents, equipment, inventory and selected contracts relating to Esterline’s UK-based subsidiary, Wallop Defence
Systems Limited, for an initial cash consideration of £2.5m. Additional payments of up to £9.0m, which are conditional upon the receipt of specific
orders in the period after acquisition, may be made over the next two years. At 3| October 2017 an accruzl for £1.6m has been made and this may
increase if further orders are received.

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed £m
Inventory 0.2
Property, plant and equipment 0.2
ldentifiable intangible assets 2.1
Total consideration 25
Satisfied by:

Cash 2.5
Total consideration transferred 2.5

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 25
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired -

Cash outflow from investing activities 2.5

Acquisiion-related costs (included in administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement) for the year ended 31 October 2016 amounted
to £0.2m.

There were no disposals during the year, however the £3.5m credit {2016: £4.6m) from discontinued operations relates to disposals made in prior years.

2017 2016

£m im

European munitions businesses disposal 2.7 4.1
Disposed property dilapidations 0.l 0.6
Marine business disposal 0.7 -
Tax on discontinued operarions - {0.1)
3.5 4.6
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29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

In the UK, the Group operates a defined benefit scheme (the "Chemring Group Staff Pension Scheme™). In Norway, Chemring Nobel operates a
defined benefit scheme {the "Chemring Nobel Scheme”). The Group's other UK and overseas pension arrangements are all defined contribution
schemes, with a combined cost of £6.1m (2016: £6.2m).

The Chemring Group Staff Pension Scheme is a funded scheme and the assets of the scheme are held in a separate trustee administered fund. The
scheme was closed to future accrual on 6 April 2012. A full actuarial valuation of the Chemring Group Staff Pension Scheme as at 6 April 2015 has been
completed and updated to 31 October 2017 by a qualified actuary, using the projected unit credit method. The main assumptions for the scheme are
detailed below. The deficit of the Chemring Group Staff Pension Scheme was £0.6m at 31 Gcerober 2017 (2016: £17.3m).

Under the funding plan agreed with the trustees following the 2015 actuarial valuation, the Company has agreed to eliminate the deficit indicated by that
valuation over a period of four years. This funding plan provides for contributions of £5.0m per annum to be paid in monthly instalments until june 2019,
The Company and the trustees monitor funding levels annually, and a new funding plan is agreed with the trustees every three years, based on actuarial
valuations. The Group considers that the current contributicn rates agreed with the trustees are sufficient to eliminate the calculated deficit over the
agreed period.

The Group has given a bank guarantee and tetter of credit totalling £7.2m (2016: £8.5m) to the scheme in respect of future contributions, which are
progressively reducing as contributicns are paid under the agreed funding schedule.

The trust deed provides for an unconditional right to a return of surplus assets in the event of a plan wind-up. The trustees gave na rights to unilaterally
wind up or augment the benefits due to members of the scheme. Based on these rights, any net surplus in the LIK scheme is recognised in full.

The Chemring Nebel Scheme is an unfunded scheme. The actuarizal liability has been calcufated at 31 October 2017 by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. The main assumptions used were a discount rate of 2.0% and rate of increase in deferred pensicns of 3.5%. The net

surplus of the Chemring Nobel Scheme was £nil at 31 October 2017 (2016: £nil) and as such is immaterial for further detailed disclosures.

The movement in the net defined benefit liability is as follows:

Definad benofit obligations Defined benefit asset Net defined benefit kabilicy
2007 2006 017 2016 2017 2018
m £m im (4] £m £m
At i November (94.7) (81.1) 77.4 63.4 (17.3) (17.7)
Included in profit or loss
Net interest cost {(2.5) (3.0 2.1 2.2 (0.4) (0.8)
(2.5) (3.0 2.1 22 (0.4) (0.8)
Included in other comprehensive income
Rerneasurement gain/{foss):
Actuarial gain/{loss) arising from:
— Demographic and financial assumptions T.6 (16.5) - - 7.6 (16.5)
- Experience adjustment 1.8 27 - - 1.8 27
~ Return on plan assets excluding interest income - - 2.5 10.0 2.5 10.0
9.4 {13.8) 2.5 10.0 1.9 (3.8
Other
Contributions by the employer - - 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Additional contributions by the employer - - 0.2 - 0.2 -
Net benefits paid out 4.0 32 (4.0) (3.2) - -
At 3| Qctober (83.8) {94.7) 83.2 774 (0.6) {17.3)

The Chemring Group Staff Pension Scheme had 1,030 members at the end of the year {2016 1,071). Of these members 53.1% (2016: 51.1%) were
pensioners drawing benefits from the scheme and the balance were deferred members. The duration of the liability is long with pension payments
expected to be made for atleast the next 40 years.

The pension schemes’ assets are analysed as follows:

2017 2016 2017 1016

im £m % %

Equities 54.4 523 65.6 &7.5
Liability Driven Investment 20.7 147 24.9 19.0
Corporate bonds 1.5 9.5 2.0 12.3
Cash 0.4 0.3 0.5 1.2
832 774 100.0 100.0

The schemes’ assets are invested in accordance with the statement of investment principles after taking professicnal advice from the schemes’
investment advisers. The investment strategy is to split the assets into a growth portfolio of index trading equity funds and real return funds, and a
matching portfolio of leveraged liability driven pooled funds.
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONIINUED
The principal assumptions used in the actuarial valuation of the Chemring Group Staff Pension Scheme were as follows:

2017 016

% %

Discount rate 2.7 2.7
Rate of increase in deferred pensions 3.0 34
Rate of increase in pensions in payment {where applicable} 3.0 34
Inflation — RP} 30 3.6
—CPI 2.0 27

In determining defined benefit obligations, the Group uses mortality assumptions which are based on published mortality tables. For the Chemring
Group Staff Pension Scheme, the actuarial table currently used is SAPS Normal Health pensioner tables with future improvements in line with CM! 2016
and a 1.25% long-term trend rate.

This results in the following life expectancies at age 65:

017 006

Future pensioners —male 88.5 88.1
— female 90.5 20.6

Current pensioners —male 87.1 B&.5
— female 89.0 88.8

The most significant assumptions in the pension valuation are the discount rate applied to the liabilities, the inflation rate to be applied to pension
payments and the mortality rates. If the discount rate used in determining retirement benefit obligations were to change by 0.1% then itis predicied that
the deficit in the scheme would change by approximately £1.3m. A change in the rate of inflaticn by 0.1% is predicted to change the deficit by
approximately £0.5m and a one year change to the longevity assumption would change the deficit by approximately £2.9m. The principal risks to the
schemes are that the investments do not perform as well as expected, the discount rate continues to fall driven by lower market interast rates and that
the rate of improvement in mortality assumed is insufficient and life expectancies continue to rise.

The Group anticipates contributions to the defined benefit schemes for the year ending 31 October 2018 will be £5.0m (2017: £5.0m).

30. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

1017 2016

fm fm

QOperating profit from continuing operaticns 15.3 26.2
Operating profit from discontinued operations 3.5 4.7
18.8 309

Amortisation of development costs 69 6.8
Intangible amortisation arising from business combinations 15.0 14.8
Amortisation of patents and licences 0.2 0.1
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 03 02
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8.5 18.4
(Gain}/loss on the mavement in the fair value of derivative firancial instruments (1.7) 1.0
Share-based payment expense L9 i.0
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 59.9 732
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (6.0) 13.6
(Increase) in trade and other receivables (32.3) {5.8)
tncrease/(decrease) in trade and other payables 2.3 {.n
(Decrease) in provisions 0.1} 0.3
23.8 79.6

Add back non-underlying items:

Acquisition and disposal related credits (1.2) f4.4)
Business restructuring and incident costs 14.3 54
Claim related costs/{credits) 0.4 (0.6)
tmpairment of business 9.8 —
Loan note repayment costs - |4
Cash generated from underlying operating activities 47.1 814
Cash impact of non-underlying irems (6.3) 8.1
Cash generated from operating activides 40.8 7313
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3I. RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT

2017 2016

im £€m

(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (29.4) 54.6
Decrease in debt and lease financing due to cash flows 29.4 49.6
Decrease in net debt resulting from cash flows - 104.2
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 10.0 (34.7;
Amortisation of debr finance costs (2.4) (2.8)
Movement in net debt 7.6 66.7
Net debr at beginning of the year (87.6) {154.3)
Net debt at end of the year (80.0) (87.6)
32. ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT A A
| Novemper Non-cash Exchange  3) October

1014 Cash flows changes rate effects 2017

£m £m £m £m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 631 (29.4) - 0.1y 33.6
Debt due within one year (29.5) 28.8 (54.5) 3.6 (55.6)
Debt due after one year (121.0) 0.5 52.1 6.5 (61.9)
Finance leases 0.1 0.1 - - -
Preference shares 0.1 - - - (©0.1)
(87.6) - (2.4) 1.0 (80.0)

33. ADOPTION OF IFRS |5

The Group has adopted IFR3 |5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15") for its 2017 financial year. The majority of the Group’s transactions
are unaffected by IFRS |5, however when IFRS 15 is applied to a small number of customer contracts this leads to a difference in the timing of
recognising revenue. As permitted by the standard, the Group has taken advantage of the modified transitional provisions and as such the 2016 results
remain as previously reported. Under the modified approach the cumulative approach of initiaily applying the standard is recognised at | November
2016 with no restatement of prior periods.

An adjustment to brought forward retained earnmings of £10.2m has been recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. representing
the reversal of certain revenue that met the criteria for revenue recognition under previously applicable accounting standards but does not do so under
IFRS I5. This also reduced receivables and payables but increased inventory as at | November 2016.

The impact of adeption in the year to 31 October 2017 can be seen below and arises from revenue recognised in prior years which would instead have
been deferred to the current year under IFRS 5.

IFRS 15

Pre IFRS 15 adjustment As reported

fm fm £m

Continuing operations = underlying
Revenue 5312 6.3 547.5
Operating profit 50.5 4.5 55.4
Finance expense {H.3) - (11.3)
Profit before tax 392 49 441
Tax charge (7.2) (0.9} 8.1
Profit after tax 32.0 4.0 36.0

In addition, a number of transactions, with a broadly equivalent operating profit impact, will now be recognised in 2018 that could have previously been
recognised in 2017, This timing difference is expected 1o recur at each reporting pericd end, albeit at a different quantum.

The adoption of IFRS |5 had the effect of increasing revenue by £0.2m and operating profit by £0.5m in Countermeasures, increasing revenue by £2.8m
and operaung profit by £1.5m in Sensors, and increasing revenye by £13.3m and operaung profit by £2.9m in Energetics.

The affected contracts are a combination of contracts for the provision of products. The significant risks and rewards of ownership had transferred but

there remained an element of control, typically an undertaking to arrange elements of shipping on behalf of the customer, and hence the timing of
revenue recognition is later under IFRS |5,
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group enters into contracts which have offset commitments. These requirements are valued at the time of the contract being awarded. The cost of
the offsets are reviewed throughout the contract Hfe and provided for within the contract costings to the extent of the potential liability.

At 31 October 2017, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of bank and contractual performance guarantees and other matters arising in the
ordinary course of business. Where itis expected that a material liability will arise in respect of these matters, appropriate provision is made within the
financial statements, As the conditions of these guarantees are currently being met, no obligating event is foreseeable and therefere no provision has
been made.

The Group is, from time to time, party to legat proceedings and claims, and is involved in correspondence relating to potential claims, which arise in the
ordinary course of business.

A dispute between Alloy Surfaces Company, Inc. and the US Army, in relation to disputed pricing of a certain histeric contract fulfilled by Alloy Surfaces
Company. Inc., proceeded to a hearing in front of the US Armed Services Board of Contract Appeals (“ASBCA") in April 2017. ASBCA is expected 1o
take approximately two years to issue its decision in refation to this matter. The range of possible outcomes is between £nil to £12.0m. A provision of
£1.1m (2016: £1.8m) exists to cover estimated legal costs for the Group with regards to this issue.

The Serious Fraud Office (the "SFO™) is currently undertaking a formal investigation into concerns about bribery, corruption and money laundering
involving intermediaries who previously represented one of the Group's LIK-based subsidiaries, Chemring Technology Solutions Limited ("CTSL") and
its predecessor companies. The investigation commenced following a voluntary report made by CTSL relating to two specific historic contracts, the first
of which was awarded pricr to the Group’s ownership of the business concerned and the second in 2011, neither of which are considered to be material
in the context of the Group. ltis too early (o predict the outcome of the SFO's investigation, in which the Group contnues (o co-operate fully.

The Group has a £2.5m deductible per claim under its material damage and business interruption insurance policy, subject to a maximum aggregate
deductible of £3.5m in any one year.

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this
note. Transactions with the Group's pension schemes are disclosed in note 29.

Trading transactions
There were no trading activities between the Group and its associate in this period or the comparative period.

Remuneration of key management personnel

For the purposes of remuneration disclosure, key management personnel includes only the executive directors and excludes the other senior business
manzgers and members of the Executive Committee. Their remuneration is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in [AS 24
Related Porty Disclosures. Further information on the remuneration of individual directors is provided in the audited part of the directors’ remuneration
report on pages 64 to 74.

The directors of the Company had no material transactions with the Company during the year, other than in connection with their service agreements.
The remuneration of the executive directors is determined by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the performance of the individuals and
market trends. The remuneration of the non-executive directors is determined by the Board, having regard to the practice of ather companies and the
particular demands of the Group.

W07 2016
im £m
Remuneration of key management personnel p A 20

Further detail can be found in the directors’ remuneration report on pages 56 to 74.

36. EVENTS SINCE THE END OF THE YEAR
On |3 November 2017, the Group repaid £5.3m and $61.2m of outstanding lozn notes out of existing bank debt facilities and cash resources.
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2017

2017 2018
Nate £m ém im Ll
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment | 0.3 0.4
Investments in subsidiaries 2 625.2 511.3
Deferred tax 10 - 6.7
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 4 360.3 376.2
985.8 8%4.6
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 4 12.9 225
Cash and cash equivalents 25.3 22.7
38.2 50.2
Total assets 1,024.0 9448
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5 (265.5) (164.1)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5 (124.7) (165.4)
Pravisions [ (0.2) (1.6)
Deferred tax 10 (0.4) -
Preference shares 7 .nH 0.1
Retirement benefit obligations I (0.2) (6.3)
(825.8) {173.4)
Total liabilities (391.1) (337.5)
Net assets 632.9 607.3
Equity
Share capital 8 2.8 2.8
Share premium account 305.3 305.1
Special capital reserve 12.9 12.9
Retained earnings 321.5 296.1
642.5 616.9
Qwn shares g (9-6) (9.6)
Total equity 6329 607.3

Profit attributable to shareholders

In accordance with the concession granted under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the profit and loss account of Chemring Group PLC has not
been presented separately in these financial statements. There is nc material difference between the results disclosed and the results on an unmaodified
historical cost basis. The Company reported a profit for the year ended 31 October 2017 of £27.4m (2016: £1.5m loss).

These financial statements of Chemring Group PLC (registered number 866621) were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

18 January 2018.

Signed on behalf of the Beard

Michael Flowers
Direcror
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Financial Statements

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3i OCTOBER 2017

2017 2016
im £m
Profiti(loss) after tax attributable to equity holders of the parent as reported 27.4 {1.5)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or toss
Actoarial gains/{losses) on pension scherne, net of deferred tax 1.8 (1.3}
Total comprehensive income/{loss) attributable to the equity holders of the parent 30.2 2.8)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2017
Share Specral
PreEmum capreal Retaned
Sharc capitat account reserve earnings Own shares Total
im im £m £m €m £m
At | November 2016 2.8 3051 12.9 296.1 (9.6) 607.3
Profit after tax - — — 274 - 274
Other comprehensive mcome — - - 2.8 - 28
Total comprehensive income - - - 30.2 - 30.2
Ordinary shares issued - 0.2 - - - 02
Share-based payments (net of settlement) — - - 1.6 — 1.6
Dividends paid - - - (6.4} - 6.4}
At 31 October 2007 2.8 305.3 11.9 3215 (9.6) 632.9
Share Soecial
premium capital Retained
Share caprral account reserve earnmgs Own shares Total
£m £m £m £m im im
At | November 2015 20 230.7 12.9 2979 (9.6) 5339
Loss after tax - - - {1.5) - (1.5)
Other comprehensive losses - - - (1.3) - (1.3)
Total comprehensive [osses - - - (2.8) - (2.8)
Ordinary shares issued 0.8 744 - - - 752
Share-based payments (net of sertlement) - - - 1.0 - 1.0
At 31 October 2016 2.8 3051 1.3 296.1 (9.6) 6073

The auditor’s remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 4 to the Group financial statements.

A final dividend of 2.0p per ardinary share has been proposed. See note 8 to the Group financial statements,

As at 31 October 2017 the Company had distributable reserves of £316.9m (20(6: £293.2m). When required, the Company can receive dividends from

its subsidiaries to further increase distributable reserves.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Plant and
build ngs eguipment Toral
fm im £m
Cost
At | November 2015 ol 1.3 1.4
Additions 0.1 03 c4
Disposals (0.1 (L2 (1.3)
At 31 October 2016 ol 0.4 0.5
Disposals - .15 0.4
At 3l Ocrober 2017 0.1 03 04
Depreciation
At | November 2015 - 1.2 1.2
Charge - 0.1 01
Disposals — (1.2) (1.2}
At 31 Ocrober 2016 - 0.1 0l
Charge - 0.1 04
Disposals ~ {0.1) 0.1y
At 3l Qcrober 2016 - 0.1 Qi
Carrying amount
At 3| October 2017 0.1 0.2 0.3
At 31 Ocrober 2016 Q. 0.3 04
The Company had ne capital commitments as at 31 October 2017 or 31 October 2016. LLand and buildings represent leasehold improvements,
2. INVESTMENTS <h
ares n Loansto
subsidiary subsidiary
undertakings undertak.ngs Toral
£m m im
Cost
At | November 2015 and 3| Qctober 2016 548.6 6.6 555.2
Additions 1139 - 113.9
At 31 Ocrober 2017 662.5 8.6 669.1
Impairment
At | November 2015, 31 October 2016 and 31 October 2017 439 - 439
Carrying amount
At 31 October 2017 618.6 6.6 625.2
At 31 October 2016 5047 6.6 511.3
The additions of £113.9m in the year represent a capital contribution to CHG Overseas Limited.
3. INVESTMENTS IN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS
Details of the Group undertakings at 31 Qctober 2017 are set out in note 13 to the Group financial statements.
The directors consider that the carrying value of the investments does not exceed their fair value.
4. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 017 1016
im £m
Within current assets
Crther receivables 12.2 21.2
Corporation tax recoverable - 0.5
Prepayments and accrued income 0.7 08
12.9 225
Within non-current assets
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 360.3 376.2
350.3 3762

An asset of £0.4m (2016: £0.5m) is recognised within other receivables in respect of the fair value of derivative financial instruments, as set out in nore
20 1o the Group financial statements. The directors consider that the carrying value of the trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.
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Financial Starements

NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
continued

5. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

1017 FUITS
£m im
Within current liabilities
Corporation tax payable 1.2 -
Derivative financial instruments (note 20 to the Group financial statements) 0.4 2.5
Trade payables 0.1 0.9
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 205.5 1259
Other payables 3.5 1.0
Other tax and social security 0.2 0.2
Accruals and deferred income 3.2 4.1
Loan notes 5l.4 295
265.5 1641
Within non-current liabilities
Loan notes &1.9 121.0
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 61.8 44.4
124.7 165.4
An analysis of borrowings by maturity is as follows:
2007 20146
im im
Borrowings falling due:
— less than one year 5.4 29.5
— within one to two years - 53.8
~ within two 1o five years 61.9 67.2
113.3 150.5
The interest incurred on the above borrowings is detailed within notes 6 and 17 to the Group financial statements.
6. PROVISIONS Ervironmental Dispasal Legal
provision Provisien provision Total
£m im £m im
At | November 2016 07 c.l 0.8 I.6
Released 0.7) - (0.1 C.8)
Paid - - (C.6) (0.5)
At 31 October 2007 - q.l 0.1 a.2

Itis not possible to estimate more accurately the expected timing of any resulting outflows of economic benefits. The environmental provision relates

to estimated liabilities in respect of the sale of the Marine business in 2012. The legal provision relates to a legacy property lease.

7. PREFERENCE SHARES

2017 2018
im £m
Cumulative preference shares (62,500 shares of £1 each) [ K] 0.t

The cumulative preference shares carry an entitlement to a dividend at the rate of 7p per share per annum, payable in equal instalments on 30 April and
31 October each year. Holders of the preference shares have the right on a winding-up to receive, in priority to any other classes of shares, the sum of

£| per share together with any arrears of dividends.
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8. SHARE CAPITAL

017 2016
im £m

Issued, allotted and fully paid
281,588,075 (2016: 281,425,256) ordinary shares of Ip each 18 2.8

During the year, 162,819 ordinary shares {2016: 5,337) were issued for cash to employees under the Group'’s approved savings-related share schemes.

On 24 February 2016, 85,915,828 new ordinary shares were issued pursuant to the rights issue, with four new ordinary shares issued for every nine
existing ordinary shares held.

The preference shares are presented as a liability and accordingly are excluded from called-up share capital in the balance sheet,

Share-based incentive schemes
Full details of the schemes are set out in nate 27 to the Group financial statements.

9. OWN SHARES

2017 2016
im £m
At beginning and end of the year 9.6 9.6

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in Chemring Group PLC purchased in the market and held by the Group to satisfy awards under
the Group's share-based incentive schemes {see note 27 to the Group financial statements). During the year, no ordinary shares (2016: nil) were
acquired and no ordinary shares {201&: nil} were distributed following the vesting of awards under the Chemring Group Performance Share Plan. The
total number of ordinary shares held in treasury at 31 October 2017 was 2,198,814 {2016: 2,198 ,814), with an average cost of 439.0p (2016: 439.0p) per
share. This represents 0.8% (2016: 0.8%) of the total issued and fully-paid ordinary share capital.

10. DEFERRED TAX

17 2018

m £m

At beginning of the year 6.7 82

Charge to income statement (5.6) (1.5)

Charge to other comprehensive income {1.5) -

Deferred tax (liability)/asset at the end of the year {0.4) 6.7
The amount provided represents:

Qrther timing differences {0.4) 6.7

At the balance sheet date, the Company had unrecognised tax losses of £21.1m (201&: £nil) potentially available for offset against future profits in certain
circumstances, the increase arising primarily as a result of the current year tax losses arising in the UK. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of this amount because of the unpredictability of future taxable qualifying profit streams.

Il. PENSIONS
The Company has assumed its share of the assets and liabilities of the Group's defined benefit pension scheme.

An analysis of the provision balance is shown below:

Total
£m
At ! November 2015 6.6
Contributions (2.1)
QOrther finance costs 03
Actuarial movements 1.5
At 3| October 2016 6.3
Contributuons (2.1
Orther finance costs 03
Actuarial movements (4.3)
At 31 October 2047 0.2

Further details are set out in note 29 to the Group financial statements.
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

2. STAFF COSTS

2017 2016

Number Number

Average monthly number of total employees (including executive directors) 24 25
The casts incurred in respect of these employees {incuding share-based payments) were:

017 2016

£m £on

Wages and salaries 4.3 4.1

Social securfty costs 0.5 0.7

Other pension costs 0.4 04

5.2 5.2

Disclosures in respect of directors’ emoluments can be found in the directors’ remuneration report on pages 56 to 74.
P P pag

12



ACCOUNTING POLICIES

|. GENERAL INFORMATION

Chemring Group PLC is a company incorporated in England and Wales under registration number 866462 The address of the registered office is Roke
Manor, Cld Salisbury Lane, Romsey, Hampshire. SOS51 0ZN. The nature of the Group’s operations and its principal activities are set outin note 2 and in
the directors’ report on pages 40 to 43. These financial statements are the consclidated financial statements of Chemring Group PLC and its
subsidiaries (the "Group”).

The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, being the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates, and
rounded to the nearest £G.im. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the foreign currencies accounting policy.

Going concern

The directors have, at the time of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the Group and the Company have adequate
resources to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing these financial statements. Further detail is contained in the statement
on geing concern on pages 50 to 51,

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

The following International Financial Reporting Committee (“IFRIC™) interpretations. amendments to existing standards and new standards were
adopred in the year ended 31 October 2017 but have not materially impacted the reported results or the financial position:

= Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 17 and IAS 28, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation E xception;

= IFRS |l {amended) Accounting for Acquisitions of an Interest in a Joint Operation;

= Amendments to |IAS |6 and IAS 38, Ciarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation;

= |AS | Presentetion of Financial Statements, amendments resulting from the disclosure initiative;

= |IAS 27 {amended) Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements; and

*  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle.

Early adoption of revised standards and interpretations
In the year ended 31 October 2017, the following standard was adopted and has affected the amounts reported in these financial statements:
« IFRS IS Revenue from Contracts with Custemers (effective for periods beginning on or after | January 2018 with early adoption permitted)

New and revised standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective:

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations that are potentially relevant to the Group and
which have not yet been applied in these financial statements were in issue but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the
European Union):

Effective for periods beginning on or after | January 2617
*«  Amendments to |AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
= Amendments to |AS |2 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

Effective for periods beginning on or after | January 2018

«  Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions;
= IFRS % Financial instruments Recognition and Measurement;

« Annual Improvements ta IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle; and

« IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

Effective for periods beginning on or after | [anuary 2019
* IFRS 16 Leases

* Apnual Improvements te \FRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

* IFRIC 23 Uncertainty aver Income Tax Treatments

Effective for periods beginning on or after | January 202!
« IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The directors do not expect the adoptian of these standards and interpretations will have a material impact on the financial statements of the Group in

{future periods except as follows:

= IFRS % Financial Instruments Recoghition and Measurement will impact the measurement and disclosure of financial instruments; and

» IFRS 16 Leases will impact the measurement, recognition, presentation and disclosure of leases, particularly operating leases where the term is
longer than |Z months.

The impact of IFRS 16 Leases is currently being assessed. Under IFRS 14 Leoses, lessees will be required to apply a single model to recognise a lease
liability and asset for zll leases, including those classified as operating leases under current accounting standards, unless the underlying asset has a low
value or the lease term is 12 months or less. The adoption of IFRS 16 will have a significant iImpact on the financial statements as each lease will give rise
to a right of use asset which will be depreciated on a straight-line basis, and a lease liability with a related interest charge. The depreciation and interest
wiil replace the operauing lease payments currently recognised as an expense. The impact wiill depend on the transition approach and the contracts in
effect at the time of the adoption. At 31 Cerober 2017, operating lease commitments were £5.5m and operating lease payments for 2017 were £]1.8m.

Beyond this information, itis not practicable to pravide a reascnable estimate of the effect of these standards until a detailed review has been
conducted during 2018.
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Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

3. GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES .
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted for use in the EU and therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU LAS

Regulation. These financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with |AS, IFRS and refated IFRIC interpretations, subsequent

amendments to those standards and related interpretations, future standards and related interpretations issued or adopted by the International

Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") that have been endorsed by the EU (collectively referred to as IFRS). These are subject to ongoing review and

endorsement by the EU or possible amendment by interpretive guidance from the IASB and the IFRIC, and are therefore still subject to change.

The financiat statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except as described below under the heading of ‘Derivative financial
instruments and hedge accounting’.

The particular accounting palicies adopted have been applied consistently throughout the current and previous year, except for the adoption of IFRS 15
in the year ended 31 Qcrober 2017 where the modified transitional provisions have been adopted as described in note 33, and are described below,

Basis of consalidation

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. A subsidiary undertaking is an entity over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The results of subsidiaries acquired are
consolidated from the date on which control passes te the Group and the results of disposed subsidiaries are consolidated up to the date on which
cantrol passes from the Group.

The Company considers that it has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the LS entities falling within the Special Security
Agreement and these entities have therefore been consolidated in these financial statements.

The Company and all of its subsidiaries make up their financial staterments to the same date. All intra-group transactions, balznces, income and expenses
are eliminated on consclidation.

Operating profit

Operating profitis stated before the share of results of associates and before finance income and expense. The use of underlying measures, in addition
to total measures, is considered by the Board to improve comparability of business performance between periods. Underlying measures referred to are
stated before costs relating to acquisitions and disposals, business restructuring and incident costs, profit/loss on disposal of businesses, items deemed
ta be of an excepticnal nature, impairment of goodwill and acquired intangibles, impairment of assets held for sale, amortisation of acquired intangibles
and gains/lesses on the movement in the fair value of derivative financial instruments, and exciudes discontinued operations.

Operating cash conversion
(Cash conversion of underlying operating profit is defined as cash generated from underlying operations, less purchases of intangitle assets and
property, plant and equipment and praceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment, as 2 propartion of underlying operating profit.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration which is expected to be received in exchange for the goods and services provided, net of
applicable taxes.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goeds is recognised when all of the following cenditions are satisfied:
+ the Group has identified a sales contract with a customer;

= the performance obligations within this contract has heen identfied;

+ the transactions price has been determined;

» this transaction price has been allocated to the performance obligations in the contract; and
«  revenue is recoghised as or when each performance obligation is satisfied.

Performance obligations are satisfied when the customer gains control of promised goods or services from the contract.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services, induding customer funded research and development, is recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract. Stage of compfetion is typically estimated by either completion of relevant milestones or proportion of contract costs
incurred for work performed 1o date, as appropriate.

Investment income
Dividend incame from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established, provided that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of ncome can be measured reliably.

Interest income is recognised when it is probabie that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of iIncome can be measured reliably.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3. GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONIINUED

Acquisitions and disposals

On acquisition of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity, the costis measured as the fair value of the consideration. The assets, liabilicies and

contingent liabilities of subsidiary undertakings that meet the IFRS 3 {Revised) Business Combinations recognition criteria are measured at the fair value at

the date of acquisition, except that:

+ deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities or assets relating to employee benefit arrangements, are recognised and measured in accordance with
IAS 12 income Taxes and |AS {9 (Revised) Employee Benefits respectively;

¢+ liabilities or equity instruments related to the replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s share-based payment awards are measured in accordance
with IFRS 2 Share-based Payments; and

+  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale, in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held far Sale and Discontinued Operations,
are measured in accaordance with that standard.

Where cost exceeds fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is recorded as goodwill.

Where the fair value of the net assets exceeds the cost, the difference is recorded directly in the income statement. The accounung policies of
subsidiary undertakings are changed where necessary to be consistent with those of the Group.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional ameunts are adjusted during the measurement period (see
below), or additianal assets or liabilities recognised, to reflect new information abtained abour facts and circumstances that existed as at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as at that date.

The measurement period runs from the date of acquisition to the date the Group obtains complete information about facts and circumstances that
existed as at the acquisition date, subject to a maximum period of one year.

in accordance with IFRS 3 {Revised) Business Combinations, acquisition and disposal refated items are recognised through the income statement,
Acquisition and disposal related items refer to credits and costs associated with the acquisition and disposal of businesses, together with the costs of
aborted bids and the establishment of joint ventures.

intangible assets

Goodwill

The purchased goodwill of the Group is regarded as having an indefinite useful economic life and, in accordance with |AS 36 Impairment of Assets, is not
amortised but is subject to annual tests for impairment. On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity, the amount attributable to
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Acquired intangibles

The Group recognises separately from goodwill, intangible assets that are separable or arise from contractual or other legal rights and whose fair value
can be measured reliably. These intangible assets are amortised at rates calculated to write down their cost or valuation to their estimated residual
values by equal instalments over their estimated useful economic lives, which are:

= technology - average of ten years
* customer relationships - average of ten years
* order books - average of two years

Development costs
Development costs that qualify as intangible assets are capitalised as incurred and, once the relevant intangible asset is ready for use, are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, averaging five years (2016: five years).

The carrying value of development assets is assessed for recoverability at least annually or when a trigger is identified,

Patents and licences
Patents and licences are measured initially at purchase cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, averaging seven
years {2016: seven years).

Property, plant and equipment
Other than historically revalued land and buildings, property, plant and equipment is held at cost iess accumulated depreciation and any recognised
impairment loss. Borrowing costs on significant capital expenditure projects are capitalised and allocated to the cost of the project.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land. On other assets, depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write down their cost or valuation to their
estimated residual values by equal instalments over their estimated useful economic lives, which are:

» freehold buildings — up to fifty years
» leasehold buildings - the period of the lease
= plantand equipment — up to ten years

Investments in associates

The results and the assets and liabilities of associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Any excess of the cost of investment over
the Group's share of the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities within the associate at the date of acquisition is accounted for as goodwill that is
included in the carrying value of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of that investment.
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Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

3. GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONIINUELD

Impairment of non-current assets

Assets that have indefinite lives are allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units and tested for impairment at least annually, Asserts that are subject to
depreciation or amertisation are reviewed for impairment whenever changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
To the extent that the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recorded for the difference as an expense in the income
statement. The recoverable amount used for impairment testing is the higher of the value-in-use and the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest fevels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost represents materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
overheads, and is determined using the "first-in, first-out” (“FIFQ™) method. Net realisable value is based on estimated sefling price, less further costs
expected w be incurred 1o cormpletion and disposal.

Pravision is made for slow-moving, absalete and defective items where appropriate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use, are added 1o the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are ready for their
intended use. Once the assets are ready for their intended use, these capitalised borrowing costs are depreciated in line with the underlying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants for staff retraining costs are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs and are
deducted in reporting the related expense.

Government grants relating to property, pfant and equipment are reated as deferred income and released to the income statement over the expected
useful econamic lives of the assets concerned.

Tax
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profic as reported in the income staterment because it exchudes iterns of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it excludes items of income or expense that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax represents amounts expected to be payable or recoverable on differences berween the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liabifity
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
itis probable taxable profits will be available in the future against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilicies In a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profis.

Dreferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests ir joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to cantrol the reversal of the temporary difference and itis probable that the temparary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable thar sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expecred to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset /s realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except where it relates to
iterns charged or credited directly ta equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is 2 legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities, when they
relate to income taxed by the same tax authority, and when the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Special capital reserve
The special capital reserve was created as part of a capital reduction scheme involving the cancellation of the share premium account which was
approved by the Courtin [986, i accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1985.
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3. GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONIINUED

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each Group company are presented in its functional currency, being the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates. For the purpose of these Group financial statements, the results and financial position of each Group company are
expressed in pounds sterting, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for these financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of each Group company. transactions in foreign currencies, being currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency, are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are transfated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical costin a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items and on the retranslation of monetary items are included in the income statement for
the period.

In order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into forward foreign exchange contracts which are accounted for as
derivative financial instruments (see below for details of the Group’s accounting policies in respect of such derivative financial instruments).

For the purpose of presenting these financiat statements, the assets and liabilities of the Greoup's foreign operaticns are translated at exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.

Goodwill and fair value adiustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets
Trade receivables
Trade receivables do not carry any interest ang are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverabile amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a
known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into.

Bank borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directissue costs. Finance charges, including premiums payable
on settlement or redemption, and direct issue costs are accounted for on an accruals basis in the income statement using the effective interest methaod,
and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settted in the pericd in which they arise.

Trade payables
Trade payables are notinterest bearing and are stated at their nominal vatue.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
The Group's activities expose it to the financal risks of foreign currency transactions, and it uses forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its
exposure to these transactional risks. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value on the date the derivative contract is entered into and are revalued to fair value at each
balance sheet date. The fair values of derivative financial instruments are calculated by external valuers.

The method by which any gain or loss is recognised depends on whether the instrument is designated a hedging instrument or not. To be designated as a
hedging instrument, the instrument must be documented as such at incepuon, and must be assessed at inception and on an ongoing basis to be highly
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

Hedge accounting principles are used for forward fareign exchange contracts where appropriate, with movements in fair value taken 1o equity for cash
flow hedges and to the income statement for fair vaiue hedges, untif such time as the underlying amounts of the contract mature. At maturity or disposal
of the net investmeant, the amounts held in equity will be recycled to the income statement. Changes in fair value of any ineffective portion of net
investment hedges and interest rate swap contracts are recognised in the income statement immediately.

Where derivative financial instruments do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting, the changes in fair value are immediately recognised in the
income statement.
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Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

3. GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument refating ta the effective porton of the hedge is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and
accumulated in the translation reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective poruon is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Embedded derivative financial instruments
Embedded derivative financial instruments that are not closely related to the host contract are treated as separate derivative financial instruments. with
unrealised gains and losses reported in the incorne statement.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an administrative expense in the period to which they relate. For defined
benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each
balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recagnised in the statement of comprehensive income in full in the period in which they occur.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a strarght-line basis over
the average period until the benefits become vested.

The discount an scheme liabilites less the expected return on scheme assets an defined benefit obligations is included within finance expense.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognised past service cost and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost,
plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme.

Leased assets

Where the Group enters into a lease which entails taking substantially alf the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset, the lease is treated as a finance
lease. The asset is recorded in the balance sheet as property, plant and equipment, and is depreciated over the shorter of its estimated useful economic
life and the Jease term, Futare instalments under such leases, net of finance charges, are recognised as a liabiity. The finance element of the instalments

is charged to the income statement at a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the obligation.

All other leases are operating leases, for which rental charges are recognised in the income statement on a straight-fine basis over the life of the lease.

Share-based compensation
The Group operates equity-settled and cash-settled share-based compensation schemes,

For grants made under the Group's share-based compensation schemes, the fair value of an award is measured at the date of grant and reflects any
market-based vesting conditions. Norn-market based vesting conditions are excluded from the fair value of the award. At the date of grant, the Company
estimates the number of awards expected to vest as a result of nen-market based vesting conditions, and the fair value of this estimated number of
awards is recoghised as an expense in the incofme statement on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. At each balance sheet date, the impact of
any revision to vesting estimates is recognised in the income statement over the vesting period. Proceeds received, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs, are credited to share capital and share prerium,

For cash-settled share-based grants, the total amount recognised is based on the fair value of the liability incurred. The fair value of the fabitity is
remeasured at each balance sheet date, with changes in the fair value recognised in the income statement.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present cbligation, either legal or constructive, as a result of a past event, itis probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimare can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recagnised as a provision is
the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheer date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the estimated cash flows to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

When some ar ail of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as
an asset it s virwally certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivabie can be measured refiably.

Environmental provisions
Where the Group is fiable for decontamination work or the restoration of sites to their original condition, an estimate is made of the costs needed to
complete these works, discounted back 1o present vajues, relying upon independent third party valuers where appropriate,

Restructuring provisions

A restrycturing provision is recognised when the Group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in
those affected thatit wilf carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan ar announcing its main features to those affected by it. The
measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring and not those associated with the ongoing
activities of the enury.
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3. GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Warranty provisions

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of goods legistation are recognised at the date of sale of the relevant preducts,
based upon the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group's obligations.

Dispasal provisions
Disposal provisions relate to estimated liabilivies faced by the Group in respect of discontinued operations and other disposed entities under the terms
of their respective sale agreements.

Contingent liabilities

The Group exercises judgement In recoghising expasures to cantingent liabilities related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims subject to
negotiated settlement, mediation, arbitration or government regulation, as welk as other contingent liabilities. |udgement may be necessary in assessing
the likelihood that a pending claim will succeed, or z liability will arise, and/or to quantify the possible range of the financial settlement.

Alternative Performance Measures

In the analysis of the Group's financial performance and position, operating results and cash flows, APMs are presented to provide readers with
additonal information. The principal APMs presented are underlying measures of earnings including underlying operating profit, underlying profit before
tax, underlying profit after tax, underlying EBITDA, underlying earnings per share, and underlying operating cash flow. In addition, EBITDA, net debt.
and constant currency revenues are presented which are also considered non-1FRS measures. These measures are consistent with information regularly
reviewed by management 1o run the husiness, including planning, budgeting and reporting purposes and for its internal assessment of the operational
performance cf individual businesses.

The directors believe that the use of these APMs assist in providing additional information on the underlying trends, performance and positien of the
Group. APMs are used to improve the comparability of information between reporting periods by adjusting for items that are non-recurring or
otherwise non-underlying. Management consider non-underlying items to be:

+ amortisation of acquired intangibles;

+ material exceptional items, for example relating to acquisitions and dispaosals, business and incident costs, and claim coszs:

+ gains or losses on the movement in the fajr value of derivative financial instruments; and

+ the tax impact of all of the above.

Our use of APMs is consistent and we provide comparatives alongside all current period figures.
Further detail on the APMs presented within these financial statements, including a reconcifiation te the IFRS equivalent, s presented in note 3.

Post balance sheet events
In accordance with [AS [0 Events after the Balance Sheet Date, the Group continues to disclose events that it considers material, non-disclosure of which
can influence the economic decisions of users of the financial statements.

4, CHEMRING GROUP PLC ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FRS 10F Reduced Disclosure Framework
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS (01 Reduced Disciosure Framework.

The Company operates 2 multi-employer defined benefit scheme including employees of other Group companies. Following FRS 101, the scheme assets
and liabilies have been allocated across the Group companies using a method that management considers to be the most appropriate, based on
scheme membership.

The following exemptions from the requirements of IFRS have been applied in the preparation of these financial statements, in accordance with FRS QL
» share-based payments;

= business combinations;

= financial instruments;

» fair value measurements;

« presentation of comparative information in respect of certain assets;

* |FRSs issued but not yet effective;

» related party transactions;

* assumptions and sensitivities for impairment review: and

» cash flow.

Investment in Group undertakings
lavestments are stated at cost less any provision for impairment in value.

Critical accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
There are ne criucal accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty for the Company.
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Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

When applying the Group’s accounting policies, management must make judgements, assumptions and estimates concerning the future that affect the
carrying amounis of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the amounts of revenue and expenses recognised during the perod. Such
judgements, assumptions and estimares are based upon factors including historical experience, the observance of trends in the industries in which the
Group operates, and information available from the Group's customers and other external sources.

The key judgements and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

Critical accounting judgements

Revenue recognition

During the year the Group adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from Controcts with Customers. The standard recognises revenue on the basis of the satisfaction of
performance obligations, The identification of these cbligations requires management judgement, particularly with respect te milestone contracts that
contain multiple obligaticns. Revenue of £9.9m (2016: £10.3m) was recognised in the current year in respect of such milestone contracts.

Additionally, management has to consider whether performance obligations should be recognised at a single point in time, which is generally the case for
the sale of products by the Group, or over a period of time, which is more common for certain service contracts.

In making its judgement about cbligations that are satisfied at a pointin time, management has to consider at what point control has passed to the
customer, allowing revenue to be recognised. This is typically determined through a consideration of customer acceptance testing, contract terms and
delivery arrangements.

For cbligations that are recognised aver time, a separate judgement must be made as to the most appropriate measure of progress. This is often on a
straight-line basis over the life of the contract, though an alternative measure of progress may be more appropriate where the work is not evenly spread
over the life of the contract.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Goodwill impairment

Determining whether goodwill 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value-in-use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit, and to determine 2
suitable discount rate in order o calculate present value (see note {0). in reviewing the carrying value of goodwill of the Group's businesses, the Board
has considered the separate plans and cash flows of these businesses consistent with the requirements of |AS 36 Impairment of Assets. The plans and
cash flows of these businesses reflect current and anticipated conditions in the defence industry, The total goodwill intangible asset is set out in note (0.,
which shows a carrying value of £125.4m at 31 October 2017.

Capitalised development casts

|AS 38 Intangible Assets requires that development costs, arising from the application of research findings or other technical knowledge to a plan or
design of a new substantially improved product, are capitalised, subject to certain criteria being met. Determining the future cash flows generated by
the products in development requires estimates which may differ from the actual outcome. In particular, this can depend on the estimation applied to
future milestone events to secure long-term positions on production contracts, for example Programs of Record for the US DoD. The total capitalised
development intangible assetis set out in note !, which shows a carrying value of £33.7m at 31 October 2017. included in this balance are individually
material balances relating to CENTURION (£2.9m}, electronic attack (£3.0m), Perception (£2.2m), Joint Biological Tactical Detection System (£8.1m)
and Next Generation Chemical Detector (£8.4m).

Deferred tax assets on tax losses and US interest deductions
The category of deferred tax asset which contains significant estimation uncertainty and which requires management judgement in assessing its
recoverability relates to US interest limitations and tax losses carried forward (see note 22),

Applicable accounting standards permit the recognition of deferred tax assets only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available to utilise the taxlosses carried forward. The assessment of future taxable profits involves significant estimation uncertainty, principally refating
to an assessment of management’s projections of future taxable income based on business plans and ongoing tax planning strategies. These projections
include assumptions about the future strategy of the Group, the econemic and regulatory environment in which the Group operates, future tax
legisiation, and customer behaviour, amangst other variables.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHEMRING GROUP PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

In our opinion;

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 October 2017 and of the
Group's profit for the year then ended;

* the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union;

= the parent company firancial stazements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
including Financial Reperting Standzrd [0l “Reduced Disclosure Framewaork”; and

* the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial
staterments, Article 4 of the |AS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements of Chemring Group plc (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group’) which comprise:
» the consolidated income statement;

+ the consolidated and parent company statement of comprehensive income;

+ the consolidated and parent company balance sheets;

+ the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;

= the consolidated cash flow statement;

* the accounting pelicies; and

+ therelated notes | to 36 for the consolidated financial statements and notes | to 12 for the company financial statements.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Pracuce).

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs {UK}) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements secrion of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements thar are relevant to our audit of the financiat
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. ¥We confirm that the non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not
provided to the Group or the parent company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obrtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit martters that we identified in the current year were:
* Valuation of gecodwill and other intangible assets; and
* The application of IFRS |15 to material contracts.
Within this report, any new key audit matters are identified with [ and any key audit matters which are the same as
the prior year identified with i3,

Materiality The mazteriality that we used in the current year was £2.1m which was determined on the basis of profit before tax
adjusted for certain items which are explained below. This is a change in the current period which is explained later in
this report.

Scoping We have focused our Group audit scope primarily on work at 13 components of which 10 were subject to full scope

audit praocedures. These locations account for 93% of the Group's net assets, 93% of the Group’s revenue, and 95% of
the Group's underlying profit before tax. This coverage is consistent with the prior year.

Significant changes in our There have been no significant changes in our approach in the year.
approach
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Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHEMRING GROUP PLC continued

Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statement

We have reviewed the directors’ statement regarding the appropriateness of the going concern

basis of accounting contained within the accounting paolicies in the financial statements and the
directors’ statement on the longer-term viability of the Group contained within the Corporate
Governance report on page 51.

We are required ta state whether we have anything material to add or draw attentian to in
relation to:

the disclosures on pages 28 to 33 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are
bemg managed or mitigated:
the directors’ confirmatiocn on page 43 that they have carried out a robust assessment of

We confirm that we have nothing material
to add or draw attention to in respect of
these matters.

We agreed with the directors’ adoption of
the going cancern basis of accounting and
we did not identify any such material
uncertainties. However, because not all
future events or conditions can be
predicted, this statement is not a

guarantee as to the Group's ability to
continue as a going toncern.

the principal risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business model,
future performance, solvency or liquidity:

+ the directers’ statement in the accounting palicies about whether they considered it
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing them and their
identification of any material uncerzainties to the Group and the parent company’s ability to
continue to de so over a periad of at [east twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial staterments;

+ the directors’ explanation on page 51 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the
Group, over what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be
appropriate, and their statement as to whether they bave a reascnable expectation that the
Group will be able to continye in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the
period of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any
necessary qualifications or assumptions; or

= whether the directors' statements relating to going concern and the prospects of the
company required in accordarice with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) are materially inconsistent with
our knowledge obtained in the audit.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current
period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included
those which had the greatest effect on: the aoverall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement
team.

These matters were addressed in the context of cur audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In the financial statements for the year ended 31 October 2016 we included provisioning for taxation and the appropriateness and completeness of
provisions as key audit matters. In light of the Group’s financial performance in the year and the financial position as at 3! October 2017 we no longer
consider these to be key audit marters. Qur key audit matter in relation to revenue recognition has been revised in light of the adoption of the new
revenue standard.

Valuation of goodwill and other intangible assets

The Group recognises goodwill as at 31 October 2017 of £125.4m (2016: £132.9m) and capitalised development
costs at 31 October 27 of £33.7m (2016: £40.9m). Both categories of assets are recognised imitially at cost bug are
assessed against FAS 36 impairment of Assets each year. The assessment of recoverable amount is a judgemental
process as a result of the estimartion uncertainty in forecasting future cash flows. For example assumptions are
required when determining whether certain contracts will be won. Our key audit matter is limited to CGUs and
assets where the estimation is critical to supporting the recoverable amount and therefore this area of focus related
to the following CGUs and assets:

*  The CGUs are Chemring Sensors & Electronic Systems Inc., Chemring Technology Solutions Limited, and
Chemring Defence UK Limited. Animpairment charge of £10.6m has been recognised against the goodwill and
other assets of Chemring Defence UK Limitad.

+ The capitalised development costs relate to CENTURION (£2.9m), electronic attack (£3.0m), Joint Biological
Tactical Detection System (£8.1m) and Next Generation Chemical Detector (£8.4m).

Key audit matter
description

The directors further explain the sources of this estimation uncertainty on page 120 and provide sensitivity
disclosures in respect of goodwill and development costsin notes |0 and 1 respectively. This is also identified as a
significant issue considered by the Audit Committee an page 54.
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How the scope of our audit
responded to the key audit
matter

The procedures performed focus on the specific uncertainties highlighted above. We have:

-

Obrtained an understanding of the processes and tested the design and implementation of the key controls
relevant to the impairment considerations and reviews performed;

Inspected management forecasts and evidenced critical assumptions as well as considering reasonable changes in
those assumptions in arder to assess the impact that has on the outcome of the impairment models;

Held discussions with management so as to understand future plans for CGUs and whether those have bearing
on the valuation used in the impairment model;

Assessed third party evidence including the market capitafisation of the Group and known fixed and firm orders
s0 as to assess internal information against that which is available elsewhere;

Analysed and evidenced sales, and development milestones met in respect of the Programs of Record, for the
capitalised development programmes as set out in the key audit matter above;

Reviewed and recalculated the impairment workings for Chemring Defence UK Limited and inspected the
support for the eventual fair value attributed to the CGU; and

Evaluated the disclosure against the requirements set out in 1AS 36.

Key observations

In our epinion the valuation of goodwill and other assets is reasonable.

The application of IFRS 15 to material contracts

Key audit matter
description

Given the transition to IFRS §5 Revenue from contracts with customers we identified a key audit matter that revenue
could be materially misstated because IFRS |5 is incorrectly applied. We believe that there are a small number of key
judgements relevant to Chemring that must be made upon initial application:

-

-

The conclusion as to whether to recognise revenue over time or at a point in time;

The identification of performance obligations in contracts where multipte deliverables exist; and

The timing of the recognition of the transfer of control on contracts with material revenue to be recognised at a
point in time (i.e. cut-off).

Given the complexity and judgement involved in those items listed above, we also determined that there is potential
for fraud through possible maniputation of the revenue on matenal contracts.

The directors further explain the critical accounting judgements made on page [20. This is also identified as a
significant issue considered by the Audit Committee on page 54.

How the scope of our audit
responded to the key audit
matter

The procedures performed address the key audit matter identified above. We have:

Obrained an understanding of the processes and tested the design and implementation of key controls relevant
1o the ongaing and transitional requirements of IFRS 15;

Evaluated each of the contracts identified as complex against the five step model of IFRS 15, in order to arrive at
the appropriate revenue and cost recagnition for each contract;

Concluded on the most apprapriate method of measuring progress on contracts for which the conclusion has
been reached to recognise revenue over time. We then compared this to management's assessment of the
contract;

Inspected individuat contracts on which revenue has been recognised in the year, obtaining supporting invoices,
proof of delivery and evidence of transfer of control te the customer where applicable;

Re-calculated the impact to opening reserves, which has occurred as a consequence of the new revenue
standard; and

Considered the discfosures against the transitional and ongoing requirements of IFRS 5.

Key observations

In cur opinion the requirements of IFRS 15 have been applied correctly to material contracts.
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Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHEMRING GROUP PLC continued

Our application of materiality

We define rmateriality as the magnitude of misstatement fn the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in evatuating the results of
our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group materiality £2 1m (2016: £2.1m)
Basis for determining We determined materiality based on the statutory profit before tax of £4.0m adjusted for the following certain
materiality non-underiying or one-off items:

= Acquisition and disposal costs (charge of £2.3m);

+ Business restructuring and incident costs {charge of £14.3m});

= Claim refated costs {tharge of £0.4m};

= impairment of Chemring Defence LIK Limited (charge of £3.8m);

= Intangible amertisation arising from business combinations {charge of £15.0m); and

* Gain cn the movement in the fair value of derivative financial instruments {credit of £1.7m).

Further details on these items is incdluded in note 3 to the financial statements.

Our materiality of £2.Im equates 1o 4.8% of this profit measure.

Rationale for the Underlying profit before tax is a key performance measure for the group and it is therefore an appropriate basis on
benchmark applied which to determine materiality.

Cur basis for determining materiality has changed since the finzncial stztements for the year ended 31 October 2016
in which we used a three year averaged profit measure rathber than wholly based on the resuits of reporting period.
This change has been made to reflect the increased stability in the business.

We agreed with the Audit Commuttee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £0.fm (2016: £0.1m), as well as
differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on gualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit Committee on disclosure
matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financ/al statements.

An gverview of the scope of our audit

Qur group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including group-wide controls, and assessing the risks of
material misstatement at the group level. Based an that assessment, we focused our group audit scope primarily on the audit work at |3 components
(2016: 14 components). 10 (2016: 10) of these were subject to full scope audit procedures, whilst the remaining 3 (2016: 4) were subject to either an
audit of specified account balances or specified audit procedures. The extent of our testing was based on our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement and of the materiality of the Group's operations at those locations. These 13 components represent the principal business units and
account for 93% (2016: 97%) of the Group's net assets, 93% (2016: 96%) of the Group's revenue and 95% (2016: 95%) of the Group’s underlying profit
before tax. They were also selected to provide an appropriate basis for undertaking audit work to address the key audit matters identified above. Qur
audit work at the |3 locations was executed at levels of materfality applicable to each individual entity which were lower than group materiality and
ranged from £0.2m 1o £1.4m {2046: £0.3m 1o £1.4m).

Ar the parent entity level we also rested the consolidarion pracess and carried out analytical pracedures ta canfirm our conclusion that there were na
significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial information of the remaining components not subject to audit or audit of specified
account balances.

The group audit team conunued to follow a programme of planned visits that has been designed so that the Senior Statutory Auditor or a senior
member of the group audit team visits each of the locations where the group audit scope was focused at least ance every three years and the most
significant of them at least once a year. We visited all full audit scope locations with the exception of Chemring Australia Py, Ltd. Of the 3 locations
subject to specified audit procedures the Senior Statutory Auditor visited Chemring Sensors & Electronic Systems. Every year, regardless of whether we
have visited or not, we include the component audit team in our team briefing, direct the scope of their work far the purposes of our group audit,
discuss their tocal risk assessment, and review documentation of the findings from their work,
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other infermation comprises the We have nothing to report in respect of
informarion included in the annual report including those titled Overview, Strategic Report, these matters.

Governance, and Other Information, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
informarion and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge cbtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated,

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a marerial
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact,

In this context, matters that we are specifically required to report 1o you as uncorrected material

misstatements of the other information include where we conclude that:

+ Fair, balanced and understandable — the statement given by the directors that they consider the
annual report and financial statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the group’s performance,
business model and strategy, (s materizlly inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit;
or

+ Audit committee reporting — the section describing the work of the audit committee does not
appropriately address matters communicated by us to the audit committee; or

+ Directors' statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code — the parts of
the directors’ statement required under the Listing Rules relating to the company’s compliance
with the UK Corporate Governance Code containing provisions specified for review by the
auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2) do not properly disclose a departure from a
relevant provision of the UK Corpeorate Governance Code.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary te enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

tn preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability Lo continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, marters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors eitherintend to
liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditar’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducied in accordance with ISAs {UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.
org.uk/auditorsrespensibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.
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Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHEMRING GROUP PLC continued

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpase. To the fullest extent perritted by taw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Opinions on ather matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our apinicn the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has heen properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

* theinformation given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and

* the strategic reportand the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and of the parent company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records We have nothing to report
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report 1o you if, in our opinion: in respect of these matters.
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for aur audit; or
+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have

not been received from branches not visited by us; or
+ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

Directors’ remuneration We have nothing to report
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to reportif in our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ in respect of these matters.
remuneration have not been made or the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited is not in

agreement with the accounting records and returns.

Other matters

Auditor tenure

Tauche Ross & Ca. were appainted by the Board on 20 August 1990 upan their merger with the previous auditor, Spicer & Oppenheim, to audit the
financial statements for the year ending 30 September 1990 and subsequent financial periods. The period of totat uninterrupted engagement including
previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is therefore longer than 27 years, covering up te 31 October 2017.

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Audit Committee
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee we are required to pravide in accordance with ISAs (UK).

Anna Marks FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Reading, United Kingdom

18 January 2018
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND WEBSITE

Headquarters and registered office
Roke Manor

Old Salisbury Lane

Romsey

Hampshire

SO5I 0ZN

T: +44 (0)1794 833901
F: +44 (0)1794 833955

Website: www.chemring.co.uk

Registered offices

Subsidiary undertaking in Austratia:
230 Staceys Road

Lara

Victoria

Australia

3212

Subsidiary undertakings in England:
Roke Manor

Old Salisbury Lane

Romsey

Hampshire

SO51 0ZN

Subsidiary undertakings in Luxembourg:
|A, Rue Thomas Edison

L-1445 Strassen

Luxembourg

Find out more online

Registered number
86662

Registrars

Computershare Investor Services plc
The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol

BSI3 BAE

Subsidiary undertakings in Scotland:
Troon House

Ardeer Site

Stevenston

Ayrshire

KA20 3LN

Subsidiary undertakings in Norway:
Chemring Nobel

Engeneveien 7

MN-3475 Setre

MNorway

3d-Radar
Kizbuveien 1968
7037 Trondeim
Norway

For more information about Chemring Greup PLC, please visit www.chemring.co.uk where the latest shareholder information can be

accessed, including:

+ Current share price

« Key financial information

» Financial calendar

*  Sharehclder services and notices
» Corporate governance

* Results and presentations

* Analysts’ forecasts

*  Regulatory news

Chemring Group PLC's Annual Report and Accounts 2017 and the Nouce for the Annual General Meeting can also be viewed and downloaded at

www.chemring.co.uk/investors

© Chemring Group PLC 2017

The information in this document is the property of Chemring Group PLC and may not be copied or communicated to a third party or used for any
purpose, other than that for which itis supplied, without the express written consent of Chemring Group PLC. This information is given in good faith
based upecn the latest informaticon available ro Chemring Group PLC; no warranty or representation is given concerning such information, which must
not be taken as establishing any contractual or other commitment binding upon Chemring Group PLC or any of its subsidiary or associated companies.
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